Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District

Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday December 19, 2012; 5:30pm

Board Room
Birch Street Annex
2957 Birch Street, Bishop CA



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012

Regular Meeting

Page 1 of 6

CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT

ALSO PRESENT

ALSO PRESENT FOR
RELEVANT PORTIONS

PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA

EARTHQUAKE
INSURANCE

The meeting was called to order at 5:30pm by Peter Watercott, President.

Peter Watercott, President

John Ungersma, M.D., Vice President
M.C. Hubbard, Secretary

Denise Hayden, Treasurer

D. Scott Clark, M.D., Director

John Halfen, Administrator

Robbin Cromer-Tyler, M.D., Chief of Staff

Will Richmond, Attorney at Law (on behalf of District Legal Counsel)
Sandy Blumberg, Administration Secretary

Dianne Shirley, R.N., Performance Improvement Coordinator

Mr. Watercott asked if any members of the public wished to comment on
any items listed on the agenda for this meeting, or on any items of
interest. No comments were heard,

The proposed consent agenda for this meeting included the following
items:
1. Approval of the minutes of the September 19, 2012 regular
meeting (action item).
2. Financial and Statistical reports for the month of July 2012 (action

item).

3. Policy & Procedure manuals annual approval (action items):
A. Clinical Diet Manual D. Pulmonary Function
B. Employee Health E. Social Services
C. Environmental Services F. Utilization Review

It was moved by Denise Hayden, seconded by John Ungersma, M.D., and
passed to approve the proposed consent agenda items as presented.

Mzr. Halfen asked that the Board address agenda item 8A next, in order to
allow the insurance agents present for discussion of the possible purchase
of earthquake insurance to not have to stay for the entire meeting. At that
time, Board member D. Scott Clark, M.D. moved to table this agenda
item due to the fact that he does not feel it is necessary for the District to
purchase earthquake insurance. The motion was seconded by Ms.
Hayden, but prior to a vote discussion took place including insurance
agent Robert Beach presenting his explanation regarding why it may be
prudent for the District to purchase insurance. Mr. Beach also explained
that he has extended his quote several times for the District already, and
he may not be able to extend it any further. Following further discussion,
which included comments regarding the new hospital building being
designed to be essentially earthquake proof, and the value of the old




Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012

Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 6

ADMINISTRATOR’S
REPORT

BUILDING UPDATE

ORTHOPEDIC
SERVICES UPDATE

HOSPITALIST
PROGRAM UPDATE

PHYSICIAN
RECRUITMENT
UPDATE

hospital building possibly not being worth insuring, and it was moved by
Doctor Clark, seconded by Ms. Hayden and passed to decline acceptance
of earthquake insurance coverage, with Mr. Watercott abstaining from the
vote.

Interim Chief Nursing Officer Sharon Tourville updated the Board on the
State licensing visit for the new hospital building, and on the move out of
the old hospital facility and into the new one. Ms. Tourville gave kudos
to hospital staff; to Chief of Staff Robbin Cromer-Tyler, M.D.; and to
Administrator John Halfen for their hard work and dedication during the
licensing visit and move. The State survey team consisted of a total of
three people who stayed for a total of three days to complete the survey,
and Ms. Tourville noted that the survey was extremely thorough and the
team stayed longer than they had originally anticipated. There were
several sticking points that surfaced during the State visit, and hospital
staff joined forces and worked quickly to correct those items that the
surveyors felt were issues. Changes were made in the Dictary Department
and in the standby kitchen; and a playroom was created for pediatric
patients. Several new policies and procedures were developed at the
request of the surveyors, who also informed us that we will be required to
add the Radiology building; Lab; Purchasing; MRI; and all other hospital
outbuildings to our license. The survey was conducted utilizing a
temporary command center, and was run in the format of a disaster drill
for hospital staff. Doctor Cromer-Tyler stated that she felt that
management and hospital staff did an exemplary job during both the
licensing visit and during the efficiently organized move into the new
hospital building. We continue to make improvements to signage in the
new building, and will continue to tie up loose ends as we prepare for the
Joint Commission survey that will take place by March of next year. Mr,
Halfen mentioned that we will also begin discussion of Phase [II of the
hospital rebuild project in the next month.

Mr. Halfen reported there is no change to the status of orthopedic
recruitment, and the District still plans to move forward with establishing
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Mammoth Hospital in
order to coordinate orthopedic service coverage between the two facilities.

There is also no change to the status of Northern Inyo Hospital’s (NIH’s)
current Hospitalist program, and Shiva Shabnam M.D. is expected to take
over as Director of the Hospitalist Program effective as of November 1.

Mr. Halfen also reported that we continue to recruit for family practice
and internal medicine physicians, and that Catherine Leja, M.D. plans to
return to this area to practice medicine at NIH’s Rural Health Clinic
(RHC). We have also recently met with a potential general surgery



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012

Regular Meeting

Page 3 of 6

CHIEF OF STAFF
REPORT

NEW BUSINESS

CONSTRUCTION
CHANGE ORDER
REQUEST

EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE
STORE PROPOSAL

PHYSICIAN
AGREEMENTS WITH
CATHERINE LEJA, MD

CHIEF OF EKG
SERVICES
AGREEMENT, ASAO
KAMEIL M.D.

candidate, and we intend to meet with a family practitioner during the
next couple of weeks as well,

Chief of Staff Robbin Cromer-Tyler M.D. reported that following careful
review and consideration by the appropriate committees, the Medical
Executive Committee recommends the following Medical Staff
appointments:
1. Kristin Collins, D.O.; Staff Appointment, Clinical Privileges
2. Robert Frankel, P.A.; Delegation of Services Agreement, Clinical
Privileges
3. Lyn Leventis, M.D.; Resignation of Staff Appointment, Clinical
Privileges
It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. Hayden, and passed
to approve all three Medical Staff recommendations as requested.

Mr. Halfen called attention to Construction Change Order Request (COR)
#349, for chiller piping replacement. He requested Board approval to
settle payment of this COR in an amount not to exceed $85,000, because
he does not feel the District should be responsible for the entire amount of
this COR, and he would like to negotiate with the parties involved to
settle for a lesser amount. It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded
by Ms. Hubbard, and passed to allow Mr. Halfen to negotiate the cost of
COR #349, and to process payment in an amount not to exceed $85,000.

Mr. Halfen reported that this agenda item will be tabled for discussion to
the next regular meeting.

Mr. Halfen called attention to the following proposed agreements with
Catherine Leja, M.D.:

1. Rural Health Clinic Staff Physician Agreement

2. Relocation Expense Agreement

3. Private Practice Income Guarantee
The proposed agreements are typical of those we have previously entered
into with other physicians who have relocated to this area in order to
practice medicine. Following review of the information provided it was
moved by Doctor Clark, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and passed to approve
all three agreements with Catherine Leja, M.D. as requested.

Mr. Halfen also called attention to a proposed renewal agreement for the
Services of Chief of the Electrocardiographic (EKG) Department with
Asao Kamei, M.D.. The proposed agreement constitutes a straight
renewal of Dr. Kamei’s existing contract, with no changes being made
except to the term of the agreement. It was moved by Ms. Hubbard,



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012

Regular Meeting

Page 4 of 6

ORTHOPEDIC
SERVICES M.O.U. WITH
MAMMOTH HOSPITAL

RENEWAL OF PRIVATE
PRACTICE PHYSICIAN
INCOME GUARANTEE
& PRACTICE
MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT, LARA
JEANINE ARNDAL, MD

EXTENSION OF RURAL
HEALTH CLINIC
AGREEMENTS WITH
TOM BOO, M.D. AND
STACEY BROWN, M.D.

RENEWAL OF EKG
SERVICES :
AGREEMENTS WITH
JAMES RICHARDSON,
MD, AND NICKOLINE
HATHAWAY, MD

seconded by Ms. Hayden, and passed to approve the proposed agreement
for Chief of EKG Services with Dr. Kamei as requested.

Mr. Halfen then called attention to a list of bullet points he would like
approved to be incorporated into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) for orthopedic services between NIH and Mammoth Hospital.
The proposed MOU will allow for sharing orthopedic surgeons Mark
Robinson, M.D., and Timothy Crall, M.D. amicably between the two
hospital facilities. The intent of the MOU is to allow the surgeons to
provide services at both facilities with no incentive being given to
encourage patients to receive services at either facility over the other.
Once the Boards of both hospitals approve the MOU bullet points, they
will have attorneys draft an agreement. NIH will bill for the facility
component of services provided here, and will provide staff and office
space at 152 Pioneer Lane, Suite A. The physicians will bill for their own
professional fees, and Dr. Crall will be asked to apply for Medical Staff
privileges at NIH as soon as possible. The bottom line will be that
patients can be seen at whichever facility they prefer, and NIH will have
additional orthopedic coverage. Following brief discussion it was moved
by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by M.C. Hubbard and passed to approve
the bullet points for the Draft MOU for Orthopedic Services with
Mammoth Hospital as requested

Mr. Halfen called attention to a proposed Private Practice Physician
Income Guarantee and Practice Management Agreement with OB/Gyn
Lara Jeanine Arndal, M.D.. Her renewal salary is slightly above 50% of
the industry standard, and this agreement includes minor changes to
equalize the practice in the event that a new partner comes on board. It
was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. Hayden, and passed to
approve the renewal agreement with Lara Jeanine Arndal, M.D. as
requested.

Mr. Halfen also called attention to proposed extensions of the agreement
for the Services of the Director of the Rural Health Clinic with Stacy
Brown, M.D., and for the RHC Staff Physician Agreement with Thomas
Boo, M.D.. Mr. Halfen is still negotiating some of the details in both
renewal agreements, and the extensions will allow him additional time in
which to do so. It was moved by Ms. Hayden, seconded by Ms. Hubbard
and passed to approve the extensions of both agreements as requested.

Mzr. Halfen also called attention to renewal agreements for the
Electrocardiographic services of James Richardson, M.D. and Nickoline
Hathaway, M.D.. Both agreements constitute straight renewals of the
physicians’ existing agreements, with a change only being made to the
term of each agreement. It was moved Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms.
Hayden, and passed to approve the EKG renewal agreements with




Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012

Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6
Doctors Richardson and Hathaway as requested.
DISTRICT BOARD Mr. Halfen called attention to proposed District Board Resolution 12-07,
RESOLUTION 12-07 and proposed District Ordinance 12-01, which would allow for the
AND DISTRICT BOARD  issuance of bonds and the sale of bonds required to refinance the Districts’

ORDINANCE 12-01

BOARD MEMBER
REPORTS

OPPORTUNITY FOR
PUBLIC COMMENT

CLOSED SESSION

RETURN TO OPEN
SESSION AND REPORT
OF ACTION TAKEN

OPPORTUNITY FOR
PUBLIC COMMENT

1998 revenue bond issue. The refinance would save the District
approximately $800,000 over the life of the bonds, and would change the
covenants of the existing bonds to be less restrictive. Bond counsel is
currently reviewing the documents involved, and Quint and Thimmig LLP
will be processing the transaction. A question was asked regarding
whether or not the refinanced bonds will be available for purchase by
persons in our local community, and Mr. Halfen responded that it is
possible, but not likely, because the bonds are typically sold as a block.
Following review and discussion of the proposed transaction it was
moved by Ms, Hubbard, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and passed to
approve both District Board Resolution 12-07 and District Board
Ordinance 12-01 as requested, in order to allow for the refinancing of the
1998 revenue bonds.

Mr. Watercott asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to
report on any items of interest. No reports were heard.

In keeping with the Brown Act, Mr. Watercott again asked if any
members of the public wished to comment on any items listed on the
agenda for this meeting or on any items of interest. No comments were
heard.

At 6:53pm Mr. Watercott announced the meeting was being adjourned to

closed session to allow the Board of Directors to:

A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities, and hear a
report from the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155
of the Health and Safety Code, and Government Code Section
54962).

B. Confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation based on stop
notice filed by Strocal, Inc. (Government Code Sections 910 et seq.,
54956.9).

At 7:12pm the meeting returned to open session. Mr, Watercott reported
that the Board took no reportable action.

Mr. Watercott again asked if any members of the public or anyone present
wished to comment on any items listed on the agenda or on any items of
interest. He then commented that he has heard rumors regarding members
of the community, in particular Inyo County employees, having to go out
of the area for medical services, due to changes in their insurance policies,
and due to the fact that costs are lower at other facilities, M. Halfen



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors October 17, 2012
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6

responded that he has also heard of an increased number of District
residents traveling to the Carson City area for Radiology services, because
of the low cost. He additionally stated that unfortunately, there is nothing
we can do to complete with the prices offered by free-standing imaging
centers, who can provide services at a much lower cost than hospitals can.
We will continue to make every effort to keep our costs as low as
possible, and to provide as many services as possible for our local
residents. No other comments were heard.

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 7:20pm.

Peter Watercott, President

Attest:

M.C. Hubbard, Secretary



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



10/24/2012 18:45:32

Page 1of 2

Northern inyo Hospital

Current Assets:

Cash and Equivaliants
Shont-Term Investments
Assets Limited as to Use
Plant Replacement and Expansion Fund
Other Investments
Patient Receivable

Less: Aliowances

Other Receivables
Inventories

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Internally Designated for Capital Acquistions

Special Purpose Assets

Revenue Bonds Held by a Trustes

Less Amounts Required to Meet Current Ob

Assets Limited as to use

Long Term Investments

Property & equipment, net Accumulated Deg

Unamortized Bond Costs

Total Assets

Balance Sheet
For Period: 2-2013 (08/01/2012 - 08/31/2012)

YTD Balance

$666,813
$4,043,329
$0

$1
$1,278,079
$41,393,268
$-28,101,726
$706,713
$2,653,120
$1,218,903
$23,858,500

$826,931
$759,044

$2,540,106
$0
$4,126,079

$100,000

$86,752,917
$896,159

$115,733,654



10/24/2012 19:45:32 Northern Inyo Hospital
Page 2 of 2 Balance Sheet
For Period: 2-2013 (08/01/2012 - 08/31/2012)

YTD Balance
Liabilifies and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $-1,734,168
Accounts Payable $1,713,119
Accured Salaries, Wages & Benefits $-3,454,165
Accrued Interest and Sales Tax $-599,213
Deferred Income $-423,967
Due to 3rd Party Payors $-2,516,566
Due to Specific Purpose Funds $-58,539
Total Current Liabilites $-10,499,735
Long Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $-47,792,043
Bond Premium $-1,316,567
Total Long Term Debt $-49,108,610
Net Assets
Unresfricted Net Assets $-55,366,265
Temporerily Restricted $-759,044
Net Income
Total Net Assets $-56,125,309

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $-115,733,654



Page 1 of 1

10/24/2012 19:38:58

Unrestricted Revenues, Gains & Other Support

Inpatient Service Revenue
Ancillary

Routine

Total Enpatient Service Revenue
Outpatient Service Revenue
Gross Patient Service Revenue

Less Deductions from Revenue
Patient Service Revenue Deductions
Contractual Adjustments

Prior Period Adjustments

Total Deductions from Patient Service Revenue

Net Patient Service Revenue

Other revenue

Transfers from Restricted Funds for Operating Exp

Total Other Revenue

Expenses:

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Professional Fees
Supplies

Purchased Services
Depreciation
Interest Expense
Bad Debts

Qther Expense
Total Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Other Income:

District Tax Receipts

Partnership Investment Incomce

Grants and Other Contributions Unrestricted
interest income

Other Non-Operating Income

Net Medical Office Activity

340B Net Activity

Non-Operating income/Loss

Net income/Loss

August

678,056
2,723,929
3,401,986
5,691,688
9,093,674

(129,435}
(3,484,156)

(3.613,591)

5,480,083

13,485
102,014
115,498

1,765,365
1,353,660
463,145
525,610
204,510
196,192
186,555
381,251
299,838
5,376,128

219,453

42,397

10,193
22,008
(62,471)
31,607
43,825

263,278

Statement of Operation
Monthly Statement of Operations

For Period: 2-2013 (08/01/2012 - 08/31/2012)

MTD Budget

580,728
1,921,142
2,501,870
5,710,301
8212171

(178,677)
(3,025,793)

157,464
(3,047,006)

5,165,165

27,782
98,467
126,249

1,799,842
1,118,159
489,061
526,582
237,467
322,518
185,593
203,071
252,857
5,146,150

145,264

44,530
3,822
21,233
7,252
3,144
(84,931)
47,254
42,304

187,568

MTD

Variance

97,328
802,787
900,116
(18613)
881,503

49,242
(458,363)
(157,464)
(566,585)

314,918

(14,297)
3,547
(10,751)

(34,477)
234,501
(35,918)
(972)
(32,957)
(126,326)
962
178,180
46,981

229,978

74,189

(2,133)
(3,822)
(21,233)
2,941
18,954
22,460
(15,647)
1,621

75,710

Actual YTD  YTD Budget
1,378,794 1,161,456
5,419,472 3,842,284
6,798,266 5,003,740

11,584,301 11,420,602
18,382,566 16,424,342
(238,878) (357,354}
(6,685,771) (6,051,586)
859,102 314,928
(6,065,546) (6,094,012)
12,317,020 10,330,330
45,462 55,564
204,027 196,934
249,489 252,498
3,526,074 3,599,684
2,121,226 2,238,318
867,613 998,122
1,282,993 1,053,164
408,830 474,934
392,254 645,036
373,190 371,186
547,242 406,142
579,271 505,714
10,098,693 10,262,300
2,467,817 290,528
84,793 89,060

0 7,644

45576 42,466
19,155 14,504
30,406 6,288
(244,041) (169,862}
12,021 94,508
(52,091) 84,608
2,415,726 375,136

TD

Variance

217,338
1,577,188
1,794,526

163,699
1,968,224

118,476
(634,185)
544,174
28,466

1,986,690

(10,102)
7,093
(3,009)

(73,610)
(117,092}
(130,509)

229,829

(66,104)
(252,782)

2,004
141,100
73,557
(193,607)

2,177,289

(4,267)
(7,644)
3,110
4,651
24,118
(74,179)
(82,487)
(136,699)

2,040,580



88°8TECHIFS

00°000°001 %01  "dio) IoNseayUoN [eoURMy  DNJ VAOL JO Alg-ued oqnday] 11 S1-AeIN-0T 01-ABIN-0T ¥
00°000°0S1 %0tz dio) IseayuoN [eoueuly  DNJ vVAO4 o AlQ-ueg otqnday] ISy €1-A2A-0T 01-AeIN-0T £
£8'802°TLS E %10°0 201AIRG Jueg-HINA] SO queg-Lapy Z1-dsS-1¢ Z1-8ny-¢1 z
S0'0ZIIZE %P0°0 [eNdsoH OAuT WIsyLoN (pung Iayre M) A1v'T 21-d9S-10 Z1-8ny-20 I

pejseAu] fedioulld ejey . lsxoig N _ uonpnisy] eyeq Aunely sleq eseydind (|




Northern Inyo Hospitai

Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012

As of August 31, 2012
MONTH
APPROVED
BY BOARD DESCRIPTION OF APPROVED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AMOUNT

Fy 2011-12 Transport Monitor for PACU to be purchased by NiH Auxillary Donation 15,000 *
Additional Coppper and Fiberoptic Cable 29,834
Paragon Physician Documentation Module 137,254
Ultrasound Machine 153,000
AMOUNT APPROVED BY THE BOARD IN THE PRIOR FISCAL
YEARS TO BE EXPENDED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR 335,138
AMOUNT APPROVED BY THE BOARD IN THE CURRENT FISCAL
YEAR TO BE EXPENDED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR
Amount Approved by the Board in Prior Fiscal Years
to be Expended in the Current Fiscal Year 335,138
Amount Approved by the Board in the Current Fiscal
Year to be Expended in the Current Fiscal Year 0
Year-to-Date Board-Approved Amount to be Expended 335,138
Year-to-Date Administrator-Approved Amount 9,906 *
Actually Expended in Current Fiscal Year 0 *
Year-to-Date Completed Building Project Expenditures 0*
TOTAL FUNDS APPROVED TO BE EXPENDED 345,044
Total-to-Date Spent on Incomplete Board Approved Expenditures 0

Reconciling Totals:

Actually Capitalized in the Current Fiscal Year Total-to-Date 9,906
Plus: Lease Payments from a Previous Period 0
Less: Lease Payments Due in the Future 0
Less: Funds Expended in a Previous Period 0
Plus: Other Approved Expenditures 335,138

ACTUAL FUNDS APPROVED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR TOTAL-TO-DATE

345,044



Northern Inyo Hospital
Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012

As of August 31, 2012
MONTH
APPROVED

BY BCARD DESCRIPTION OF APPROVED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AMOUNT
Donations by Auxiliary For 2012 Asset receive 2013 20,000
Donations by Hospice of the Owens Valley 0
+Tobacco Funds Used for Purchase 0
0
20,000

*Completed Purchase
{Note: The budgeted amount for capital expenditures for all priority requests for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013, is $943,036 coming from existing hospital funds.)

**Completed in prior fiscal year




Northern Inyo Hospital
Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012

As of August 31, 2012
Month
Administrator-Approved Item(s} Department Amount Total
COMPACT AIRWAY GAS MODULE BIOMEDICAL ENGINEERING 5,340
Sonosite Ultrasound; Sales Tax EMERGENCY ROOM 4,567

{part of a June Board Approved Asset)
MONTH ENDING JULY 2012 9,906

Grand
Total

9,906




11/05/2012 11:26:42 Northern Inyo Hospital
Page 1 of 2 Balance Sheet
For Period: 3-2013 (09/01/2012 - 09/30/2012)

YTD Balance
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivaliants $748,872
- Short-Term Investments $4,043,360
' Assets Limited as to Use $0
Plant Replacement and Expansion Fund $2
Other Investments $1,278,079
Patient Receivable $40,467 400
Less: Allowances $-27,658,377
Qther Receivables $810,434
Inventories $2,735,191
Prepaid Expenses $1,263,599
Total Current Assets $23,688,561
Internally Designated for Capital Acquistions $826,963
Special Purpose Assets $744,063
Revenue Bonds Held by a Trustee $2,677,002
Less Amounts Required to Meet Current Ob 50
Assets Limited as to use $4,248,118
Long Term Investments $100,000
Property & equipment, net Accumulated Deg $88,617,769
Unamortized Bond Costs $892,534

Total Assets $117,546,981




11/05/2012 11:26:42 Northern Inyo Hospital
Page 2 of 2 Balance Sheet
For Period: 3-2013 (09/01/2012 - 09/30/2012)

YID Balance
Liabilities and Net Assels
Current Liabilifies:
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $-1,732,832
Accounts Payable $-2,139,138
Accured Salaries, Wages & Benefits $-3,783,930
Accrued Interest and Sales Tax $-770,513
Deferred Income $-381,570
Due to 3rd Party Payors $-2,516,666
Due to Specific Purpose Funds $-58,539
Total Current Liabilites $-11,383,088
Long Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $-48,406,570
Bond Premium $-1,312,224
Total Long Term Debt $-49,718,794
Net Assels
Unrestricted Nef Assets $-55,701,037
Tempororily Restricted $-744,063
Net Income
Total Net Assets $-56,445,100

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $-117,546,981




12/10/2012 15:08:01 Statement of Operation

Monthly Statement of Operations
For Period: 3-2013 (09/01/2012 - 09/30/2012)

Page 1 of 1

September MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD YTD Budget YTD
Variance Variance

Unrestricted Revenues, Gains & Gther Support
Inpatient Service Revenue
Ancillary 468,426 561,994 (93,568) 1,847,220 1,723,450 123,770
Routine 1,673,389 1,859,170 (185,781} 7,092,861 5,701,454 1,391,407
Total inpatient Service Revenueg 2,141,815 2,421,164 (279,349) 8,840,081 - 7,424,904 1,816,177
Qutpatient Service Revenue 5,432,162 5,526,088 (93,926) 17,016,462 16,946,690 69,772
Gross Patient Service Revenue 7,573,977 7,947,252 (373,275) 25,956,543 24,371,594 1,584,949
Less Deductions from Revenue
Patient Service Revenue Deductions {207 .416) (172,913) (34,503) {446,294) (530,267) 83,973
Contractual Adjustments (2,808,079) (2,928,189) 120,110 (9,493,850) (8,979,775)  (514,075)
Prior Period Adjustments {898) 162,384  (153,282) 858,204 467,312 390,892
Total Deductions from Patient Service Revenue (3,016,393) (2,948,718) {67,675) (9.081,939) (9,042,730} (39,209)
Net Patient Service Revenue 4,557,683 4,998,534 (440,951) 16,874,604 16,328,864 1,545,740
Other revenue 515,865 26,883 488,982 561,328 82,447 478,881
Transfers from Restricted Funds for Operating Exp 102,014 95,290 6,724 306,041 282,224 13,817
Total Other Revenue 617,879 122,173 485,706 867,368 374,671 492,697
Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 1,674,868 1,741,779 (66,911} 5,200,941 5,341,463 {140,522}
Employee Benefits 1,228,806 1,083,053 145,853 3,350,132 3,321,371 28,761
Professional Fees 493,051 482 967 10,084 1,360,664 1,481,089 {120,425)
Supplies 488,018 509,590 (11,572) 1,781,012 1,562,754 218,258
Purchased Services 212 435 229,801 {17,366) 621,265 704,735 (83,470)
Depreciation 197,312 312,114 (114,802) 589,565 957,150  (367,585)
Interest Expense 186,228 179,606 6,622 559,418 550,792 8,626
Bad Debts 170,888 196,520 {25,632) 718,130 602,662 115,468
Other Expense 320,855 244,701 76,154 900,126 750.415 149,711
Total Expenses 4,982,560 4,980,131 2,429 15,081,253 15,272,431 {191,178)
Operating Income (Loss) 192,902 140,576 52,326 2,660,719 431,104 2,229,615
Other Income:
District Tax Receipts 42,397 43,093 {696) 127,190 132,153 {4,963)
Partnership investment Incomce 3,699 {3,699) 0 11,343 (11,343)
Grants and Other Contributions Unrestricted 20,548 (20,548) 45,576 63,014 (17,438)
Interest Income 8,585 7,019 1,566 27,740 21,623 6,217
Qther Non-Operating Income 2,116 3,043 (927) 32,522 9,331 23,191
Net Medical Office Activity (111,206} (82,188) (29,018} (355,247) (252,050} (103,197}
340B Net Activity 183,066 45,730 137,336 195,087 140,238 54,849
Non-QOperating Income/Loss 124,958 40,944 84,014 72,867 125,552 (52,685)
Net Income/Loss 317,860 181,520 136,340 2,733,586 556,656 2,176,930



Purchase Dt Matarity Dt

s N =

T

koS A W
R S R R S

9/2/2012
9/16/2012
5/20/2010
5/20/2010

10/1/2012
10/3/2012
5/20/2013
5/20/2015

Institution Principal
LAIF {(Walker Fund) Northern Inyo Hospital 0.03%  321,120.05
Multi-Bank Securities Multi-Bank Service 0.01% 3,572,240.06
First Republic Bank-Div of BOFA Financial Northeaster Corp. 2.40% 150,000.00
First Republic Bank-Div of BOFA Financial Northeaster Corp. 3.10% 100,000.00
Total $4,143,360.11




12/06/2012 15:48:10

Page 10f 2

Northern Inyo Hospital

Balance Sheet

For Period: 4-2013 (10/01/2012 - 10/31/2012)

Current Assets:

Cash and Equivaliants
Short-Term investments
Assets Limited as to Use
Plant Replacement and Expansion Fund
Other Investments
Patient Receivable

Less: Allowances

Other Receivables
Inventories

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Internally Designated for Capital Acquistions

Special Purpose Assets

Revenue Bonds Held by a Trustee

Less Amounts Required o Meet Current Obligations

Assets Limited as to use

Long Term investments

YTD Balance

$2,269,920
$3,043,672
30

%2
$1,278,079
$38,232,491
$-26,885,031
$210,770
$2,822,391
$1,282,941
$22,255,234

$826,999
$37,755

$2,814,075
$0

Property & equipment, net Accumulated Depreciation

Unamortized Bond Costs

Total Assets

$3,678,830

$100,000

$89,523,875
$888,908

$116,446,847




12/06/2012 15:48:10 Northern |nyo Hospita|
Page 2 of 2 Balance Sheet

| For Period: 4-2013 (10/01/2012 - 10/31/2012)

YTD Balance
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $-1,303,862
Accounts Payable $-1,708,606
Accured Salaries, Wages & Benefits $-3,981,675
Accrued Interest and Sales Tax $-410,267
Deferred Income $-339,174
Due to 3rd Party Payors $-1,900,000
Due to Specific Purpose Funds $-58,539
Total Current Liabilites $-9,792,123
Long Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $-48,997.228
Bond Premium $-1,307,882
Total Long Term Debt $-50,305,109
Net Assefs
Unrestricted Net Assets $-56,311,860
Tempororily Restricted $-37,755
Net Income
Total Net Assets $-56,349,615

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $-116,446,847




Page 1 of 1

12/10/2012 15:07:48

Unrestricted Revenues, Gains & Other Support

Inpatient Service Revenue
Ancillary

Routine

Total Inpatient Service Revenue
Qutpatient Service Revenue
Gross Patient Service Revenue

Less Deductions from Revenue
Patient Service Revenue Deductions
Contractual Adjustments

Prior Period Adjustments

Total Deductions from Patient Service Revenue

Net Patient Service Revenue

Other revenue

Transfers from Restricted Funds for Operating Exp

Total Other Revenue

Expenses:

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Professional Fees
Supplies
Purchased Services
Depreciation
Interest Expense
Bad Debts

Cther Expense
Total Expenses

QOperating Income (Loss)

Other Income:

District Tax Receipts

Partnership Investment Incomee

Grants and Other Contributions Unrestricted
Interest Income

Other Non-Operating Income

Net Medical Office Activity

340B Net Activity

Non-Cperating Income/Loss

Net Income/Loss

October

488,249
2,042,715
2,630,963
5,784,500
8,315,463

(311,857)
(3,067,534)
830,699
(2,548,693)

5,766,771

14,172
102,014
116,186

1,808,168
1,038,064
523,952
201,326
338,520
198,060
190,664
412,266
281,629
5,082,648

800,308

42,397

10,273

4,076
(123,462)
(120,925)
(187,641)

612,667

Statement of Operation
Monthly Statement of Operations

For Period: 4-2013 (10/01/2012 - 10/31/2012)

MTD Budaet

580,728
1,921,142
2,501,870
5,710,301
8,212,171

(178,677)
(3,025,793)
157,464
(3,047,008)

5,165,165

27,782
98,467
126,249

1,799,842
1,118,159
499,061
526,582
237,467
322,518
185,593
203,071
252,857
5,146,150

145,264

44,530
3,822
21,233
7,252
3,144
(84,931)
47,254
42,304

187,568

MTD

Variance

(92,479)
121,573
29,003
74,199
103,202

(133,180)
(41,741)
673,235
498,313

601,606

(13,610)
3,547
(10,063)

8,326
(81,095)
24,891
(235,256)
101,053
(124,458)
5,071
209,195
28,772
(63,502)

655,044

(2,133)
(3,822)
(21,233)
3,021
932
(38,531)
(168,179)
(229,945)

425,009

Actual YTD  YTD Budget
2,335,469 2,304,178
9,135,575 7,622,596

11,471,044 9,926,774
22,800,962 22,656,991
34,272,006 32,583,765
(758,151) (708,944)
(12,561,384)  (12,005,568)
1,688,903 624,776
(11,630,832)  (12,089,736)
22,641,374 20,494,029
575,500 110,229
408,054 390,691
983,554 500,920
7,009,109 7,141,305
4,388,196 4,440,530
1,884,616 1,980,150
2,072,338 2,089,336
959,785 942,202
787,626 1,279,668
750,082 736,385
1,130,396 805,733
1,181,755 1,003,272
20,163,902 20,418,581
3,461,027 576,368
169,587 176,683

0 15,165

45,576 84,247
38,013 28,775
36,597 12,475
(478,709) (336,981)
74,162 187,492
(114,774) 167,856
3,346,253 744,224

YTD
Variance

31,291
1,512,979
1,544,270

143,971
1,688,241

(49,207)
(555.816)
1,064,127

459,104

2,147,345

465,271
17,363
482,634

(132,198)
(52,334)
(95,534)
(16,998)
17,583
(492,042)
13,697
324,663
178,483

(254,679)

2,884,659

(7,098)
(16,165)
(38,671)

9,238
24,122
(141,728)
(113,330)
(282,630)

2,602,029



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL GROSS REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2012

REVENUE DEPARTMENT | OCT ACTUAL | QCT BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL | YTD BUDGET]
Surgery Inpatient Revenue 567,127 396,743 2,131,879 1,574,174
Surgery Outpatient Revenue 697,551 604,091 2,633,754 2,396,878
Total Surgery Revenue 1,264,678 1,000,834 4,765,633 3,971,052
Lab Inpatient Revenue 281,204 259,867 1,237,759 1,031,086
Lab Outpatient Revenue 989,519 1,063,795 4,066,163 4,220,860
Total Laboratory Revenue 1,270,722 1,323,662 5,303,922 5,251,946
Radiology Inpatient Revenue 137,668 100,348 600,058 398,157
Radiology Outpatient Revenue 1,547,311 1,436,965 5,944,989 5,701,506
Total Radiology Revenue ' 1,684,979 1,537,313 6,545,047 6,099,663
Pharmacy inpatient Revenue 472,879 567,934 2,467,609 2,253,415
Pharmacy Ouipatient Revenue 879,524 888,596 3,465,797 3,525,719
Total Pharmacy Revenue 1,352,402 1,456,530 5,933,406 5,779,134
All Other IP Revenue 1,072,086 1,176,978 5,033,739 4,669,942
All Other OP Revenue 1,670,596 1,716,854 6,690,260 6,812,028
Total All Other Revenue 2,742,681 2,893,832 11,723,999 11,481,970

Total Gross Revenue 8,315,463 8,212,171 34,272,006 32,583,765




Northern Inyo Hospital
Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012

As of October 31, 2012
MONTH
APPROVED
BY BOARD DESCRIPTION OF APPROVED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AMOUNT
Y 2011-12 Transport Monitor for PACU to be purchased by NIH Auxillary Donation 15,000 *

Additional Coppper and Fiberoptic Cable 29,884
Paragon Physician Documentation Module 137,254
Uitrasound Machine 165,694 *

AMOUNT APPROVED BY THE BCARD IN THE PRIOR FISCAL
YEARS TO BE EXPENDED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR 347,832

AMOUNT APPROVED BY THE BCARD IN THE CURRENT FISCAL
YEAR TO BE EXPENDED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR

Amount Approved by the Board in Prior Fiscal Years
to be Expended in the Current Fiscal Year 347,832

Amount Approved by the Board in the Current Fiscal

Year to be Expended in the Current Fiscal Year 0
Year-to-Date Board-Approved Amount to be Expended 347,832
Year-to-Date Administrator-Approved Amount 189,651 *
Actually Expended in Current Fiscal Year 0 *
Year-to-Date Completed Building Project Expenditures 0*
TOTAL FUNDS APPROVED TO BE EXPENDED 537,483
Total-to-Date Spent on Incomplete Board Approved Expenditures 0

Reconciling Totals:

Actually Capitalized in the Current Fiscal Year Total-to-Date 189,651
Plus: Lease Payments from a Previous Period 0
Less: Lease Payments Due in the Future 0
Less; Funds Expended in a Previous Period 0
Plus: Other Approved Expenditures 347,832

ACTUAL FUNDS APPROVED IN THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR TOTAL-TO-DATE 537,483




Northern Inyo Hospital
Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012

As of October 31, 2012
MONTH
APPROVED

BY BOARD DESCRIPTION OF APPROVED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AMOUNT
DPonations by Auxiliary For 2012 Asset receive 2013 20,000
Donations by Hospice of the Owens Valley 0
+Tobacco Funds Used for Purchase 0
0
20,000

*Completed Purchase
(Note: The budgeted amount for capital expenditures for all priority requests for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2013, is $943,036 coming from existing hospital funds.)

**Completed in prior fiscal year




Northern Inyo Hospital

Monthly Report of Capital Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ending JUNE 30, 2012
As of October 31, 2012

Administrator-Approved Item(s)

DSG SYSTEM UPGRADE

PHILIPS AVALON FM30 FETAL MONITOR
EXCELCARE BARIATRIC BED

MONTH ENDING OCTOBER 2012

Department

BILLINGS OFFICE

OBSTETRICS

OBSTETRICS

Amount

20,800

13,789

29,622

Month
Total

64,211

Grand
Total

189,651




Northern Inyo Hospital

Investments as of 10/31/2012

Purchase Dt Maturity Dt Institution Rate Prineipal
1 10/13/2012 11/1/2012 LAIF (Walker Fund) 0.34% 321,406.75
2 10/15/2012 11/1/2012  Multi-Bank Securities 0.01%  2,572,264.81
3 5/20/2010 5/20/2013 First Republic Bank-Div of BOFA FNC 2.46% 150,000.00
4 5/20/2010 5/20/2015 First Republic Bank-Div of BOFA FNC 3.10% 100,000.00

Total

$3,143,671.56

12/6/2012 3:54:00 PM

Pagelofl



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE QUTSTANDING AND NUMBER OF DAYS OUTSTANDING
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013

OTHER PRIVATE

INSURANCE PAY  MEDICARE MEDI-CAL CMSP TOTAL

JULY
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

AUGUST
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

SEPTEMBER
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

OCTOBER
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

NOVEMBER
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

DECEMBER
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

JANUARY
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

FEBRUARY
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

MARCH
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

APRIL
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

MAY
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

JUNE
AMOUNT
NUMBER OF DAYS

6,423,825.29
65.10

6,633,217.05
67.90

6,076,788.83
60.80

6,018,947 .43
61.90

3,043,986.10
204.20

2,988,625.79
166.90

3,066,774.62
204.40

2,735,377.84
228.70

6,709,768.57
59.90

7,063,126.50
£0.10

6,121,031.30
52.60

5,213,500.89
45.70

4,478,088.68
98.80

4,443,211.66
108.80

4,465,892.20
115.90

3,224,631.35
88.00

772,591.13
78.50

926,030.13
99.20

1,239,575.13
100.90

1,175,060.70
101.10

21,428,250.77
76.30

22,043,211.13
77.90

20,970,062.08
74.30

18,367,518.21
67.60



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



NEW

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia Clinical Standards and Professional Conduct
Scope: Department: Anesthesia
Source: OR Nurse Manager Effective Date: ' ,

PURPOSE:

To assure all peri-operative patients receive the same quality of care when undergomg a surgical mterventlon
requiring an anesthetic.

POLICY:

1. The anesthesiologist shall test and calibrate the anesthe
starting each case. '
e Any fault or leakage is immediately corrected, or equn

until appropriately repaired. :

2. Patient identification and surgical consents are checked p
the operating room.

3.
day should be
will be done on a "to
4 yanesthesxa staff.

5. The Anesthesiologist:s‘ onstantly a tt nd:and monitor the patient during anesthesia. The
-and the data“&m' ed fmm them shall be recorded on the anesthetic

6.

7.

8 Patients are transported to the operating room on a gurney with the side rails up, and are not left
unattended. Children may be carried to the "Red Line" by their parent with consent of
Anesthesiologist.

9. Only members of the operating team and authorized observers shall be present in the operating

room during the administration of anesthesia and surgical procedure.

10.  No flammable anesthetic agents will be used. All electrical equipment shall be properly
grounded and attention paid promptly to the audiovisual electrical isolation monitor signals. All



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
-Title: Anesthesia Clinical Standards and Professional Conduct
Scope: Department: Anesthesia
Source: OR Nurse Manager Effective Date:

anesthetic waste gasses are scavenged through the suction system directly to the external -
environment. :

11.  Elective surgical patients who are to receive general or regional anesthesia should be
*"NOTHING BY MOUTH" as determined by the Guideliesgﬁ PO Status. This does not
apply to patients considered to be surgical emergencies. EXception to the ilation may be
made by the anesthesiologist if, in his/her opinion, suchgn exception da
additional hazard to the patient.

12.  Pre-operative medication shall be ordered or reviewed b rak >
each case and be specific for each patient. ;

A

. &
d discharge from the post
Tse upon patient arrival

X YES SURGERYTISSUE/ANESTHESIA
@@ INTENANCE: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Nurse
siglogists :

INDEX LISTINGS: Standards andProfessional Conduct Anesthesia / Conduct of Anesthesia/
Anesthesia Standards

REVISED 01/01 ; 12/2011 BS. 10/21/12 PM




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia in Ancillary Departments
Scope: Department: Anesthesia /OB/ER
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:
To provide direction and clarification of requirements when anesthesia is administered in any department other
than the Operating Room.

POLICY:
It is standard of practice at Northern Inyo Hospital to do proced 1
In the event that an anesthetic must be done in an ancillary deparfment, such
Obstetrical Unit, the following procedure will be utilized.

sthy ‘"‘“§i’a in the Surgical Suites.
¢ Emergency Room or

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
Physician order required.
Procedure may be performed by a qualified Anesthesiologist w1th ;3;1-.

i

m taff privileges.

EQUIPMENT:

Anesthesia Machine (from Operating room if nec.
Appropriate monitoring equipment {Cardiac, O
Suction equipment available
Emergency Medications available
Crash cart

ko=

PROCEDURE:

[an—y

2.
3.
4

; Eonents
3 the ane

xgr*

{ patient as long as required by his condition and until
are has been gssumed by a qualified individual.

respons1b111ty fo
the saxnél%evel of care as all anesthetized recovery patients. (See Post

7. Patients must be ren
Anesthesia Care Uni

8. The release of the patient”
physician.

9. Patients having received anesthesia must be discharged to a responsible individual

m%° ancillary department following anesthesia may only be made by a

DOCUMENTATION:
Documentation of pertinent patient information must be noted on the anesthetic record following guidelines
established for patients receiving anesthesia (see policy on Anesthesia record)

Reference: Title #22, #70237, # 70235, #70233, JCAHO 1933 SA. 1.5, SA. 1.6 JCAHO 1933 SA.2
Committee Approval Needed: Yes X Surgery Tissue/Anesthesia 2/95



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia in Ancillary Departments
Scope: - Department: Anesthesia /OB/ER
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

Responsibility for Review and Maintenance: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Nurse Manager/

Anesthesiologist
Index Listings: Anesthesia in Ancillary Departments; Anesthesia in Perinatal Unit; Anesthesia in Emergency
Room '

Revised: 4/94

Reviewed: 01/98, 01/01; 12/2011BS TS, 10/21/12 PM




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL N E\(\/

POLICY AND PROCEDURE

-TitIe: Anesthesia Philosophy

Scope: Department: Anesthesia/ Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Effective Date: .
Nurse Manager

It is the philosophy and goal of the Surgical/Anesthesia Service of Northern Inyo Hospital to provide each
individual patient the highest quality of care and to meet his physi %gg@al aﬂd psychologlcal needs both
intraoperative and immediate postoperative phase in the Post A;: 8

gques and procedures and by
inuing education.

COMMITTEE APPROVAL NEEDED: x YES NO Surgery Tissue
Review and consent of approval by anesthesmlog1st

é’?Depai?tment




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia Privileges for Staff Physicians
Scope: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Department: Anesthesia

Nurse Manager/Staff Anesthesiologists

Source: Surgery /PACU Nurse Managers

PURPOSE:
To clarify anesthesia privileges for staff physicians.

POLICY:
All credentialing for medical staff is completed by the Medical St

CLASS I PRIVILEGES:

Such privileges are to be granted to those members of the Medic
infiltration anesthesia, topical application and minor nerve blocks.

CLASS II PRIVILEGES:

7. The clinical manageme%?‘o' “various fluid, elecirolyte and metabolic disturbances. When Class 111
privileges are granted, they should be accompanied by specific limitations where indicated.

DOCUMENTATION:

Anesthesia privileges granted to practitioners of the Medical Staff are specified on the "Clinical
Privilege" form completed by each individual physician and approved by the Governing Body of the
Medical Staff.

A current copy of Clinical Privileges for each Practitioner on the Medical Staff is located in the
Operating Room Nurse Manager’s Office for clarification if necessary. They are kept in a large Black
Binder labeled Physician Privileges.




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Anesthesia Privileges for Staff Physicians

Scope: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Department: Anesthesia
Nurse Manager/Staff Anesthesiologists

Source: Surgery /PACU Nurse Managers

REFERENCE: Current and Relevant JCAHO and Title 22 Standards /Medical Staff Bylaws
COMMITTEE APPROVAL NEEDED:  YES _ NO SURGERY TISSUE COMMITTEE
RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW AND MAINTENANCE: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU

INDEX LISTINGS: Anesthesia Privileges for Staff Physicians/
Physicians o
REVISED: 01/01 [2/12 BS TS, 10/21/12 PM




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia Record
Scope: Department. Anesthesia
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:

To assure pertinent patient information is appropriately documented on the anesthetic record according to
hospital requirecments.

M%i@”a;

SRR

POLICY:
PRE-ANESTHETIC:

*j:f“

or progress notes.

e The pre-anesthetic information is recorded on the Pre-Anesthesia Eyal

L

It will include but not limited to:

Patient’s previous drug history.
Previous anesthesia experience and problems.
Potential anesthesia problems identified.

The anticipated surgical or obstetrical proced
The specific anesthetic technique anticipate
Notation of anesthesia risk.
Anesthesia, drug and allergy history
Patient’s cond;'tion prior to induction:

ANESTHESIA RE@@ ‘

limited to:

1. Identification.

2. Physical status{(%.s A. Class)
3. Pre-Medlcatlon o d effect
4 4

5. Serial recording of'
6. Monitors used.

7. Use of airways.

8 The drugs used for anesthesia and other medications with time and dose.

9 The position of the patient during the anesthesia.

10.  The details of the anesthetic technique.

11.  Estimated blood loss and urinary output.

12.  Condition of patient at time of termination of procedure.

13.  Fluids given, type and amount, identification of any blood components given.
14.  Surgeon and surgery performed.

15.  Anesthesiologist in attendance.

16.  Beginning and ending time of anesthetic and surgery.

17.  Documentation of tourniquet pressures and length of time inflated.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Anesthesia Record
Scope: Department: Anesthesia
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:
18.  Verification of “Time Out.”

POST-ANESTHESIA:

B

DOCUMENTATION: g

Post-operative visits will be recorded on the evaluation
At least one note will descnbe the presence or absence 9 ; an

Cardiopulmonary status
Level of Consciousness
Any follow-up care and/or observations
Any complications occurring during post- anesthesia recovery

-
-

8
x‘;x"

nesthetic recordgyf the progress

. g




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL ME\/\/

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Pre and Post Operative Anesthesia Visits
Scope: Department: Anesthesia
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:
To clarify requirements for pre and post operative anesthesia visits.
POLICY:

PRE- ANESTHESIA:

1. The preoperative visit shall be conducted personally, w
scheduled to provide care for the patient. % a i
2. The pre-operative visit shall include a disclosure of risks and opt &s, a formulatf’é
of anesthesia and informed consent given to the patient and or patient representativ
patient is not competent. - = e
3. A pre-operative note of the findings relating to anesthesia 1nclud1ng he plan of anesthesia, and
the patlent S mformed consent shall be pIaced in t >medi

: Ji% GSS notes.

anesthesia related complications.
stermined by the status of the patient. It
n.the post-operative period and after complete

Documentation of pertmeni’“pg% “}:%gatlon as designated above in the medical record.
COMMITTEE APPROVAL DED: ___ NO SURGERY TISSUE/ANESTHESIA
REFERENCE: Current and Relevant JCAHO and Title 22 Standards
RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW AND MAINTENANCE: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Nurse
Manager/Service Chief/Staff Anesthesiclogists
INDEX LISTINGS: Pre and Post Operative Anesthesia Visits

Anesthesia Visits/ Visits Anesthesia
REVISED; 01/01: 12/2011 BS TS, 10/21/12 PM




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Quality Improvement Program Anesthesia Service
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

Definition of quality patient care: The degree to which anesthetic care increases the probability of desired outcomes and
reduce the probability of undesirable outcomes, given the current status of knowledge.

OBJECTIVES:

1. To objectively and systematically monitor and evaluate the quality and-appr sss of patient care
on the Anesthesia Service.
To identify problem areas and opportunities for improvement
To develop corrective action programs and implement when &
To document corrective actions taken.
To evaluate the effectiveness of the corrective action using folloy

To ensure appropriate dissemination of quality management inf

VIR RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ANESTHESIA SECTION OF THE SURGICAL 'S 2

The members of the anesthesia staff will:

1. Delineate the scope of care provided within the

2. Develop critical indicators to be used as screeni sthesia patient care and services.

3. isolated using critical indicators.

4. Collect and organize this data.

5. Identify areas ggﬂ;%jgnprovement. )

6. Evaluate the appropriateness of the

7. Determine appropriate V

8. Report all incide cutive/Quality Improvement  committee.
SCOPE OF CARE

elective anesthesia serviggs are provided s, exgept holidays, and emergency services are provided with an
on-call anesthesiologist available within 30 nijnutes:during all off hours.

OV cal suite. Limited anesthesia care may be provided in the E.R.,
Perinatal Unit, ICU and R \ shed policies and procedures for ensuring patient safety. All patients
are appropriately monitore&@ﬁﬁ!iﬁ@ggggg@‘ suscitative supplies and equipment are readily available. Surgical
anesthesia care in the Operatii‘i"‘g%%g provided by anesthesiologists who by education and training are board
certified or board eligible. All other anesthésia services are provided by physicians having privileges approved by the
credentialing process.

gy following ¢

Services provided include provision of general, regional or sedation /monitored anesthesia care and may be selected by
the anesthesiologist as is indicated by the dictates of the patient’s condition and the procedure or surgical intervention to
be performed. Equipment includes: Anesthesia machines, Cardiac, Co2, and Oximetry monitors, which are checked and
maintained daily by trained surgery personnel and quarterly by a licensed and accredited anesthesia repair and
maintenance company.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Quality Improvement Program Anesthesia Service
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

IMPORTANT ASPECTS OF CARE:

1. Pre and post operative-patient assessment

2. Intra-operative anesthesia management, to include:
o Monitoring and maintenance of adequate anesthesia and adequacy of
e Positioning of patients to prevent neurologic damage

3. Checking and calibration of Anesthetic equipment and monitors

physiglogic homeostasis.

ANESTHESIA SENTINAL INDICATORS:

Unexpected unanticipated mortality within the same hospital stay, GN:
Cardiac arrest or Respiratory arrest within the same hospital stay
Failure to emerge from general anesthesia within 2 hours or regional anesth

Development of injury to the brain, spinal cord or peripherz hin the same l;%qspital stay

Aspiration of gastric contents
Ocular injury during Anesthesia care

. Reintubation in the operating room or PAC ok.u

10. Anaphalaxis “j;% ;

11. SAO2 less than 908 or more than 1¢:m

e Unplanned n-T ba
the phys:cal acto

[
L}
L J
[ ]
THRESHOLDS FOR csontls
COLLECTION AND OR ATION OEQJ’)iTA
Concurrent chart revié it ?
Incident reports : J
Infection control reports
Patient’s complaints / questionnaires
Direct observation
Quality improvement indicator flow sheets
EVALUATION OF CARE:

Preliminary screen by Chief of Anesthesia Service and QI Coordinator
Review by Anesthesia Service Chief, or designated physician
Peer Review at Anesthesia Committee

Identification of possible causes for inappropriate care:



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Quality Improvement Program Anesthesia Service
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

Lack of knowledge or skill

Knew what to do, but did not act

Equipment deficiency

Inappropriate delay in problem management

Inappropriate diagnostics and therapies

Inappropriate utilization of hospital or medical staff services

ACTION TAKEN:

After a problem and cause is identified:

Identify who or what needs to change

Identify who is responsible to implement the change
Identify appropriate action for problem cause, scope, and severity
Identify goal for when change will occur

Estainsh monitoring program for the Speciﬁc proble

v
6i’$é’ilure of action taken
aluation to ensure maintenance of

Evaluate concment monitoring at pred? ined time to
ot reshlve d, continue mon;

Revised 5/00; 12/2011 TS BS, 10/21/12 PM



o

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Responsibility of Service Perioperative
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:
PURPOSE:

To assure understanding of responsibility of service of Perioperative area.

POLICY;

SURGICAL/ ANESTHESIA SERVICE.:

The Chief of Surgery/Anesthesia is responsible for all m
activities in the operating room and ambulatory surgery
Bylaws and Rules and Regulations.

The chief of surgery serves as the chairman of the Surgery, Anestl
Tlssue Transfusmn Comm:ttee and has overall responmbﬂ'ty for

“'final standardsﬁand act1v1t1es in the

-oggcg;wv

The Chief of Surgery/Anesthesia is responsi
Anesthesia Service and is assisted with.med

%ﬁv 5
The Chief of Medi %;ﬁl@

The Operating Room %&} 5 oer is responsible to the Chief Nursing Officer and
Administration for developing: maintaining, monitoring and evaluating a high quality of nursing
care in the Perioperative area, and taking action as needed to ensure optimum quality care.

The Operating Room Nurse Manager is responsible to the Chief of Surgery for monitoring that
surgical privileges are strictly enforced and that there is adherence to the Rules of Surgery and of
keeping him informed of any problems in a timely manner.

The Operating Room Nurse Manager is assisted in maintenance of high quality care standards in
the PACU / Ambulatory Care unit by a PACU Nurse Manager who is responsible for
coordination of schedules ensuring patient safety and infection control practices, as well as
ensuring the proper function of equipment and the availability of required patient care supplies.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Responsibility of Service Perioperative

Scope:

Department: Anesthesia, PACU, Surgery

Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

of the Surgical service.

The PACU/OPD Nurse Manager is responsible to the Chief of Surgery/Anesthesia and the Staff
Anesthesiologists and the Chief Nursing Officer for maintenance of PACU Nursing Standards of
Care and for enforcement of PACU/Ambulatory Care Policies and Procedures.

chemotherapy, blood transfusions, etc.

The Operating Room Nurse Manager is 2 member of the §
Transfusion, Ambulatory Care Committee, Infection Contr
Safety Committee. She coordinates with these committees

The PACU/OPD Nurse Manager attends the Su.re YA
Medical Services Committee, Pharmacy Comﬂgﬁ 4
to these areas.

in the State of California,
f their Perioperative area.

Responsibility for review and mainten ance: Surgery Nurse Manager
Index listing: Perioperative/Anesthesia Responsibility of Service

Responsibility of Service Perioperative
Anesthesia Responsibility of Service

Revised: 02/01 BS 12/11 TS BS, 10/21/2012



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Restocking and Maintenance of Anesthesia Equipment
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:
To ensure that anesthesia machines are adequately supplied with pertinent equipment and supplies to facilitate

ultimate patient care.

To ensure that anesthesia machine is in working order and monitor equipment has been turned off at end of each
day and 02 sensor has been left open to reom air. (per Drager sg ‘reseﬁ%ativ

POLICY:

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
Physician order not required

Procedure may be performed by: X RN X L
Special education required to perform procedure: X:
Orientation and inservice on calibration of 02 sensor.on:
Orientation and inservice on anesthesia c =

PRECAUTIONS

outlets in ceiling conse inning of each day the 02 sensor on the anesthesia machine is to be
placed on the workspace ‘ofmachine for at least two minutes, open side up for calibration, press the 21%
on calibration panel, after green light comes on indicating that it Calibrated to 21%, secure the sensor
into its port labeled OXYGEN SENSOR ONLY on the inspiration side of machine. Turn oxygen flow
meter to 3-4 liters to keep alarm from alarming, Check that 02 monitor displays 100% during oxygen
flow.

2. Assure that the suction for anesthesiologist has been connected and that 02 is functional and is
ready for use.

3. At the start of, and end of, each day the designated nurse responsible for restocking the
anesthesia machine with medications and labels, etc. will ensure that the machine is adequately

supplied with:



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Restocking and Maintenance of Anesthesia Equipment

Scope:

Department: Anesthesia, Surgery

Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

Sufficient oral airways in specified sizes by the labels.
A full set of both regular and fiberoptic laryngoscope handle and blades in multiple sizes,
both MacIntosh and Miller.

e Nasal airways are supplied in sizes ranging from 28:36:%

when used. o
Adapters for supplying oxygen by cannula or mgs
Stylets for endotracheal tube insertion are suppligd.

least two are maintained at all times.

Masks are restocked in anesthesia machines.
Mc Gill forceps are provided in each room. )
Disposable humidifiers are supplied in each room@:%% "

There are inhalation agents with pin safety fillers provided i

sampling adapters are provided in each machine.

Esophageal temperature probes are disposéble. =

e All equipment listed is color coded fcg%é%gih Toon

returned to proper area. i &

e There is an Inspiratory Force ete%t“” d Wrig

on the BRONCHOSCOPY CART. =&

i F

r §%§plied which is kept

S

she will notify Biomedical to have

v

The D-Fend W ary and changed monthly per manufacture

guidelines.

filter under the suction controller that is connected to the
Drager Fabius GS anest] ine, per Drager manufacture literature.

The Drager anesthesia machines are serviced quarterly by a reputable company associated with
the repair, maintenance and calibration of anesthesia machines. If there is a malfunction ofa
machine between services, the machine is pulled from service. In house Biomedical person will
be notified and if necessary the service representative is called immediately and summoned on an
emergency basis to remedy the problem.

There is a registered nurse and surgical assistant assigned to the restocking and maintenance of
anesthesia equipment and will restock machines with proper equipment before leaving for the
day to ensure ultimate patient care. In their absence, there will be another registered nurse, or the



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

. POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Restocking and Maintenance of Anesthesia Equipment
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

Registered Nurse on call, assigned to this position with the approval of the surgical Nurse
Manager.

10. There is a list of all supplies stocked daily in the folder marked Anesthesia Supplies and Drugs
located on each anesthe31a cart. There are manuals on all Ane&th@gla%nomtors %nd Drager

REFERENCE: Current and Relevant JCAHO and TITLE 22 S :
COMMITTEE APPROVAL NOT NEEDED. ;

INDEX LISTINGS: Restocking and Maintenance of Anesthesm Eq T
Anesthesia Equipment Restocking of/ Calibrati ;
Sensor Anesthesia Machine k4
REVISED: 01/01 BS 12/2011 BS TS, 10/21/12 PM




New

Title: Scope of Anesthesia Practice

Scope:

Department: Anesthesia

Source: Surgery Nurse Manager/ Effective Date:
Anesthesiclogists '

POLICY:
Anesthesiology is a discipline within the practice of medicine dealing with but not
limited to, and specializing in:

1.

The preoperative, intraoperative and postoperative evaluation and treatment
of patients who are rendered unconscious and/or inse 5|ble to pam and
emotional stress during surgical, obstetrical, the g

i "zé’

other medical procedures. @

Monitoring and maintenance of normal physio
penod

Clinical management of cardiac and pulmonary resusata!iﬁiia
Evaluation of respiratory function and:apj ‘"ﬁ icatlon of resp'ﬁt@
Management of critically ill patleﬂdﬁfw -

Conduct of clinical, translationa
Supervision, teaching and evalu

therapy;

f2 D
b 5
P

Medical:maj
pro¢_:§w u

Po t anesthetic eva ;.‘3:%9 :
Per“ ioperative pain mat sgemght
: ¢

f‘?@* .

Index Listings: Anesthes:a Scope of Practice, Scope of Practice Anesthesia

Revised: 01/01 1/3/2011 BS, 10/21/12 PM



AN
NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL Nb

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Staffing Patterns Anesthesia
Scope: +| Department: Anesthesia
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

g

PURPOSE:
To assure adequate staffing to meet patient needs.
To assure the anesthesia department is covered for emergency procedures 24 hours a day.

POLICY: ‘
» Generally there are two anesthesiologists avallable durmg%ﬁ

anesthesiologist available on Fridays. ﬁ@\
An anesthesiologist will be on call at all times for emerg%% procejnp es. o _
The anesthesiologist on call must be available within 30 m;@% Bt emergency. prok dures. 4

Anesthesia Coverage:
» Anesthesia coverage is scheduled by the Anesthesiologists on Staff.

® The Medical Staff Coordinator will e-mail the p&‘@g 1] ﬁgy ¢rk and Surgery
2‘“&»«% @5}? ge
Nurse Manager. “ (

e This information will be reflected on the surg

Surgery Schedule: :
e Surgical procedures will be schedul

ithe surgical s
L request,
n call fof th
responsible ﬁzig: rocedures the second room.

iniaily follow “ﬁf’:’@ e first available room.

will be noted

The anes’theswl@%ii
anesthesiologist wi

e Emergency cases ng

. sﬂ"’f’fffhere is an emerg8hes” procedure the surgical clerk will attempt to contact
d” to come infor the emergency.

. Cedties sc@he,giuled for each room and the order they will proceed

‘e of an anesthestologist will be scheduled to follow each other
each day that there is only one anesthesiologist available.

ety

REFERENCE: Current and ﬁég' ALy wﬂ@"’"AHO and Title 22 Standards
COMMITTEE APPROVAL NEEDED: NO YES SURGERY TISSUE/ANESTHESIA

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW AND MAINTENANCE: Surgery Nurse Manager/PACU Nurse Manager
INDEX LISTINGS: Anesthesia Staffing Pattern/Staffing Pattern Anesthesia
REVISED: 41/01 12/2011 TS BS, 10/21/12 PM




New

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
: POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Cleaning and Disinfection of Anesthesia Equipment
Scope: Department: Anesthesia, Infection Control Blue
, Manual, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:

Anesthesia equipment is a potential vector in the transmission of microorganisms. Proper handling and processing of medications,
supplies, and equipment can reduce the risk of infection to the patient. These recommended practices provide guidelines for the

handling, cleaning, disposal, and reprocessing of anesthesia equipment and instrumghgition
POLICY:

When cleaning the anesthesia equipment the following procedure will be fogpwed and univ utions will be utilized as with
any other cleaning process. Organic material must be removed before dlsmfgﬁ’ 0 ioburdenand to ensure proper exposure
of equipment for disinfection.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
Physician order not required.
Procedure may be performedby: X RN X LVN__ X ORTECH
X OR HOUSEKEEPER __ X CS TECHNICIAN

Special education required to perform procedure: _~ NO_ X YES
Understanding of infection control measures, Inservice and orlenta "“m :
of anesthesia equipment. :
Cleaning and disinfection of absorber and ventilator systemﬁ‘ig
NURSE in charge of anesthesia equipment. :

EQUIPMENT:

Enzymatic cleaning solution
Cidex OPA solution or Stggis processor, or Stems V-?ro "

Assorted brushes for inge]
Eye protection and glo%es and:

PRECAUTION S :

PROCEDURE;

1. Anesthesia equipment
use.
#»  Items such as IV cat
critical items.
Aseptic technique should hen preparing medications.
Aseptic technique should be used when administering medications.

2. Anesthesia equipment that comes in contact with mucous membranes should be sterilized or undergo high-level

disinfection before use
s Reusable items (eg, airways, breathing circuits, connectors, fiberoptic endoscopes, forceps, laryngoscope blades, masks, self-
inflating bags, some laryngeal mask airways [LMAs), transducer tubing, transesophageal probes) are considered semicritical.
Reusable semicritical items should be cleaned as the first step in reprocessing.
Removal of organic material provides optimal conditions for proper exposure of equipment to disinfectants and sterilants.
Rigid laryngoscopes should be disassembled and all components cleaned, including handles. Al laryngoscope blades will be
wrapped individually and sterilized in the Steris V-Pro.

3. Anesthesia equipment contacting intact skin should be clean at the time of use.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

: POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Cleaning and Disinfection of Anesthesia Equipment
Scope: . | Department: Anesthesia, Infection Control Blue
: Manual, Surgery
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

* Items such as blood pressure cuffs, electrocardiogram(ECG) leads, and oximeter probes that contact only intact skin are
considered noncritical.
¢ Reusable items and surfaces contacting intact skin (eg, blood pressure cuffs, ECG leads, skin temperature probes) should be
cleaned between use on patients.
s  Reusable laryngoscope handles should be cieaned with hospital genquﬂ@i}%lo
visibly wet for 3 minutes before re-using. P
Laryngoscope blades will be washed in hospital germicide solutwns&‘nd processed in
Reusable noncritical items should be low-level disinfected betweenipatients.
Disinfected semi-critical items should be stored in a clean locationyinf
Surfaces of anesthesia equipment that are touched by personnel while; thie)
contammated items should be cleaned and low-level dlsmfected betw

nd wrapped in Cavi Wipe and remain

ris or V-Pro per policy.

4. Single-use items (eg, breathing circuits, humidifiers, endotracheal tubes, filters, e B4 e LMAs, stylets, suction
catheters, syringes) should be used once and discarded in acco nece with local, st ederal regulations.
e Patients are given a blood pressure cuff upon arnv:iﬁ -and this is to follo the t;gn through their stay.

These blood pressure cuffs are to accompany the patient from the fic ldmg room to tl%%%ﬁpg@tmg room to the post

anesthesia care room.
*  If they become soiled with body fluids, they are to% with aﬂé% ther cuff of the same size.

These blood pressure cuffs are for single atie tu

6. Internal componeuff%
DISASSEMBLE Al E
THE SODA LIME ASS ?

aned regulgay accordlng to mamifacturers’ written instructions. Bellows
ma c stilution, rinsed thoroughly with distilled water, disinfected and

ARE WORKING PROPERLY BY TURNING ON
WITH OXYGEN.

Reassemble all parts.
Turn machine and oxyge e
Close system by placing another bag over connector for end tracheal tube end (end of Y on anesthesia circuit)and -
forcing oxygen through system watch gauge for leaks, pressure should hold without dropping. Or you can make a
closed system by connecting one hose between inspiration and expiration system. IF THERE IS A LEAK,
CONSULT WITH THE OR NURSE MANAGER OR ONE OF THE ANESTHESIOLOGISTS. DO NOT
LEAVE THE MACHINE WITHOUT ASSURING IT IS FUNCTIONING PROPERLY. CONSULT THE
DRAGER ANESTHESIA MACHINE MANUAL FOR REFERENCE.

¢ . Soda lime should be changed according to the manufacturer’s written instructions when purple discoloration 2 deep is
evident in the canister.

7. Waste must be disposed of in a manner consistent with local, state, and federal regulations.
s Disposable items should be discarded in suitable containers immediately after use



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Cleaning and Disinfection of Anesthesia Equipment

Scope: Department: Anesthesia, Infection Control Blue
Manual, Surgery

Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

8. Potential hazards to perioperative personnel that are associated with handling and processing clean and contaminated
anesthesia equipment (eg, exposure to infectious organisms, chemicals) should be identified, and practnces should be
established to reduce the risk of injury.

. Non-dlsposable equ1pment should be set aside after use for cleanmg and terminal disinfection, thereby dlmmlshmg the

Anesthesia equipment should be processed using methods that mﬁf -the risk 3% ogz'ga to pathogens and injury.
»  Personnel Protective Equipment must be provided to mm]mlzeﬁle risk of exposgtrﬁia%foodbome pathogens, and
chemicals used in the workplace. "’:@ o
*  Contaminated sharps must be discarded in a puncture-resistant; E@htamer at th%ﬁ%?'ﬁfﬁ;

unaware of the location of sharps.

9. Anesthesia equipment should be handled, cieaned processed, or dlscarde;-  the.s:
setting. ;

W% M : -
e Surfaces of anesthesm machines, carts and monitors should be disinfected after eazg‘ Hent use. The spemﬁc work
u‘r @;%; draped with a

g7

disposable i 1mperv10us towel and changed between patle
up on and returned to this drape
¢  All equipment that comes in contact with the patient
disinfection such as Cidex OPA glutaraldehyde solut
Mc Gill forceps are to be cleaned and processg by s

procedure. g
s Laryngeal Ma§ Al
materlal is rem

@%};@e eaning process to assure all organic

s

manufacturer mfﬁaz;aﬁ‘gﬁﬁ@or proper cleaning technique. LMAs may

e« Care must be taken to as

oved from laryngoscope blades with a soft brush and
enzymatic solution duri .

isinfection.
i, i

INDEX LISTINGS: Cleaning of Anesthesia Equipment/
Anesthesia Equipment Cleaning of

REVISED: 01/01 BS ;05/11; 122011 BS TS, /12 BS | 1021 | 2012 P



NEW

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Organization of Surgical/Anesthesia Services
Scope: Department: Anesthesia
Source: Surgery Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE:
To assure understanding of responsibility of service for anesthesia care,

POLICY:

EXTERNAL:

The Chief of The Surgical/Anesthesia Service is responsL %%
anesthesia related decisions, professional staffing and I
outpatient, emergency and special care areas. This sgall 1nclu <
regulations concerning anesthesia safety.

PERSONNEL:

ologists on@%&ical Staff.
@gls?s %élth credentials approved by the Medical Staff.

] %and Title 22 Standards
: GERY TISSUE COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE APPROV
RESPONSIBILITY FOR

PACU Nurse Manager/ Chief of Service
INDEX LISTINGS: Surg1ca1/Anesthesm Service Organization / Service Surgical /Anesthesia

Organization
REVISED 01/01 ; Reviewed 12/2011 TS BS, 10/21/12 PM




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Postpartum Hemorrhage Policy
Scope: Department: OB/Gyn
Source: Kneip, Jan Effective Date:

Purpose:
To have a universally accepted procedure for managing women with an obstetrical hemorrhage.

Policy:
The Perinatal Unit will follow the guidelines set forth by the Califo
(CMQCC): Hemorrhage Taskforce (2009). See the attached Ob
Flow Chart and Obstetric Hemorrhage Care Guidelines.

Maternal Quality Care Collaborative
lage Care Summary Table Chart,

In addition copies of the Obstetrical Hemorrhage Care Summar
Postpartum Hemorrhage will be laminated and placed on the inst
delivery.

de

The entire CMQCC Hemorrhage toolkit is attached to this policy
click on the statement to view)

Approval Date

Peri-Peds Committee 10/30/2012

Revised: 10/30/2012 jk
Reviewed:




C
QUALITY CarD T

“if:Obstetric Hemorrhage Care Summary: Table Chart Format version 14
Assessments | Meds/Procedures | Blood Bank _
Every woman in labor/giving birth p

Assess every woman Active Management

for risk factors for 3" Stage:

hemarrhage = Oxytocin IV infusicn or
Ongoing quantitative 10u IM

valuation of blood » Fundal Massage-

s on every birth vigorous, 15 seconds min.

- Rhi T&C 2|
St 1 Blood loss: >500 ml vaginal or >1000 ml Cesarean, or
agé 1  |ys changes (by >15% or HR =110, BP <85/45, 02 sat <95%)

* Activate OB * IV Access: at least 18gauge * T&C 2 Units PRBCs
Hemorrhage Protocol * Increase IV fluid (LR} and (if not already done)
Stage 1 is shori: and Checklist Oxytocin rate, and repeat
acfivate * Notify Charge nurse, fundal massage
hemorrhage Anesthesia Provider * Methergine 0.2mg IM (if
protocol, initiate | « VS, 02 Sat g5 not hypertensive)
preparations and | = Calculate cumulative May repeat if good
give Methergine blood loss g5-1% response fo first dose, BUT
M. * Weigh bloody materials | otherwise move on to 2™
« Careful inspection with level uterctonic drug {see
good exposure of helow)
vaginal walls, cervix, * Empty bladder: straight cath
uterine cavity, placenta

it
o
California Maternal Quality Care Collaborative (CMQCC): Hemarrhage Tasktorce (2008) visit: www.CMQCC org for details

This Project was supperted by Title V funds received from the State of California, Department of Public Health, Center for Family Health; Maternal, Child and Adolescent Realth Diviston




uLISGg YYEsSH JUe0sejopy PUE PIIYS Teulsie (yesH Alwe ] 1oj Jsjuan ‘YieaH J1gnd Jo Juswniedag BUIOH(B) JO AJBIS SU) WO} PEAIS0S) SpUry A a)iL Aq psliaddns sem oefoud sy
sjiejap 1o} B10"DDDIND MMM SIA (B00Z) eoi0pise | sBeylioway (0DND) 2ABI0qeIeD 218D AJIEND {BUISIEN EILIONED

I TI04LNOD v ‘ SANNILNOD FDVHUNOWIH (=ousuedxa ajenbape B 3jqepeas i) Y| Jopisus)
Awojoassishn (Ao uosbuns paousuadxa) :o_wmm_\.m olysebodiH
K19Bing sanuyag uoneby] Alapy auusn
aoueIsANg UOOjjeg SuuSINEU/aIMNS LOUAT-g
winuedisod KiaBang anjemasuosn
paseasou| lalen
NOL SPISUIY e]iA Jojoe 1apisuco Aew
.:wwq%“ﬁ%.mmnwwnww_%rn uawaseldal Jojoe} uoljenfeas
i - 1IN} pue sOXgd siiun 04 Jayy
ON $507 poo|g eAREINwNy :AypedomnBeos aaisuodsasup
uonebi] Aapy suus)n :abeiLowsH panupuon
soueIBAIng ucojjeqg suuenefuRINING YouA-g :Auoly panunuos
winpedisod ‘ylIg ueaIESEs
pasealu) (sousuadxo sjenbape g ajqejiene 31} Hi JOPISU0D 4 u\
paanbay se Jeday ‘Bupioed 'BWOJBLISH UOeISET Q\M\M\ .
- uogjjeq suusinenu] [Auojy/ans uonejuedusjguatubas jamo =
did Boul 0001-008 orso.dosiN B aBeyiaingy pue uolend :00d PauleIRy
-40- I Bow gz SjeqeuisH 'spaly aND ebesseyy jepun4 [enuewrg
413H VH1X3 804 T1vD Y
A s3p -
[0903014
Nug(RAIng < ‘ i ) sbeysowsy
wnyedjsed ON ELLIOJEWSY [0 UOEIBE| “D0d Paulejal Ino ajny ajeAnoy
paseaoul %S6< 1BS UEJUIEW 0} 70 JajSILILpY | abejg
uneps doay Lappe duig ‘abessew |epun. snupuo
d13H V4.LX3 ¥Od TIvO B A do9 nmmm..__mm_tw%p_m_uo: JORI mc__ M.o m_:_mhmﬁumm SO 1W 000L<
|090j0.d abeyloway ajeanay ! V¥ ! jeuiBea jw go5<
wRolAX0) aseamnt| ((y7) 8jel A 9sealoy) 4
A s3aA :$507 poolg
. 9ONIG3379 QIASYIHONI Py — ;///
L4 o d H
abessey [epuny mﬂ_mwon_m\mmm”ﬂmﬁwxuo pue Ss0| poo|q wNWwiILE SpUoaas g1 o) abessew [epung snosoBip
jusurebeuepy -l Sfiueno uBiS eI %51 < =i }0 UOJEIPEND) ey INI SHUN 01 Jo uoisnjul A) upalAXQ| )
wnypedisod pepuels | ON S0 000L< ‘Bep i 005< iuoenjeay abe)s |, ¢ 10 Juswaheuriu 9A1J98 SAI993] USWIOM [y & N
$50°1 POO|E aApe(uN. Buobug %/W%% //
L

{020)0id )

abeyLIoWal MOIABY ‘SO SIUN Z Yolewssois g adh) isiy yBlH S H3|d UBIH pue YSnd WNIpajy Sisiy mo
j090304y sheLYII0WaH MOIATY ‘UD2I0G g adA[ S wnIpaly Hsu abeyrioway 104 SUQISSIWPY 1Y UsBIdg
1019 PIOH -HSIY Mo

sjonpoud Poojy SUIRSp oYM 3S0Y)
uofieantiou pue Bujjesunocd ‘ssanosas 4 10 “Japiosip Buipas|g ‘elalcoeeinaid Bjuaoe|d
40 Bupedaid ‘Buuued ‘sdmyom sjeidosdde mojjo4 :uonesapIsuos je1sads ypm sjuaned Lpusp]

ALYHCAVIIOD Jv D ALNVNED

P L LVINYOL L¥VHO MOTd :ANVININNS TYVO IOVHYHOWIH OIML13LSE0  WREVRIENTS

DD0OWDO




MUVIBIIL YHEOH MTwRes PG I [SUATISY MESTH MG AW AT YHDTH VI Y PEOLIEUOL] SRS Y SITES TUF W BTIOUOS SR 1Y S A BERULULD DS T D) Vi | ouEg

siiejap JUTIOTODWD A M JSIA {6002) swopyse) abeyuowal (DODIND) BMIEICQEIC] B8] ANEND IBUISIE BjUOJIED

| AOVYLS 9} paasoad
‘wnjedysod 10 A19A0921 Bulinp BUIPo9|q poseotou]
-0~ %S6> 1es ZO ‘S/G8= dd ‘011 = ¥H 10 abueys %5 | <SUBIS [EJIA
=40~ S/9 W00l < 10 Yyuiq JeuibeA JugpG< SS07 poojg SAlenwng ]
subjg |e)A Jo uopjenjeay bBuiobup
(jw = wb}) speusjew payeos poojq 1o Jyblam pue suosiedwos |ensia ‘siaulejuoo pajenpelb se yans ‘spoyjaul [ewlsy Buisn O
S50 poojq jo uoljenjeasy aagepjuenp bulobugo
SpPUOBS G| 15€9| )2 Jo) abessew epuny snolobip [
ysnd A] se uin0jAxo aAIb Jou op {A| SHUN O 10 (BU0} SULIAIN 0} SJBJ UOISNIUI 8B} LOIIN|CS [WOQQ L/UED0IAX0 SHUN 0Z-0] :UCISMjul Wo0JAXQ [
abejg pJiyL jo Juawalieuey sAanoy

abeyrowaH gO Jo uoniubooay R uolUaAald sYMIg IV 0 IOVLS

(ge< 1wg) Aiseqo pigIon
BY ¢ uey) 1ojealb Jyblom |e18) pajewns]
AutedomnBeocd umouy sploiqij auusn abje
Hwpe uo {mous uey} 15)ealb) Buipas|q aAnoy Hdd snoiasid jo AtosiH Hdd Jo Aiojsiy oN
000'001> sialaleld SljluojuiEoNOYD 1aplosip bulpaa|q umouy oN
S10}0E) SH 19410 (JNV 0E> J00IeWaH syHIg Jeuibea snojaald < sUilq jeuibea snojaaid §=
elalolad 10 ela100e ejuade|d pajoadsng ualelsab ajdniny Foueubaid ucjaibuig
ejuaoe|d BulA] mo| ‘elasud Bluase|d Arabins sunain Jo (s)uiq ueslesan Joud uoisioul auisin snoiasid oy
(yajewissoss pue odk]) ybiy {usarog pue odA1) winipapy {Ajuo 301D) MmO
uollenjeAy 1ojoe4 )siy abeylIowsH uoissiwpy
ULIO JUSSUCD MBIASYL]
3sIy YBIH se sJojoe} ysi aidijjnu Jead] eIssyjsaue g0 yim Jnsuoo Alieg
yajewssodn p adi| a1es Jo ue(d o} Japiaold 90 ANoONO
10 uaalag B adA] 0} Jaauod uoisnjsuel) auloap Aewl oum uswom fnuop) jueq poojq 0) 101D puss
pue (mojag aas) |9A3] YSIY asealsu] ] Bisaisauy g0 AoNO ‘syusnped uoyjo |y
juswieas) sie)ns wnissubep « [090j0ld afeyiiowsH manay[] sOgdd suun Z yojewssor) ' adAl O
SIJIUCIUWIEBCLIOYY) $OHYd SHUN g Yyojewssod) g adA] 18plion] ‘(Wvo-oyy wouy g-nue jansf Mojf
Buipss|q SAI0Y sH yby 3 jou i} aajisod uasios Apoqnue Jua.ung io jerevadd ji
98N UID0JAX0 pabuojold « [020)01d afeyuowsH malray] (uoijewayuod 1o}
loqe| abelg e Pabuojold . usa.10g g adA] Japl0Q pepesu jop |, Z ) Anou 1m gej) usalog 9 adA] Jepio]
1loqe] ul $1039e} ysu S wnipaw § . ‘ajgejieAe jou ji
|euoyippe jo Juawdojaasap 10} ajenjeag] (mojoq 993) stojoe4 ¥SI3 10} 9)EN|BAT plooal [ejeuald wWoly usasag Apoqiuy g adA} AJLUap

JUSWISSOSSY
ySiy Bbulobu

"slayow ysi je Joj Ajjeroadsa JoH/qBH paiisap Yoeal 0] [000]0.1d 9S0IONS UDJ| A] SIEniUl ‘S|Ie) UQJ] [210 Jt BJlUSUR @19A8s Jeal) AjpaIssalbibe pue usaiog
sjonpald poojg auljoag oym ssoy) Jo ‘1apiosiq Buipes|g ‘ejsiooy/eirsid BJUSIEl] SUOIEIaPISUOD je1oads yum sjused soj atedaad pue Ayjuspin]

Buluue|d ¥ JUBWISSISSY |BlEUBId
') uofsien Jewio 1SI29y) sauljaping ale) abeyliowal 211391sq0

Buiuue|d ¥ JUBWISSASSY UOISSIWIPY




Sjjesap 10y BITHDTIND e s {600Z) a0.opyise sBeyuowaH ((D0DWD) sAleioge)|og a1eg Aient |ELISIE BILOYED
Brup o} Ajjanisuasiadiy ayoepesHy (ad) sia|qej bawQQg 10 001
duws] wooy uipuelBejsold o) ABaje umouy (yuaisuely) Jaaad ‘Bupaaing awy} suQ wn wwn.__._w BowgQoL-008 (jo1sosdosiiy)
aley eayuielp ‘Buiwoa 'easnen i d @I
‘Wauaq
wisedsoyauoig 10 94 [|IM S3S0p [BUOIppE
asess amcwﬁvzm_._wuw)__mﬁ__m”w%._ wm..mw_.m_ uoisuspsdiy jey) Ajiun s1y ‘sasop | (A usab Jou) w/Bowrngz
ajelabuey LS .&EmgﬂdEfm BulaAIys sy £ l9ye asuodsal ou Jj- teljewoAw Bow ggz (ezd 9d iApow-51)
-osesip 9jeday Y USWOM Ul UojTeS SepeeH (usisue) 1onod vl @3jeqewal
R : FU eaylle|q ‘Buwoa ‘easney | $z/S9S0p § paeoxa o} 10N-
Ui 08-5| -
abeyuoway |e1galad Weusq
a|qissod/m asuodsal aaisuapadAy : Wiz
Wbl ) 40 8Q |t S8SOp |EUO|)PPE I lwyBuiz
WOy pejoiy aelabifexs Aew ‘pasn usaq aABY | Hid 10 N1H Yim mu.cw_ﬁ_a Ul 10 uogeysiupe Jex AjSyun st ) ‘0sop (Al uenb Jou) B 20 Amc_>_comh®_>£m_>_v
a1e1aBLILa aunpayda Jo sasop a|dynw y uopnen pidel ynm -dsa ‘uoisuspadAy alensg 1L 151 HSUOASS) OU Ii- Wi 6
1SR Bnup o) Aansussiadiy Bupiwon 'easnen 151U By SINOL e h- @sulbisyiain
sseasIp Jesy 'Hid ‘uoisuapadAy Uvz0
ysnd Al dse 'sesop ybiy yim HH | pue ag | aug} aulaIn Jwy/syun gl
‘ujwpe pj pabuojoid ypm ( uoijesixojul o} pajeJ)] a1e) UID0IAX
dwia) ooy Brup o] Aanisussiadiy 1o1em,) elwaneuodAy Buiuon ‘Besnen SNONURUOY uolsnjue Al W 0001 A 100). Ov
suou Aensn Jad syun Q01 @uUIDold
abelo)g suoljed|puiesjuo) SEETEERS Aouanbalg anoy asoq —bnig

JdOVHYAHOWIH WN1YVdLISOd 4104 SINFOV JINOLOYIALN

Z 39VLS 01 passoid

S$SO| PoO|q dAIRINWIND Wl 00S)> Pue ‘Ajijiqe)sul uBig [eJIA panuRuos Jo Bulpaslq peanuRuo 3

saueenns
pasealaul ypm juswsiieuew
wrpedisod payipoly :pazijiqe)s 3ouQ

ainidny suusi)
B)2120Y BlUSIR|d
Ayledoinbeon) .
UOISISAU| SULISIN
wisljoquiz pinj4 JlolUUlY
ejusoe|d psuielay .
uoijjeladej/ewnel]
Auole suLIgIn -

:ABojona renusjod Japisuco

ejusse|d pauielal pue ‘snian
lous)sod ‘uawell peolq "dse ‘s|pad) (|e 1e Buipas|q pejjosiuooun Joj 19adsu| ]
{uado s pue yuiq uessese §1) uoabing
BLUOJBLIAY ‘uoljelade| ‘uondesuod) JO SJoNpold pauelsd Ino any [
Iapmpiw Jo ueidtsiyd
wuem jusiied daay
(suop Apealie Jou i) 1V1S S||8D Poojg pay SHUN Z 10} Yojelussol)) pue adA} O
Jojewin uim Asjo4 soeld 1o Uieo jubens sppejq Aidwg O
9%,56< 1B S]es g0 uleidiew o3 usbAXe Jasiuiupy O
$aINUIW G |-G b SS0} POO|g SAIBINWNS pJodal pue 3)endfes ‘sjeuatew ybiaan O
sejnuIw b (D7) $s8USNOIOSUO 10 |9A3] % 18s ZO Bulpn)aur ‘subis BIA [
4y Z b sesop
leuonippe anb Aew ‘ssuodsel poob )| Yusbe ajeuls]je 0} 2A0W ‘@suodsal ou i
‘aouo anb (eAisusliadAy Jou 1) jooojoud Jad | Bw g o auiBleyiep JoIsiuwpy [
abesseul [epuny snolobia anuguon O
au0} auua)n o} ejel
uoisnjul UIooJAXO SleuliL (uonN|os JWEQOL/SHUN 0F-01 4O JNOY/TW 00S) Sled
u0AXO esealsoul pue (pauajaid siafuly pejejoe|) ssjel spiny A @sealou|
abnef gl jse9| 12 ‘uesald Jou J sse202 Al UsIdeIsT O
:asinu Aewilg

1siBojoisayseue ANION [
esinu abieys ANoN [
{Buipusyie pue asnoy-ur)
uepelsqo ANoN [
10} @sunu Alewllg
1SIM98YD pue |090301d
abeyuowsy go aleAldyY [
-0} APMpPIN
10 uedIsAud ‘asinu Alewlig

MNIHL

LoV
wniedlsod 10 Aiaaooal Hulnp Bulpaajq poseasou]

“HO- %S6> 1eS 20 ‘SP/585 d9 ‘0LL= HH Jo abueyd 9,6} < SUBIS [EJIA

0" S/ IWE0L< 10 Yiq [euiBeA JwQQS< SSOT POO[g SANEINUING

abeytiowsy g0 |1 3OVIS

AZIME0N




UOSIAI] UNBeH JuBdsajopy pUE PIYT USRI (Ul eaH AES 10} 19)uaD YReeH J1aNd 10 MEWHEDa(F BLIOHED (0 SJEIS SU) WOl PEABYI Spury A )L AG pej:oddns sem joajord siy) 10 g abed
site1ep 10y IO OO WA (1iSiA (6002} 81opise) afieyuowuay ((DI0ND) SAJRI00e)02 1eD AYIEND (RUISIRW BILONED

€ 99Vv1S 03 paadoud
‘01@ 1o} uoididsns 10 a[qejsun SA ‘UaAlb sHFYd SHUN Z< LIPS L< SSO PoO[q aAReINWND J|
subig jeyA pue Buipasiyg sjenjeag-ay
Q0UB|[IOAINS POSEBAIOUI YIM Jusliabeue abeyuoway aajssel Jo Ayjiqissod 10y ssedald [
wnuedisod psyipopy (pazijiqels asugQ s0gud
sHun Z< Buisnysuel; y asn ‘(Ui Og saxe}) d44 g Buimey) Jspisuc
Awojosede| o) arow Buipssig a)is-uo Juasaid Jou )i sisjeleld Jo Alsallep aenul ‘saeeld
[BUISJUl Ypm Jes) Juswebl peolq Jo ainjdng pue ‘ewse|d uazoy ysaly ‘ewseld pemey) jo Aljige|ieAs sulwIS}eq []
aulie)n 8|qIssod sso| poojq painseaw jueg pooig
10 pajewIse uey) asiom ate subis [epA || {(pejeoipul 1) HO 0} BAOW YIM ISISSY [
jueg poojg sy) wol) sjanpoid poojq ulelqo g
MHoddns jonpod poojg pue lossaidosea Heo efeyuowsH Jo Aey} sinpeooid g0 pue Bl s|qeuiod ueyqo 0
‘fojendsal onissaiBbe Ajpwixeyy » (suop Apealje jou y1) Jatewun yum Aejo soeld []
wisijoquz ping4 23oIUwWY j :(esanu abieyo 10) 8sinu puosag
uononpal |enuew 1o} wem usned Q@@V_ O uos.tad
sBrip uonexejel auus)n pue BISBYISOUY paIspIo SE 'sqe| meJp pUE sjonpold poolq ‘Spsw JalsIuILpyY [ Hoddns Ajiwey soyjo ubisse
JUOISI9AW] BuLIB)N J] UOISNjsuEY) JO} JI8LiEm poO)g PUE J8s UOIRASILIWPE poolq dn 188 10 12)10m |e100s [eoipaw &) O
uoojjeg auusinenu| » sanuLl 3UEq poojq Yiim 91EdIUnwwoo
salenbg sidninpy ‘Ases,0 ‘aanng 01-G b 880| poo|q aAnEINWND pue SubIg [elA 8oUNOULER pUE SSOSSY | 0] uostad 8|Buis ubissy O
youA1-g“Ba ‘ainns onejsowsy ULy uojsnjul uolAxo Josivedns Buisinu AoN
:uojoas-9 Uum auo} sujiain ayenbape pue siabuly ps)ejoe Yim awnjoa ping IsiBojoisayisoue
{sousuadxa sjenbepe uigjuiey "abnef g| 1ses) 18 ‘Al 210q able € USiaels3 [ puooSs pue wes|
ayenbape @ sjqejieae Ji ABojoipey :@asnu Aewny ABojoipey [eucguanisu| Ul
[BUGUBAIDI|) UOKEZIOqUID SAIOS[ES synsal gej 1o jlem -lled ‘uonezjoquis aAl09]8s §| [
!3AnINpoldun sainseaw aAoge J| Jou op ‘esuodsal pue subis [ed1ulo uo paseq sogYd asnysues] [ piooay
uoo|[eg SULSINENU| » (9gv ‘usboulaid ‘L1 de/ld ‘71 Wweyd ‘Siid/08D) 1V.LS Sqej Japi0 [ abeylowsH g0 eeny| ]
:Buipasiq apispeq ey o} Builq pue sOgHd SHuUN Z 48pi0 [ 90 ¢ 10 )siBojojeuniad AjltoN
JusWwBas auldin Jomo| 1o Auoje sulieln J| (Y0 1o %7 9 8A0W ‘yun wnpedisod uo Ji) YO 03 arop [ :as1nu sbieyy
390 » afiessew auuain lenuewly ] pajoalip se
:ejuaseld paujejan suones|paw o3 asuodsos gjonpoud Japio lebeylowsy
nedel pue szZ|ensip . Joj Bupiem ajiym (Uwinjoo B 93s) SuoUIAIa 18130 Aejap jou oq 10 yueqg pooig AloN [J
:(sunen Jo |eojaten ‘feujBea) ewne j| (esop Jsay 0} pucdssl ¥,6/-s10u) # 3NOHd
yuiq reujbep ulw gz Aeas sew) £ 0} dn sjeqeway Jeadal uey o ‘wes ) ssuodsey ejeAldy O
Yd Bow 0001-008 [o1sosdosiy FO [peresipuiesjuod 1sibojoisaisauy (18D 1
:ABojone uo paseq SUCHUSAIIUL 1BY)0 pue Jou Ji] I Bous gz eleqewal :uoneoipaul 21U0J0IBIN |UCHIPPY [ aplspaq 0} uepuR)sqo ||Bg O
sa.npaosoud yBnoiy) soueape Ajjeuanbag {(ueoishyd go) 1epes| wea] | :(es.inu abieys 1o} esinu Krewn g
MNIHL 10V IZINE0N

$S0| POOIq aAlEINWIND W 0§ L> pue ‘Ajjigelsul ubig [e)A Jo Buipaaq penunuon

abeyiriowsHy g0 :Z IOVIS




UOISIAKT )ieaH JU8359j0pY PUB PIRID [ewIalely iulieeH Aiwed Joj Blus) “YlieeH alignd JO Juatupedsa BILLOJIED 10 SIEIS BU) WOY paalaaal spuny A o)), Aq paoddng sem jasford sjy)

SBIep 10}

B D00WD A psia {600g) 8oiopise) sbeyloway (D) eaneicqe)en @iep Auent eusley euuoyesn

30 ¥ ofeq

"ejeuoniodold S 3SH UOROSJU] 08 ‘SIOUOP JUaiagip | WOl 900 SHUR g}, :UoRES

jusutaoe|das swnjoA paau juop pue usboulqy mo| yum 9|g 1o} 1sag
TP/Bwo01-08 uabouuqiy sesiel A|leoidA; yoed yun Q|
08> s|oAa] usbouLqly LM USWOoM 10} AXLOHH

{aseajal 40j meY] 0] Uil GE-GE “Xoudde)

(0AMD) syendioardofun

30S-0F Sepinoad (s9]enusound 18j9e|d Jo spun 9 =) Jun sisataydy louop-a|bulg
000°0S> Si9le)eld YHm usLiom Joj Ajold

sjele)eld Ul esealoul JUSISUEL}

WO 9UI0D O] pasu Aelll) 6Seafal 0} aul} Lij UQIBLIBA JB207

(iueq poojq [euoiBai

(s171d) s19191e|d

1p/Bwg) Aq uabouliqi4 seses1ou] A[eoidA] pUE awWnjoA |WQRL = Jun |
JOIJUOD XG 1< 11 de ‘1 d pebuocjoid Joj Jo ‘uaB sgud SHiun z< )l passap AlybiH

(eseafal 40§ MEY} 0] ULl GF-GE xoidde)

{d4d) ewise|d uszoi4 ysai4

% AQ JoH sesealoul Aj|ealdfy pue atnjoA [W gGH=nun |
UIIBWSSOID 10] "SIy 2-1 9ye} Aew ‘aayisod Apogurue J|

SLWNJOA [WHSH = Jun |
$80| poo|q Jo} jonpoud sullsly 1seg

S10NAao¥d aood

Jem Jouued nok J poolq aagebaN O ssnsSUBT]

(iuasaud aie seipognue ou BuiunNsse pue qef sy ul

S ajdwes ou BulLnS Se—yo1BlWSS 04D J0) “Uil Op-GE "xoidde)
(08¥d) sI199 poojg pay payded

Nl 49pisuo Juswasbeuely
wnuedisod paIPo pazijiqels asuQ

B|IA JOI0B-L! JO JIISUSG|SI JIBPISUoD
Aeus Jusageldal Jo0e) uoleinbeos

PUE $DEYd SHUN Q-8 Jally »
:Ayjedo|nBeon aalsuodsaiun

sjeleeld :ddd s0aud v 10
Si29eld ‘ddd $08ud L9 day3
08y 03 ddd o OILVY HOIH ‘A3

$80°] poo|g 'SUbIg [E}IA UO paseq
asnysuel] AjaAissalbby
IUOIRIOSNSAY 104

AwoyoausisAH
uolebin Aauy suie)n .
:Aiebang aaiuyaq Jo aAljEAIZSUON

BlWBPIdY ‘eluliayjodAy Juanald .
pajajduwioa

324 jou ABojopa uo paseq SUSUIAII] »

(¥1) vonezioquiz aanavjeg »

lapicoay O
(osunu abieys 10} asinpN panyL

paispio
SE ‘Sqe| MEIP pUE $19npold poojg ‘spall JOISIUIWPE 0} SNUIUOY) []
:JsiBojolsayjsaue I0/puE asInu puosag
YO Ul s3enalld M
saljiwalxe jemo] o} sBuppols uoissasdwos |equsnbes Alddy g
uofjesisiuiipe
1onpoud poojq g pinj o) 1asniul pidel 1o/pue Jawiem pin 280 1
e|qisesy Ji 1ue|q Buiwiem Apoq Jaddn Aiddy ]
sejnuIW (L-G b $50| pOO|d PAINSESW SAIJE|MWNG PUB SA 92UnNouUly []
rasinu Aewg
uoneqniuvl O
poddns Jossaidosea [
sul| |eusuyY O
[l vYd 10 dAD O
Buuojuous aweuApoway [eJUSD O
saseb poo|q |euapy
:(paeoipul se) ysibojolsat)sauy
ulw p9-0€
b 1v1s ©gy ‘'usbounqly ‘1 1 de/1d ‘'zl weyd ‘Si1d/080 leadsy O
alay} Apealje Jou Jl MO ©} SAOIN [
uwnyoo ybBu ul ajou ses—g | 1d yoed sisassyd | + 444 + s09Y)
Yoed abeylioway anIssel 19pI0 [
:(ysinisusiul Jospue JsiBojoleuliod Jogpue
1si6ojoisayisaue sibojoissyisaue go + uepisiud go) Japes) weaj
sajou ubisse pue diysiapee] wee} ysj|qeisy

peaiye Aels — papasu se sjonpold
poo|q [eucippe anss| 0} aledaid [
jueg poojg
Mol Aiou ‘palspisucd Jaysuel) §| [
(S A WawInoop pue
5Sasse ||Im 1siBojoisayisaue YO uj)
PI099y abeyuowsH 9O anuiuoD ]
Jabeuew
10 'gND “Josiaadns uijea
papasu se Jje)s ubisseay
4#e1s HO ui-ies 0
1sibojoISBy)SauUe pUOIas U-|ED) [
Jsiaisuaiul Jinpe Ao O
(1s160j02uQ) UAS) "B a)
ucabins uAg pasueape AJION [
:oaufi|sep Jo asiny sbieys
‘# INOHd
{020)01d
ebeljllowsH SMSSEI 21eANOY [
:ue19IsAyd 10 8sInN

HANIH.L

1OV

ZIMGOW

0l1Q 104 uo1o1dsns 10 spgEISUN SA ‘USAIB sOgNd SHUN Z< IWPOSL< SSO| POO|Y BARINWINY

abeyliowaH 90 € A9VLS



e
&
e
& /

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: HUGS Policy

Scope:

Department: ICU/CCU, Medical/Surgical, OB/Gyn

Source: Kneip, Jan Effective Date:

HUGS Policy

Purpose: To proficiently utilize our HUGS Infant Protection System in order to provide and maintain a safe
environment for infants, children and adults who are unable to stay in their assigned rooms.

Policy: Infants

1.

(W]

Attach the tag to the infant’s lower exiremity. Tags must be loose enough to rotate, but tight enough to
avoid slipping off. Apply the band to the tag by inserting one side of the band to the tag via the back of
the tag. The white side faces out, beige towards baby. Wrap the tag around the baby’s ankle with the
rounded end of the tag pointing up towards the baby’s knee. Trim straps leaving approximately ¥4 inch
above tag face.

Once securely placed, the tag automatically activates. If it does not work properly place a new tag but do
not throw the defective tag away. Return it to the unit manager so it can be traded in for new one.

Log in to the HUGS workstation and enter patient information as prompted.

If a tag is loose, tampered with, or the baby is taken near an exciter, an alarm will sound. Appropriate
action will need to be taken on the computer to clear the alarm or initiate a Code Amber. RN’s, LVN’s
and/or CNA’s and unit secretaries have the ability to clear the alarm once the safety of the infant is
confirmed. '

A variety of alarms and alerts are utilized by the HUGS system. ALWAYS ensure the safety of the
infant/child/adult prior to troubleshooting or clearing the alarm. The episode will be audible and
displayed on the HUGS workstation. Please refer to the Quick Reference Guide located by the tag
holder on the meaning and handling of the alarms.

Tags are waterproof, and infants may be bathed with the tag in place.

Discharge the tag from the computer just prior to the infant leaving the unit. A tag must also be
discharged if a strap is initially placed too tight and needs to be replaced.

Do not pull backwards on the strap to try and loosen them if they are inadvertently placed too tight. The
gold prongs in the slots will be damaged, potentially rendering the tag permanently damaged.

When the tag is removed from a patient wipe it with a Sani-Cloth. If debris is inside the slots and/or on
the gold prongs, dampen the bristles of a toothbrush with a Sani-Cloth and gently clean inside of the

slots.

10. Once clean, place the tag back into the tag holder.

Pediatrics/Adults

I

Follow the above directions. Tags may be placed on the arms or legs of children or adults. On the
Medical/Surgical Unit, larger straps are available. (This tag may only be used if the patient does not play
with the tag.)
A PEDZ tag should be used if the older child or adult that would possibly be manipulating the tag.
These tags and corresponding bands are located in the medication room on the Medical Surgical unit.
To apply them the following must be completed.

a) What you will need:

1. Sizing guide

2. Pre-cut length of band ( we have 14in and 8 inch band lengths)
3. Band clippers '

4. PEDZ tag

5. Removal key



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
4 POLICY AND PROCEDURE

_f’?itle: HUGS Policy
# | Scope: . Department: 1CU/CCU, Medical/Surgical, OB/Gyn
" . | Source: Kneip, Jan Effective Date:

b) Follow the band sizing instructions found with the bands. ( located with the bands in the
Medication room)

¢) Follow the printed instructions on how to apply the band and tag.(located with the bands and tags
in the medication room)

3. Once the tag is activated it will automatically be on the computer at the nursing station. Log into the
computer and enter the required specific information specific to that patient. The computer is used to
manage the tag and should be used to suspend time when taking a patient off the unit and any other
activities that could hamper the tag. Do not remove the tag .

4. Once the child or adult is discharged and the tag is no longer required then discharge the patient off the
HUGS computer and remove the tag. You will need the following:

a) The PEDZ removal key (Found in the medication room with the tags)

b) See printed instructions for removal of the tag.

¢) Clean the tag per instructions on the sheet, use the following wipe (PDI SANI-CLOTH PLUS---
Must be wet for 3 min and allowed to dry)

d) Return the tag and tag key to the Medication room on the unit.

Approval Date

Revised:
Reviewed:



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Activity Program Pediatrics
Scope: Department: Pediatric
Source: Med/Surg Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE: To ensure inpatient pediatric patients have appropriate activities for diversion stimulation, proper
development and clinical observation

POLICY: An age appropriate individualized activity program a needs of the pediatric patients
will be provided on a daily basis upon the approval of the attending physician Ctivi

under the direction of the Nurse Manager Medical Surgical (pediatric service:

Committee Approval

Pediatrics/Perinatal Committee

Medical Staff

Board of Directors

Revised
Reviewed
Supercedes




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK — PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Hiring - IDENTIFICATION BADGES (03-04)

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources —
Employee Handbook

Source: Human Resources Effective Date:

PURPOSE:

Identification badges function as electronic keys, cash cards and allow access to other
important job functions; therefore, the purpose of this P
safeguards of identification badges.

POLICY:

Identification badges may function as an eIectromc kej} )
barcode badge number that allows usmg the hospital’s gﬁA W i
charging cafeteria purchases, and carrying out other 1mp0rtant%g

You are required to wear your identification Jbadgeawhile on hospital
allows you to get to know those you work@ﬁﬁ%@ | “i n

d_Request :
the"’Medf&a’l Staff

( : ou would a cash card or key
Do not share or lénd your badge or provide

dge. Please report lost/misplaced or forgotten
erv1sor or department head or Medlcal Staff

Approval Date

Human Resources

Medical Executive Committee

Administration

Board of Directors




Northern Inyo Hospital
ED Standing Orders Policy

Purpose:

e To provide a set of Standing Orders that the Emergency Department (ED)
Registered Nurse (RN) can initiate to address urgent/emergent medical
conditions of patients presenting to the ED prior to evaluation by the ED
physician.

Definitions:

« Standing Order — an order approved by the Emergency Services Committee that
may be executed prior to initial physician evaluation. Standing Orders are limited
to a subset of orders addressing specific medical conditions or patient
circumstances that are necessary for timely and efficient care.

Policy:

A. Prior to implementation, the Emergency Services Committee must approve all
ED Standing Orders. These order sets are not intended to replace more detailed
order sets, guidelines or protocols.

B. The ED RN will initiate orders off the Standing Orders sets if the assessment
findings warrant the Standing Order intervention within their scope of
competency and within the resources of the ED.

1. The Standing Order sets are complaint-specific.

2. The RN may not alter the content of any Standing Order.

3. A Standing Order set does not need to be implemented in its entirety. The
RN should implement applicable sections of each set based on the patient
assessment.

4. More than one set may be used for a patient as appropriate per patient
need and the RN assessment.

The RN may consult with the ED physician at any time if clarification is needed in
initiating a Standing Order.

The RN is accountable and responsible for the delegation of any intervention in
the Standing Order setl.

The RN must document all assessment findings, interventions and outcomes as
required by Hospital policies and procedures.

ED Standing Orders must be entered into the patient's medical record and
authenticated by the ED physician.

mom o 0O

Procedure:
A. Patient presents to the ED with specific symptoms that align with a current ED
Standing Order set.
B. RN assessment confirms the symptoms or condition that warrants initiation of
one or more sets.
C. RN initiates corresponding set and consults with the ED physician if additional
clarification is needed.



D. The ED physician authenticates the orders in the medical record during the
patient’s ED treatment course.

E. Standing Order Sets — see Appendix A for detailed sets

Abdominal/Flank Pain

Allergic Reaction

Altered Level of Consciousness

Chest Pain — Adult

Dysuria

Eye Problems

Fever

Gastrointestinal Bleeding

. Laceration

10. Orthopedic injuries

11.Pain Control

12.Seizure

13.Shortness of Breath

14.Shock

15.8yncope

16.Vomiting

NI R LN



Appendix A
Standing Order Sets

. Abdominal/Flank Pain

Saline Lock IV

NPO

Labs — CBC, CMP

UA — dip and hold

For females of child-bearing age, add serum qual HCG
For upper abdominal pain, add serum lipase and amylase
For upper abdominal pain and >40 yo, add EKG

. Allergic Reaction

Notify physician immediately for any respiratory distress.
Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor
IV NS or saline lock
Epinephrine (1:1000) 0.3mg IM for adults and 0.01mg/kg IM for peds
o For any patient with wheezing, difficulty breathing, difficulty swallowing,
swollen tongue or history of prior severe allergic reaction.
Benadryl 25-50mg IVP for adults and 1mg/kg IVP for peds
Albuterol 2.5mg/3cc NS nebulized, may repeat x1

. Altered Level of Consciousness

Notify physician immediately for any unstable vital signs or respiratory distress.
Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor

Accucheck

Saline lock IV with bloods to hold

Dextrose for BS <60 — D50 25gm IVP for adults and D25 1mg/kg for peds

. Chest Pain — Adult

Oxygen saturation — Oz via Nasal Cannula for sats < 85%
Cardiac Monitor
Saline lock 1V, Antecubital 18g if possible
ECG
Labs - CBC, CMP, Trop, MB
o Add PT/PTT if on Coumadin
1 view portable CXR
Aspirin 162 mg PO chew tab
NTG SL 0.4mg g5min prn, may repeat x 2
o Hold for SBP < 100
o Contraindicated for patients who have recently taken phosphodiesterase
inhibitors (i.e. Viagra)

. Dysuria

UA w/culture if indicated



o For females of child-bearing age, add urine qual HCG

6. Eye Problems
¢ Visual acuity with corrective eyewear
¢ Proparacaine and fluorescein strips to bedside
o May instill 1-2 gtts Proparacaine q30min to affected eye
o For chemical injuries, irrigate affected eye with 1L NS through Morgan lens
o Start immediately in triage before checking visual acuity

7. Fever
» For pediatric patients under 14 years old and based on prior antipyretic given
o Tylenol 15mg/kg PO or PR
o Motrin 10mg/kg PO
o May give both for Temp>102
e For adult patients, Tylenol 1000mg PO or PR

8. Gastrointestinal Bleeding
o Saline Lock IV
¢ Cardiac Monitor
o Labs—CBC, CMP, PT/PTT, Type & Screen

9. Laceration
¢ For adults with tetanus immunization >10 years or unknown, give Tdap 0.5ml IM
o For pediatric patients, apply LET topical anesthetic to wound for 20-30min
» Irrigate wound as tolerated

10. Orthopedic Injuries
¢ The ED physician should be notified immediately for open fractures, dislocations
or injuries with vascular compromise.
Ice, elevate and stabilize
Urine or serum HCG as needed
Saline Lock 1V for moderate to severe pain or obvious deformities
Examine extremity and document neurovascular status, deformity, instability,
crepitus, bony tenderness, ecchymosis, or swelling
o Always examine joints above and below as well for associated injuries
» Order appropriate Xrays — special considerations:
o Ankle, Foot, Toes, Heel
= Xray entire foot for toe injuries
» Add caicaneal views for heel tenderness or fall from height
» Add knee xrays for tenderness over proximal fibula
o Elbow, Forearm, Wrist, Fingers
= Xray wrist for distal forearm tenderness
» Add navicular view for snuffbox tenderness
» No xrays for peds <6 yo with arm pain or loss of function and no
obvious deformity

e o o @



o Shoulder, Clavicle
= Notify physician immediately for SOB or low sats

o Chest (Ribs)
»  Order 1vw upright CXR

11.Pain control

For acute orthopedic injuries and-illnesses only. Patients with chronic pain
issues must be seen by the ED physician prior to medication.
[V narcotics require initial review by the ED physician
For adults
o Mild to moderate pain — Motrin 600mg PO
o Moderate pain — Percocet-5 1 tab PO
o Severe pain — Fentanyl 50ucg IVP gbmin prn, max 200 ucg
For pediatrics >2 years old
o Mild to moderate pain —~ Motrin 10mg/kg PO
o Moderate pain — Vicodin elixir 0.1mg/kg hydrocodone PO
o Severe pain — Fentanyl 1ucg/kg intranasal, may repeat 0.5ucg after 5
minutes

12.Seizure

Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor

Saline Lock IV

Accucheck

Dextrose for BS <60 — D50 25gm IVP for adulfs and D25 1mg/kg for peds

For active seizures notify physician immediately then Ativan 2mg IVP for adults
and 0.05mg/kg IVP for peds, may repeat X1 pm

13.Shortness of Breath

Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor
Saline Lock IV
Titrate oxygen to keep sats >90%
Labs — draw and hold
2 view CXR
o | view portable if patient unstable
Albuterol 2.5mg/3cc NS nebulized, may repeat x1
ECG for patients >40 yo

14.Shock/Sepsis

Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor
Large-bore IV
Titrate oxygen to keep sats >80%
Fluid bolus NS in 500ml increments for SBP<90
o Pediatric patients — NS 20mg/kg for AMS or SBP<70
Labs — CBC, CMP, Trop, MB, Lactate, Blood Cx x2, UA



» 1 view portable CXR

15.Syncope
e (Oxygen saturation and Cardiac Monitor
e Saline Lock IV
¢ Orthostatic vital signs
e ECG
e Accucheck
16.Vomiting
e Saline Lock IV
* Labs —draw and hold
¢ For adults without a history of CHF or CKD, 1L NS Bolus
s Zofran 8mg PO or 4mg IV for >16kg and 2mg PO for <16kg



Purpose:

Northern Inyo Hospital Emergency Department
Narcotic Prescription Guidelines

Due to increasing concerns about the abuse and overuse of narcotics in our community,
the Emergency Department (ED) has developed the following guidelines with regard to
prescribing narcotic and sedating medications. This policy pertains to patients who,
after an appropriate medical screening exam, are found not to have an Emergency
Medical Condition.

Policy:

1.

The emergency physician is required by law to evaluate any patient who reports
to the ED for evaluation. Once it is determined an Emergency Medical Condition
does not exist, the law allows the physician to use their clinical judgment when
treating pain and does not require the use of opioids.

When patients come to the ED with acute medical conditions that may require
narcotic or sedative medications, the physician should prescribe these
medications in very limited quantities. The amount of medication will be sufficient
to last until the patient can see a primary care physician or specialist. Any
patient who returns to the ED seeking refills for the same complaint should only
be given non-narcotic pain medications. [f opioids are prescribed on a repeat
visit, they should only prescribe a maximum of 3-days worth.

Prescriptions for narcotic or sedative medication that have been lost, stolen or
expired will not be refilled in the ED. Extended-release and long-acting opioids,
such as Oxycontin, fentanyl patches and methadone, in general, should not be
prescribed from the ED.

Patients who have frequent visits to the ED seeking relief from painful conditions
will be considered to have chronic pain syndromes. These pain syndromes may
include, but are not limited to, migraine headaches, back pain, dental pain, and
fibromyalgia. Patients presenting with chronic pain should be given non-narcotic
pain prescriptions only.

The administration of intravenous and intramuscular opioids for the relief of acute
exacerbations of chronic pain is discouraged. These medications provide a very
short duration of relief and have more addictive potential due to euphoria.

For exacerbations of chronic pain, the Emergency physician should attempt to
contact the patient's primary opioid prescriber prior to giving the patient further
opioids. If possible, the primary physician should maintain a copy of the patient’s
pain contract on file in the Emergency Department.

Physicians should review the California Department of Justice Prescription Drug
Monitoring Program (PDMP) to determine the extent of narcotic and sedative
prescriptions being obtained by the patient. The PDMP is an online database
record of controlled substance medications that the patient has received. It was
created to identify and deter drug abuse and diversion through accurate and
rapid tracking of Schedule II-IV controlled substances.



8. In the event the ED physician feels a narcotic or sedative agent is clinically
indicated, the patient must have a responsible aduit driver present prior {0 being
given the medication.

9. The ED physician can request a Social Worker consult in the ED, if available, for
patients with suspected prescription opiate abuse problems.

10.The ED will maintain lists of available Primary Care Providers accepting new
patients. Every effort will be made to help patients obtain follow-up care within a

reasonable time frame.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title:  In-House Transport of Ventilator Dependant Patient

Department: Emergency Department,
Scope: Respiratory Therapists, ICU RN, ED RN | ICU/CCU, Radiology Respiratory Care

Source: Director of Respiratory Care Effective Date: 10-15-2012

PURPOSE:

To maintain ventilatory support on all ventilated patients that are being transferred from ICU/ED
to X-ray or any other department for diagnostic or therapeutic procedures and from ED to ICU.

There are no MRI capable Ventilators at Northern Inyo Hospital. Patients that are.on ventilatory
support and need to go to MRI will be hand ventilated in the MRI suite. The attendmg physician
needs to approve of this.

Transportation of mechanically ventilated patients for diagnostic or therapeutic procedures is
always associated with a degree of risk. Every attempt should be made to assure;that monitoring,
ventilation, oxygenation, and patient care remain constant durin g movement Patient transport
includes preparation, movement to and from and time spent at

INDICATIONS:

Transportation of mechanically ventilated pa‘uent hould only be undertaken following a careful
evaluation of the risk-benefit ratio. s -

POLICY:

3. Inab111ty t6 mamtam alrway control during transport.
4. Transport should not be undertaken unless all the necessary members of the transport
team are present.

HAZARDS & COMPLICATIONS:

Hyperventilation during manual ventilation.

Loss of PEEP.

Inadvertent disconnection of intravenous access.

Movement may cause disconnection from the ventilatory support and respiratory
compromise.

Movement may result in accidental extubation.

Loss of oxygen supply may lead to hypoxemia.

7. Ventilator-associated pneumonia has been associated with transport.

halb el a e

e

Page 1 of 3




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title:  Inm-House Transport of Ventilator Dependant Patient

Department: Emergency Department,

Scope: Respiratory Therapists, ICU RN, ED RN | ICU/CCU, Radiology Respiratory Care

Source: Director of Respiratory Care Effective Date: 10-15-2012

PROCEDURE:

1.

Nursing staff will notify the Respiratory Therapist of the time and locatlon of the
transport. 5 ;

The Respiratory Therapist will obtain the necessary equlpment for the transport
including but not limited to: i

VersaMed I Vent
Resuscitation-bag with mask.
Peep adaptor if necessary
Full O2 E cylinder on I Vent
Spo2 monitor

Stethoscope

"o o o

There are two methods of transporting patl nts; the preferred way:

_and the patlent

Page 2 of 3

If the patient is in the ICU on the PB: 840 it is acceptable to use the VersaMed I-vent.
Use the same settings &  the PB 840, or as close as possible on the I-Vent. It is
preferable to place the patient on the I-Vent for 5-10 minutes before transporting to
monitor the patient on a differ nt ventilator. If the patient is not tolerating the I-Vent
iil needs to be transported follow procedure # 2.

| The I- Vent- can be ‘used as a transport ventilator; it has an internal battery that will last

appt "'"‘x1mately 2 hours on a full charge and an E Oxygen Cylinder that will last
appro mately 2 ‘hours at 100% FiO2.

When transporting the patient be aware of the possible pull on the endotracheal tube
from the ventilator. If necessary have someone push the ventilator while you are
holding the ET tube.

When reaching you destination it is preferable to connect to piped in oxygen if
available and plug the ventilator in.




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title:  In-House Transport of Ventilator Dependant Patient

Department: Emergency Department,
Scope: Respiratory Therapists, ICU RN, ED RN | ICU/CCU, Radiology Respiratory Care

Source: Director of Respiratory Care Effective Date: 10-15-2012
Option #2 If the patient is not tolerating the I-Vent and the patient still needs to be
transported.
1. If two therapists are working one will manually ventilate the patlent whﬂe the other

therapist moves the PB 840 ventilator to desired location.

2. If one therapist is working, the nurse or the therapist can bag the patient while
someone else moves the PB 840 ventilator to the desired lox

3. Once at the desired location the patlent w111 be connected to the ventllator on the
same settings. o :

RESPIRATORY DOCUMENTATION

1. The patient should be monitored on
procedure.

2. Document the transfer, Venulator checkﬁand breath sounds after moving the patient
and then after the return tnp a :

References: AARC Clini
Ventilate:g‘ Patient”_‘ :

al Practice Gu1del1ne “In-Hospital Transport of the Mechanically

Committee Approval’ Date
Respiratory Cate 9-12-2012
Revised

- Reviewed
Supercedes

Page 3 of 3




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Radiologist Peer Review Program
Scope: Departmental Department: Medical Staff, Radiology
Source: ACR/JCO Effective Date:

PURPOSE: To define, in accordance with 2005 ACR Guidelines and Technical Standards, the Northern
Inyo Hospital Radiology Peer Review Program

Policy:
1.

The peer review process will mclude a double reading by two M D.s - the interpreting radiologist and the

reviewing radiologist.
A representative sample equa[ to 5 % of the monthly exams p

events and cases identified by critical indicators.
The reviewing radiologist will document the level of agreem
with the following 4-point scale

a. 1-Concur with interpretation
b. 2 - Difficult diagnosis, not ordinarily expected to be made
c. 3 -Diagnosis should be made most of the ti

d. 4 - Diagnosis should be made almost eve

and 4 are as follows. Other actions can be su
a. Subgroup 3 —reviewing radiolpg
added?;to original exam repo i

Office

Committee Approvali?

Date

Radiology Services Coniiijtt;

Medical Executive Comnt

Administration

Board of Directors

Responsibility for review and maintenance:
Index Listings:

Initiated:

Revised/Reviewed:

Supercedes:



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Mammography - Self Referral
Scope: Department: Radiology
Source: Radiology Director Effective Date:

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to serve the patients in this community that need a
mammeogram but do not have a referring physician or do not have an order from their primary care
physician.

Definitions:
Self-referrals — patients requesting a screening mammogr:
Self-requests — patients referring themselves for a scree

care physician
Screening Mammogram- mammogram on a patient w
breast cancer.

) dg.not have a referring physwlan

POLICY: ,
1. Self-referrals will be scheduled for screening mammoggap|

a. Self-referrals may have a screening mammogram ofl

b. If the patient has any complaints or diagnoses other th

healthcare provider.

2. Self-requests will be scheduled for screenii

a. Self-requests may have a screen

b. If the patient has any complainis

healthcare provider.

3. Selfreferrals shall receive the m
terms.
4. Self-reqy

5. Self-referrals wj Ik beireferred to the physician or group of physicians that has agreed
to provide mgdical i S fphiysicians who have agreed to accept these patients is

on file and@;ay be prov1

6. Follow-u ’“ s with abnormal results (BIRADS 0, 3, 4, 5) to determine
that they vider for follow- -up care.

7. Inthe even ~requested patient is having a screening mammogram when the

interpreting logist is onsite termines a need for additional workup, the imaging department will
contact either] prgyider who has agreed to accept the patient or primary healthcare provider
provided by the an order for additional diagnostic workup.
Committee Approval Date
Radiology Services Committee _
Medical Executive Committee f/v (.‘_‘____4 >
Administration 1$vsv s2.
Board of Directors




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Playroom
Scope: Department: Medical/Surgical
Source: MedSurg Nurse Manager Effective Date:

PURPOSE: To ensure our pediatric patients have a safe place to play

POLICY: Nursing Services will provide a designated space for pediatric patients to play.

Parents/Nursing Staff or Volunteer must be in attendance while

Parents are instructed to place any toy their child uses that was i tient and or family into
the dirty toy bin.

Only basic toys are supplied by the hospital (i.c., paper, color cra-
electronics will be supplied by the patient and family and will be re:
discharge.

Date

Pediatrics/Perinatal C 10/30/12

Medical Staff
Board of Directors

Revised
Reviewed
Supercedes




THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



NORHTERN INYO HOSPITAL
SECURITY REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2012

FACILITY SECURITY

Access security during this period revealed twenty four instarces of open or unsecured entry doors
being located during those hours when doors were to be secure. 10 interior doors were found unsecure
during this period.

The Old Building roof access was found open twice during this period.
Two Hospital vehicles were found unlocked this month.
HUMAN SECURITY

On September 10", Environmental Services Staff reported seeing an unknown person enter Dr. Reed’s
Office on Pioneer Lane. Security Staff responded, located and identified the subject as a family member
of Dr. Reed.

On September 14", Security stood by with a disruptive, belligerent, ED patient throughout treatment
and discharge.

On September 15™, ED Staff requested Security for an intoxicated, uncooperative patient. Security Staff
stood by throughout treatment and discharge.

On September 18", OB Staff requested Security for an angry, uncooperative, Father who was being
asked to leave. The Father left Campus without incident.

On September 18" a student’s backpack was located on the north lawn of the Pioneer Building.
Paperwork identified a possible owner. Pine Street School was contacted and the backpack was
returned to the owner.

On September 19™, Security Staff stood by with a couple having a dispute regarding an OB issue.

On September 21, Security was called to the ED for a disruptive patient. Security Staff stood by during
treatment until discharge,

{1)



On September 26", Inyo County Sheriff and Bishop Police personnel arrived in the ED with a combative
arrestee for Medical Clearance. Security Staff assisted in the restraint during treatment of the patient
until Medical Clearance and discharge was complete. '

On September 27%, ED Staff requested Security standby while a potential drug seeking, patient was
advised, no narcotics would be prescribed. The advisement, although not satisfactory with the patient,
went without incident.

Security Staff provided Law Enforcement assistance twelve times this month. One instance was for a
Lab BAC.

Security Staff provided patient assistance on 53 occasions this month.

Srd

102112



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
SECURITY REPORT

OCTOBER 2012

FACILITY SECURITY

Access security during this period revealed eighteen instances of open or unsecured entry doors being
located during those hours when doors were to be secure. Three interior doors were found unsecure
during this period.

The Old Building roof access was found unsecure on one occasion.
One Hospital Vehicle was found with the keys present in the vehicle.
ALARMS

On October 19", the Infant Security System activated. It was determined that a Staff member
approached too closely to a sensor with a newborn.

On October 21%, Security Staff identified a Tube System alarm sounding in the Outpatient Lab. The
system checked OK and the alarm was cleared.

HUMAN SECURITY

On October 1%, a Staff member reported a loud and obnoxious individual sitting near the Oxygen Plant
adjacent to W. Line Street. Security responded to the area and was unable to locate the subject.

On October 2", Security Staff responded to the ED and stood by for a volatile ICSO in-custody, being
med cleared for transportation to the jail.

On October 6", Security Staff was called to ICU for a combative OD Patient. The patient was controlled
and placed in 4-way restraints,

On October 21%, an eighteen year old female presented into the ED with self inflicted forearm
facerations. Once triaged and shortly thereafter, this patient left without treatment. Security Staff was
advised and Law Enforcement was contacted. The patient was located and contacted at a family's
residence, where it was determined by Law Enforcement that she was not 5150. Medical Staff made
contact by phone and encouraged the patient to return for further treatment.



On October 21%, ICSO Staff presented with an in-custody for med-clearance. Upon leaving the ED after
evaluation, the arrestee became combative and received additional minor injuries. Security Staff was
present when the fight broke out and assisted with control of the subject. The subject was treated for
the new injuries and again cleared for transport to the jail.

On October 27", Security stood by with a potential 5150 while Inyo County Mental Health Staff
evaluated the subject. The subject was later transported to the Progress House.

On October 28", Security Staff was advised of a subject staying in a motorhome to the north side of
RHC. It was reported that the subject was a patient of the Hospital and had been given permission to
stay for a short period of time while receiving treatment. It was later determined that the subject was
using electricity from Hospital buildings and was dumping gray-water into the creek at the rear of RHC.
This subject was advised with regard to the dumping of gray-water and in the interim it was determined
that the subject might not have a legitimate need to stay on Campus.

Prior to any decision with regard to the stay, a Hospital employee reported to Security, what sounded
like a loud and violent fight taking place in the motorhome between a male and female. Security Staff
responded to the area and confirmed a possible fight was in progress in the motorhome. Bishop Police
were notified and responded, whereupon their arrival the parties were contacted. The parties denied
any such fight.

While investigating the matter, a member of the Bishop Tribal Police arrived at the scene and advised
that the parties had been recently removed from Tribal Lands for Trespass. The removal had been
spurred by an act of Demestic Violence allegedly committed by the male party in this matter, who was
subsequently taken into custody by the Sheriff’s Department.

The investigation in this matter did not determine if a crime had been committed, however it was
determined that any future stay on Campus was not beneficial to the Hospital interests and the parties
were asked to leave. They were advised that they were welcome to return for any future medical
needs.

On November 2", the individuals in the above matter returned and the male party was receiving
treatment in the ED. Security was advised and the parties requested permission to camp to the rear of
RHC. Security advised that camping was not an option. The patient became volatile and stormed out of
the ED. Security Staff followed the patient to observe him leaving Campus when the patient confronted
the Security Officer and challenged him to fight. The Police Department was immediately called. The
patient drove off prior to the arrival of Law Enforcement. At the time and date of this report the parties

have not returned.

(2)



Security Staff provided Law Enforcement assistance in eleven instances this month. Four occasions were
for Lab BAC's.

Security Staff assisted with three potential 5150 Patients during this period.

Security Staff provided weil over 100 patient assists this month. Many of which were attributed to the
opening of the new facility.

(3)

Srd

110912



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



Quint & Thimmig LLP 10/11/12
10/22/12
10/31/12
12/10/12

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 12-08

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF A SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST, AN
ESCROW AGREEMENT, A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND A
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE,
SALE AND DELIVERY OF NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL
DISTRICT REVENUE BONDS AND APPROVING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Northern Inyo County Local
Hospital District (the “District”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its $8,000,000 Northern Inyo County Local
Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, currently outstanding in
the principal amount of $6,025,000 (the “1998 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing and
refinancing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health facilities
owned and operated by the District;

WHEREAS, the 1998 Bonds were issued pursuant to that certain Indenture of Trust,
dated as of December 1, 1998 (the “Original Indenture”), by and between the District and U.S.
Trust Company, National Association (since succeeded by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A ), as trustee (the “Trustee”);

WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $11,600,000 Northern Inyo County
Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, currently
outstanding in the principal amount of $11,090,000 (the “2010 Bonds”), for the purpose of
financing and refinancing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of health
facilities owned and operated by the District;

WHEREAS, the 2010 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended
and supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2010, by
and between the District and the Trustee;

WHEREAS, the District desires to (a) finance the remodeling, expansion, improvement
and equiptﬁing of health facilities owned and operated by the District and reimburse the District
for costs thereof previously made, including but not limited to any or all expenses incidental
thereto or connected therewith (the “2013 Project”) and (b) refund the 1998 Bonds;

WHEREAS, to finance the 2013 Project and refund the 1998 Bonds, the District has
determined to issue its Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the 2013 Bonds”), on a parity as to payment and security with the
2010 Bonds;

WHEREAS, the District has determined to take all necessary action to accomplish the
issuance, sale and delivery of the 2013 Bonds;

WHEREAS, the District has determined that certain provisions of the Original Indenture
are inconsistent and defective relating to the ability of the District to secure a borrowing with its
accounts receivable and fo calculate its debt service coverage ratio; and

14003.04



WHEREAS, Section 12.01(b) of the Original Indenture provides that the Indenture and
the rights and obligations of the District, of the Trustee and of the Owners of the Bonds (as
defined in the Original Indenture) may be modified or amended from time to time and at any
time by a supplemental indenture, which the District and the Trustee may enter into without
the consent of any Bondowners but only to the extent permitted by law and only for certain
purposes including to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity,
inconsistency or omission, or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained in the
Indenture, or in regard to matters or questions arising under the Incganture, as the District may
deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the Indenture, and which shall not
materially adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows:

Section 1. The plan to finance the 2013 Project and refund the 1998 Bonds is hereby
authorized and apgroved with such changes as are finally approved by the President or the
Chief Executive Ofticer/Chief Financial Officer, or the designee thereof.

Section 2. The issuance of the 2013 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to
exceed $17,000,000 to finance the 2013 Project, refund the 199% Bonds, deposit moneys in the
Bond Reserve Account under the Original Indenture and pay the costs of issuance of the 2013
Bonds is hereby authorized and approved.

Section 3. The form of a second supplemental indenture of trust, by and between the
District and the Trustee, amending and supplementing the Original Indenture, as previously
amended and sup[?lemented (the “Second Supplemental Indenture”), on file with the Board
Secretary, is hereby approved. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief
Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the
name of the District, to execute and deliver the Second Supplemental Indenture in the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes therein as the officer executing the same may
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the
Second Supplemental Indenture. The date, maturity dates, interest rates, interest payment
dates, denominations, forms, registration privile%es, place or places of payment, terms of
redemption and other terms of the 2013 Bonds shall be as provided in the Second Supplemental
Indenture, as finally executed. The provisions of the Second Supplemental Indenture relating to
the correction of the defective portions of the Original Indenture relating to the ability of the
District to secure a borrowing with its accounts receivable and a change in the calculation of the
debt service coverage ratio are hereby approved.

Section 4. The form of escrow deposit and trust agreement, by and between the District
and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as escrow bank, providing for the
defeasance of the 1998 Bonds (the “Escrow Agreement”), on file with the Board Secretary, is
hereby approved. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer, or
the designee thereof, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name of the District, to
execute and deliver the Escrow Agreement in the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes therein as the officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Escrow Agreement.

Section 5. The form of official statement relating to the 2013 Bonds, on file with the Board
Secretary, is hereby approved. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief
Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the
name of the District, to execute and deliver an official statement in substantially the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes therein as the officer executing the same ma
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of suc
oﬁ-}i)cial statement and to certify or represent that prior to purchase, offer or sale of the 2013
Bonds, the official statement in preliminary form is deemed final by the District for purposes of
Rule 15(c)2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Distribution of the official statement
to the purchasers of the 2013 Bonds is hereby authorized and distribution of the official



statement in preliminary form to persons interested in the purchase of the 2013 Bonds is hercby
approved.

Section 6. The form of bond purchase agreement by and between the District and Piper
Jaffray & Co. and Southwest Securities Inc., as underwriters (the “Underwriters”), on file with
the Secretary, is hereby approved. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief
Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, is hereby authorized and directed for and in the name
of the District, to execute and deliver a bond purchase agreement, in substantially the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes therein as the officer executing the 'same ma
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of suc
bond purchase agreement, so long as the Underwriters” discount for purchase of the 2013 Bonds
does not exceed 0.85% (not including any original issue discount which does not constitute
compensation to the Underwriters).

Section 7. The 2013 Bonds shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the
Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer, or the designee thereof,
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Board, in the form set forth in and otherwise in accordance with the Second Supplemental
Indenture of trust.

Section 8. The 2013 Bonds, when so executed, shall be delivered to the Trustee for
authentication by the Trustee. The Trustee is hereby requested and directed to authenticate the
2013 Bonds by executing the Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication appearing thereon, and to
deliver the 2013 Bonds, when duly executed and authenticated, to the order of the Underwriters.
in accordance with written instructions of the District. Said instructions shall provide for the
de]ive;y of the 2013 Bonds to the order of the Underwriters upon payment of the purchase price
thereof.

Section 9. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer /Chief Financial Officer, or
the designee thereof, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name of the District, to
execute and deliver any other documents as may be deemed necessary or appropriate to issue
the 2013 Bonds, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of
such documents.

Section 10. The Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Board is hereby authorized and
directed to attest the signature of the President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial
Officer, or the designee thereof, as may be required in connection with the execution and
delivery of the Second Supplemental indenture, the bond purchase agreement, the official
statement and the 2013 Bonds in accordance with this resolution.

Section 11. The Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer, or
the designee thereof, are each hereby authorized and directed to do the following with respect
to the issuance of the 2013 Bonds:

(a) take any and all actions and execute, acknowledge, deliver and file any and all
agreements, instruments or other documents of any kind required of the District; and

(b) act as an agent to the District for the Ipurposes; of issuing the 2013 Bonds and any
additional negotiations, authorizations, approval, executions, consents, notices, deliveries or
other acts required to issue such 2013 Bonds.

Section 12. All actions taken by the Board President or the Chief Executive Officer/Chief
Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, and other officers or directors of the District which
have been undertaken to date or which will be undertaken with respect to the planning,
negotiation, authorization, approvals and implementation of the financing plan are hereby
ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects.



Section 13. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.
T

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of December, 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINING:

President, Board of Directors
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital
District

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District held on the 19th day of
December, 2012

Secretary, Board of Directors
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital
District



Quint & Thimmig LLP 10/11/12
10/22/12
10/31/12

S
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Inyo County, California)
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

January 9, 2013

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District
1500 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, California 93514

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned, Piper Jaffray & Co. (the “Representative”) on behalf of itself and
Southwest Securities Inc., as underwriters (collectively, the “Underwriters”), offers to enter into
this Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) with the Northern Inyo
County Local Hospital District (the “District”), which, upon acceptance of this offer, will be
binding upon the District and the Underwriters.

The District hereby acknowledges and agrees that (a) the purchase and sale of the Bonds
(as defined herein) pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial
transaction between the District and the Underwriters, (b) in connection therewith and with the
discussions, undertakings and procedures leading up to the consummation of such transaction,
the Underwriters are and have been acting solely as principals and are not acting as the agents
or fiduciaries of the District, (c) the Underwriters have not assumed an advisory or fiduciary
responsibility in favor of the District with respect to the offering and sale of the Bonds
contemplated hereby or the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto
(irrespective of whether the Underwriters have provided other services or are currently
providing other services to the District on other matters) and the Underwriters have no
obligation to the District with respect to the offering and sale of the Bonds contemplated hereby
except the obligations expressly set forth in this Bond Purchase Agreement, and (d) the District
has -consulted its own legal, financial and other advisors to the extent it has deemed
appropriate, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the other matters contemplated
by this Bond Purchase Agreement. The undersigned Representative has been duly authorized
to execute this Bond Purchase Agreement on behalf of the Underwriters and to act hereunder.

This offer is made subject to acceptance by the District at or before 11:59 p.m., California
time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will be subject to withdrawal by the
Underwriters upon written notice delivered to the District at any time prior to such acceptance.

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1998, by and between the District
and U.S. Trust Company, National Association, since succeeded by The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”), as amended and supplemented by the

14003.04



First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “First Supplemental Indenture”),
between the District and the Trustee, and as further amended and supplemented by the Second
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (the “Second Supplemental Indenture”),
between the District and the Trustee. Said Indenture as so supplemented is hereinafter referred
to as the “Indenture.”

The Bonds are being issued to (a) finance the remodeling, expansion, improvement and
equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District and reimburse the District
for costs thereof previously made, including but not limited to any or all expenses incidental
thereto or connected therewith, (b) refund the District’s outstanding Northern Inyo County
Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 (the “1998
Bonds”), (c) make a deposit to the reserve fund under the Indenture, if required, and (d) pay
certain costs and expenses related to the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

Section 1. Purchase, Sale, Offering and Delivery of Bonds.
(a) Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations, warranties

and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from the District,
and the District hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriters, all (but not less than all) of the

District’s $ aggregate principal amount of Northern Inyo County Local Hospital
District {Inyo County, California} Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”), at a purchase price
of § (representingthe $__ aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, less the

Underwriters” discount of $ less net original issue discount of $ ). The
Bonds shall be dated the date of their delivery, and shall mature, subject to prior redemption, on
the dates and bear interest from the date thereof at the rates per annum set forth in Schedule A
attached hereto. The Bonds shall be subject to redemption as described in Schedule A attached
hereto.

(b) The Bonds shall be as described in and shall be issued pursuant to the Indenture,
substantially in the form previously submitted to the Representative, with only such changes
therein as shall be mutually agreed upon. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used
to (i) fund the Project (as such term is defined in the Preliminary Official Statement), (ii) fund
the Bond Reserve Account, and (iii) pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance and
sale of the Bonds. The Bonds will be limited obligations of the District payable solely from
Revenues and secured by a pledge of the District’s Gross Revenues and of amounts held in
certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture, subject only to the provisions
of the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and
conditions set forth in the Indenture.

(c) The District has heretofore prepared and delivered to the Representative the
Preliminary Official Statement dated December 31, 2012 (together with all appendices thereto,
the “Preliminary Official Statement”), with respect to the Bonds, which the District confirms it
has “deemed final” for purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). The District ratifies and consents to the distribution by the
Underwriters prior to the date hereof of the Preliminary Official Statement in connection with
the public offering of the Bonds.

(d) Concurrently with its acceptance hereof, or as soon thereafter as practicable but not
later than seven (7) business days, the District shall deliver to the Representative two executed
copies of the Official Statement (including the appendices attached thereto) relating to the
Bonds, dated the date hereof (such Official Statement, together with all Appendices thereto and
any amendments or supplements thereto, is herein referred to as the “Official Statement”)
substantially in the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement with only such changes

2-



therein as shall have been accepted by the Representative, signed on behalf of the District by the
President of its Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or such other official of the
District as shall be acceptable to the Representative. The District hereby authorizes the use by
the Underwriters of the Indenture and the Official Statement and the information contained
therein in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds. The District agrees to provide to
the Underwriters within seven (7) business days of the date hereof sufficient copies of the
Official Statement to enable the Underwriters to comply with the requirements of paragraph
(bX4) of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Commission and with requirements of Rule G-32 of the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board.

{e) The Underwriters agree to make an initial public offering of the Bonds at not in
excess of the initial public offering prices set forth on the cover page of the Official Statement;
provided, however, the Underwriters reserve the right to make concessions to dealers and to
change such initial public offering prices as the Underwriters shall deem necessary in
connection with the marketing of the Bonds. The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to
certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower
than such public offering prices. In connection with the offering of the Bonds, the Underwriters
may over-allot or effect transactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Bonds at a
level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if
commenced, may be discontinued at any time by the Underwriters without prior notice.

(f) At 8:00 a.m., California time, on January 29, 2013, or on such earlier or later date as
shall be agreed upon in writing by the District and the Representative (the “Closing Date”), the
District shall direct the Trustee to deliver the Bonds (which may be typewritten) to the
Representative, at the office of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) in definitive form, duly
executed and authenticated, in New York, New York (or with the Trustee in the event of a Fast
Automated Securities Transfer (F.A.5.T.)), or at such other location as may be designated by the
Representative and approved by the District, and shall deliver to the Representative the other
documents herein mentioned at the offices of Quint & Thimmig LLP, San Francisco, California
(“Bond Counsel”), or such other Jocation as may be mutually agreed upon by the District and
the Representative. The Representative will accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of
the Bonds as set forth in Section 1(a) hereof in immediately available funds by federal funds or
wire transfer to the order of the Trustee. The Bonds shall be issued in the form of one fully
registered Bond for each serial and term maturity of the Bonds, and shall be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC.

(g) It shall be a condition to the obligation of the Underwriters to purchase and accept
delivery of the Bonds that all Bonds be sold and delivered by the District to the Underwriters at
the Closing and that all obligations of the parties to this Bond Purchase Agreement shall have
been satisfied or waived in writing prior to the Closing,.

Section 2. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the District. The District
represents and warrants to and agrees with the Underwriters that:

(a) The District is and will be at the Closing Date a political subdivision of the State of
California and a local health care district duly organized and existing under The Local Health
Care District Law, constituting Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code, with the
full power and authority to issue the Bonds and to execute this Bond Purchase Agreement, the
Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated as of January 1, 2013 (the “Disclosure
Certificate”), and the Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement, dated the Closing Date (the
“Escrow Agreement”), by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as escrow bank (the “Escrow Bank”), relating to the defeasance of the 1998
Bonds, and to carry out and consummate all transactions on its part contemplated by this Bond



Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement and the
Official Statement;

(b) When delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters at the Closing in accordance
with the provisions of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Bonds will have been duly
authorized, executed, issued and delivered and will constitute valid and binding limited
obligations of the District in conformity with, and entitled to the benefit and security of, the
Indenture;

(c) By official action of the District prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof,
the District has adopted and authorized the distribution of the Official Statement, and
authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and the performance by the District of
the obligations on its part contained in, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the
Escrow Agreement and this Bond Purchase Agreement and the consummation by the District of
all other transactions contemplated by the Official Statement and this Bond Purchase
Agreement;

(d) Except for any matter described under “LITIGATION” in the Official Statement,
there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any
court or administrative body pending or, to the knowledge of the District, threatened against or
affecting the District or to the knowledge of the District, any meritorious basis therefor, wherein
an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the District, the operation by the District of its properties or the transactions
contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Preliminary Official Statement, or
would have an adverse effect on the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the Indenture, the
Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement or any agreement or instrument by which the
District is or may be bound or in any way adversely affect the existence or powers of the District
or in any way adversely affect the excludability from gross income for federal income tax
purposes of interest on the Bonds, except litigation, proceedings or claims involving
professional liability claims or general liability claims in which the probable ultimate recoveries
and the estimated costs and expenses of defense, in the opinion of counsel to the District, will be
entirely within applicable insurance policy limits (subject to applicable deductibles) or not in
excess of the total available reserves held under applicable self-insurance programs;

(e) The information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement relating to (i) the
District and the Hospital Facilities, (ii) the District’s operations and financial and other affairs,
(iii} the application of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds and (iv) the participation by the District
in the transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Preliminary Official
Statement was, as of its date, and will be, as of the Closing Date, true and correct in all material
respects. The Preliminary Official Statement does not contain, and the Official Statement, as of
its date and as of the Closing Date, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact, and
the Preliminary Official Statement does not omit and the Official Statement, as of its date and as
of the Closing Date, will not omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading;

(f) The District will furnish such information, execute such instruments and take such
other action in cooperation with the Underwriters as the Representative may reasonably request
in order for the Underwriters (i) to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or
other securities laws and regulations of such states and other jurisdictions of the United States
as the Underwriters may designate, and (ii) to determine the eligibility of the Bonds for
investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and will use its best efforts to
continue such qualification in effect so long as required for distribution of the Bonds; provided,



however, that in no event shall the District be required to take any action that would subject it
to general or unlimited service of process in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so subject;

(g) If between the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement and 90 days following the
Closing Date any event shall occur which might or would cause the Official Statement to
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state any material fact necessary to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, the District shall notify the Underwriters and if, in the opinion of the
Representative, such event requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or
amendment to the Official Statement, the District will supplement or amend the Official
Statement in a form and in a manner approved by the Representative, provided all expenses
thereby incurred will be paid by the District. If the Official Statement is so supplemented or
amended prior to the Closing, such approval by the Representative of a supplement or
amendment to the Official Statement shall not preclude the Representative from thereafter
terminating this Bond Purchase Agreement, and if the Official Statement is so amended or
supplemented subsequent to the date hereof and prior to the Closing, the Representative may
terminate this Bond Purchase Agreement by notification to the District at any time prior to the
Closing if, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, such amendment or supplement
has or will have a material adverse effect on the marketability of the Bonds;

(h) The issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Second
Supplemental Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement and this Bond
Purchase Agreement, and compliance with the provisions on the District’s part contained
therein or herein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any law,
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement or other instrument to which the District is a party or is otherwise subject, nor will
any such issuance, execution, delivery, adoption or compliance result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature
whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of the District under the terms of any such law,
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement or other instrument, except as provided by the Indenture;

(i) To the best of its knowledge, the District is not in breach of or in default under any
existing law or administrative regulation of the State of California or the United States or any
applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, mortgage,
resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the District is a party or is otherwise subject,
and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of
notice, or both, would constitute a default or an event of default thereunder, in either case in
any manner or to any extent which could have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the District, the operation by the District of the Hospital Facilities or the
transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Official Statement, or
have an adverse effect on the validity or enforceability in accordance with their respective terms
of the Bonds, the Disclosure Certificate, the Indenture or the Escrow Agreement, or in any way
adversely affect the existence or powers of the District or in any way materially adversely affect
the excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds;

(j)' The District is not, nor has it been at any time subsequent to June 30, 2012, in default
in the payment of principal of or interest on any obligation issued or guaranteed by the District;

(k) After the Closing, the District will (i} not participate in the issuance of any
amendment of or supplement to the Official Statement to which, after being furnished with a
copy, the Representative shall reasonably object in writing or which shall be disapproved by
counsel to the Underwriters and (i) for so long as the Underwriters are obligated to deliver
final Official Statements to prospective purchasers, if any event relating to or affecting the

5-



District shall occur as a result of which it is necessary, in the opinion of counsel for the
Underwriters, to amend or supplement the Official Statement in order to make the Official
Statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances existing at the time it is delivered to a
prospective purchaser, forthwith prepare and furnish to the Underwriters (at the expense of the
District for 25 days from the Closing Date) a reasonable number of copies of an amendment of
or supplement to the Official Statement (in form and substance satisfactory to counsel for the
Underwriters) which will amend or supplement the Official Statement so that it will not contain
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances existing at the time the Official
Statement is delivered to prospective purchasers, not misleading. For the purposes of this
subsection, the District will furnish such information with respect to itself as the Representative
may from time to time reasonably request. Unless otherwise notified by the Representative, the
District can assume that the end of the underwriting period (as defined in Rule 15c2-12) is the
Closing Date;

(I) No consent or approval of any trustee or holder of any indebtedness of the District,
and no consent, permission, authorization, order or license of, or filing or registration with, any
governmental authority (except in connection with Blue Sky proceedings, as to which no
representation is being made) is necessary in connection with the execution and delivery of this
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Second Supplemental Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the
Escrow Agreement, the Official Statement or the consummation of any transaction therein or
herein contemplated, except as have been obtained or made and are in full force and effect. The
District makes no representation as to any approvals or actions as may be required under any
state or federal blue sky or securities laws;

(m) The District has received and there remain currently in full force and effect, or will
receive prior to the delivery of the Bonds, all governmental consents and approvals (i) that
would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the District of its obligations
hereunder, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement or the Indenture or the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Official Statement or this Bond Purchase
Agreement, and (ii) to qualify the District for reimbursement for its costs and expenses under all
third party payor programs accounting for a significant portion of the District’s Gross
Revenues, including without limitation, Medicare and Medi-Cal;

(n) The District has met all of its continuing disclosure obligations with respect to the
1998 Bonds and its outstanding Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Inyo County,
California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, and with respect to any other obligations subject to
similar continuing disclosure undertakings, including its previously issued general obligation
bonds;

(0) Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the District will not, without the prior
written consent of the Representative, except as described in or contemplated by the Official
Statement, incur any material liabilities, direct or contingent, other than in the ordinary course
of business;

{(p) To the extent permitted by law, the District agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
the Underwriters, each director, trustee, member, officer, official, employee thereof, attorneys
therefor and each person, if any, who controls the Underwriters within the meaning of Section
15 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or Section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) against any and all judgments, losses,
claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (i) to which any such Indemnified Party may become
subject, under federal laws or regulations or otherwise, insofar as such judgments, losses,
claims, damages or liabilities (or actions with respect thereto) arise out of or are based upon any
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact set forth in the Official

-6-



Statement, or any amendment or supplement thereto, or the Preliminary Official Statement, or
arise out of or are based upon the omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact
required to be stated therein or which is necessary to make the statements made therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material respect,
and (ii) to the extent of the aggregate amount paid in settlement of any litigation or other action
commenced or threatened arising from a claim based upon any such untrue statement or
alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission if such settlement is effected with the
written consent of the District; and will reimburse any legal or other expenses reasonably
incurred by any such Indemnified Party in connection with investigating or defending any such
judgment, loss, claim, damage, liability or action; provided, however, that (A} such indemnity
shall not extend to information provided to the District in writing by the Underwriters,
included on the cover page of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement
regarding the principal amounts, interest rates, maturities and initial public offering prices of
the Bonds or included therein under the caption “Annual Debt Service Requirements” and (B)
such indemnity with respect to information in the Preliminary Official Statement shall not inure
to the benefit of the Underwriters (or any person controlling the Underwriters within the
meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act) from whom the
person asserting such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or actions purchased the Bonds which
are the subject thereof, if the Underwriters failed to send or give a copy of the Official Statement
at or prior to the settlement of a sale of such Bonds to such person and the Official Statement
would have corrected the alleged untrue statement or omission in the Preliminary Official
Statement. Promptly after receipt by an Indemnified Party under this subsection of notice of the
commencement of any action, such Indemnified Party will, if a claim with respect thereto is to
be made against the District under this subsection, give notice to the District of the
commencement thereof; but the omission so to notify the District will not relieve the District
from any liability which it may have to any Indemnified Party otherwise than under this
subsection. Upon receipt of such notice, the District shall assume the defense thereof, including
the retaining of counsel acceptable to the Underwriters and the payment of all expenses. The
Underwriters or any such controlling person shall have the right to retain separate counsel in
any such action and to participate in the defense thereof but shall bear the fees and expenses of
such counsel unless (I) the District shall have specifically authorized the retaining of such
counsel or (I} the parties to such suit include the Underwriters or controlling person or persons,
and the District and the Underwriters or controlling person or persons have been advised by
such counsel that one or more legal defenses may be available to it or them that may not be
available to the District, in which case the District shall not be entitled to assume the defense of
such suit notwithstanding its obligation to bear the fees and expenses of such counsel.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any obligation of the District to pay
indemnification as provided in this subsection (p) shall be paid solely from moneys legally
available for such purpose;

(@) To provide for just and equitable contribution in circumstances in which the
indemnification provided for in subsection (p) above is applicable but for any reason is held to
be unavailable from the District, the District and the Underwriters shall contribute to the
aggregate losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including any investigation, legal and other
expenses incurred in connection with, and any amount paid in settlement of, any action, suit or
proceeding or any claims asserted, but after deducting any contribution received by the District
from persons who control the District within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, or officials of the District who sign the Official Statement,
who also may be liable for contribution) to which the District and the Underwriters may be
subject in such proportions that the Underwriters is responsible for that portion represented by
the percentage that the underwriting discount set forth in the Official Statement bears to the
aggregate offering price appearing thereon and the District is responsible for the balance;
provided, however, that (i) in no case shall the Underwriters be responsible for any amount in
excess of the underwriting discount applicable to the Bonds purchased by the Underwriters

7-



pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement, and (if) no person responsible for a material
misstatement or omission in the Official Statement shall be entitled to contribution from any
person who was not responsible for such material misstatement or omission. For purposes of
this subsection (q), each person, if any, who controls the Underwriters within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, shall have the same rights
to contribution as the Underwriters, each person, if any, who controls the District within the
meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, and each
official of the District who has signed the Official Statement shall have the same rights to
contribution as the District, subject in each case to clauses (i) and (ii) of this subsection (q). Any
party entitled to contribution will, promptly after receipt of notice of commencement of any
action, suit or proceeding against such party in respect of which a claim for contribution may be
made against another party or parties under this subsection (q), notify such party or parties
from whom contribution may be sought, but the omission to so notify such party or parties
from whom contribution may be sought shall not relieve the party or parties from whom
contribution may be sought from any other obligation it or they may have hereunder or
otherwise than under this subsection (q). No party shall be liable for contribution with respect
to any action or claim settled without its consent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, any obligation of the District for contribution as provided in this subsection (q) shall
be paid solely from moneys legally available for such purpose;

(r} The Hospital Facilities are owned or leased and operated by the District. The District
has all necessary leases, licenses, permits, accreditations and certifications required to carry on
and operate the Health Facilities. The District has all power and authority to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Official Statement,
including the execution, delivery and/or approval of all documents and agreements referred to
herein or therein. The District has not received notice of an alleged violation and, to the best of
its knowledge, the District is not in violation of any zoning, land use, environmental or other
similar law or regulation applicable to any of the District’s property or the Hospital Facilities
that could adversely affect the District’s operations or financial condition;

{s) The District duly authorized all necessary action to be taken by it for: (i) the issuance
and sale of the Bonds by the District upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, in the
Official Statement and in the Indenture and the approval of the Official Statement and the
Bonds; and (ii) the execution, delivery and receipt of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the
Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement and the Official Statement, and any
and all such agreements, certificates and documents as may be required to be executed,
delivered and received by the District to carry out, effect and consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby and by the Official Statement, including but not limited to such
certifications as may be necessary to establish and preserve excludability from gross income for
federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds;

(t} The District’s audited financial statements as of June 30, 2012, and for the period then
ended, are a fair presentation of the financial position of the District as of the dates indicated
and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the periods specified. Except as
described in the Official Statement, since June 30, 2012, there has been no material adverse
change in the condition, financial or otherwise, of the District from that set forth in the audited
financial statements as of and for the period ended that date; and the District has not, since June
30, 2012, incurred any material liabilities, directly or indirectly, except in the ordinary course of
its operations;

(u) The District will not take or omit to take any action that will in any way cause the
proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to be applied or result in such proceeds being applied in a
manner other than as provided in the Indenture; and



(v) Each representation, warranty or agreement stated in any certificate signed by any
official of the District and delivered to the Representative on or before the Closing Date shall
constitute a representation, warranty or agreement by the District upon which the Underwriters
shall be entitled to rely.

Section 3. Conditions to the Obligations of the Underwriters. The obligation of the
Underwriters to purchase, accept delivery of, and pay for the Bonds on the Closing Date shall
be subject to the performance prior to or concurrently with the Closing Date by the District of its
obligations to be performed under this Bond Purchase Agreement and the accuracy of the
representations and warranties of the District contained herein as of the date hereof and as of
the Closing Date, and shall also be subject to the following additional conditions:

(a) At the time of Closing, (i) each of the Second Supplemental Indenture, the Official
Statement, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, this Bond Purchase Agreement
and the Bonds shall have been duly authorized, executed and delivered, and each of the
foregoing shall be in full force and effect in the form heretofore submitted to the Representative
and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except as may have been agreed
to by the Representative, (ii) the proceeds of sale of the Bonds shall be paid to the Trustee for
deposit or use as described in the Official Statement and (iii) there shall have been taken in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds and with the transactions contemplated thereby and
by this Bond Purchase Agreement all such actions as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be
necessary and appropriate.

(b) Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the market price or marketability of
the Bonds, at the initial offering prices set forth in the Official Statement, shall not have been
materially adversely affected, in the judgment of the Representative (evidenced by a written
notice by the Representative to the District terminating the obligations of the Underwriters to
purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds), by reason of any of the following:

(1) legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress of the United States or the
Legislature of the State of California or favorably reported thereto for passage by any
Committee to which such legislation has been referred for consideration or be pending
before any such Committee or shall have been recommended to the Congress of the
United States for passage by the President of the United States or recommended to the
Legislature of the State of California for passage by the Governor of the State of
California, or a decision shall have been rendered by a court of the United States,
including the Tax Court of the United States, or of the State of California, or a ruling or
an official release shall have been made or a regulation shall have been proposed or
made by the Treasury Department of the United States or the Internal Revenue Service
or other federal or State of California authority having jurisdiction over tax matters, with
respect to federal or State of California taxation upon revenues or other income of the
District or upon interest on obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or other
actions or events shall have transpired that would, in the reasonable judgment of the
Representative, have the purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of changing the federal
or State of California tax consequences of any of the transactions contemplated in
connection herewith and that in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, affects
materially and adversely (i) the market price or marketability of the Bonds, or (ii} the
ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds;

(2) legislation shall have been enacted or introduced in the Congress or
recommended for passage by the President of the United States, or a decision rendered
by a court established under Article III of the Constitution of the United States or by the
Tax Court of the United States, or an order, ruling, regulation (final, temporary or
proposed) or official statement issued or made by or on behalf of the Securities and

9-



Exchange Commission, or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the
subject matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or the
Bonds, including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from registration
under the Securities Act or that the Indenture is not exempt from qualification under the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “Trust Indenture Act”);

(3) the outbreak or escalation of hostilities involving the United States or the
declaration by the United States of a national emergency or war or the occurrence of any
other national emergency or calamity relating to the effective operation of the
government of or the financial community in the United States;

(4) the declaration of a general banking moratorium by federal, New York or
California authorities, or the general suspension of trading on any national securities
exchange;

{5) the imposition by the New York Stock Exchange or other national securities
exchange, or any governmental authority, of any material restrictions not now in force
with respect to the Bonds or obligations of the general character of the Bonds or
securities generally, or the material increase of any such restrictions now in force,
including those relating to the extension of credit by, or any change to the net capital
requirements of, the Underwriters;

(6) an order, decree or injunction of any court of competent jurisdiction, or order,
ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed} or official statement by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the
subject matter, issued or made to the effect that the issuance, offering or sale of
obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or the issuance, offering or sale of the
Bonds, including any or all underlying obligations, as contemplated hereby or by the
Official Statement, is or would be in violation of the federal securities laws as amended
and then in effect; or

(7) any event occurring, or information becoming known which, in the
reasonable judgment of the Representative, makes untrue in any material respect any
statement or information contained in the Official Statement, or has the effect that the
Official Statement contains any untrue statement of material fact or omits to state a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and

(c} At or prior to the Closing, the Representative shall have received the following, in
each case satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative:

(1) The Official Statement signed on behalf of the District by the President of its
Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer or other duly authorized officer of the
District acceptable to the Representative and fully executed copies of the Second
Supplemental Indenture, the Escrow Agreement and the Disclosure Certificate.

(2) A certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by an authorized officer of the
District to the effect that (A) since June 30, 2012, the District has not incurred any
material liabilities, direct or contingent, nor has there been any material adverse change
in the financial position, results of operation or condition of the District that is not
described in the Official Statement, unless arising from transactions in the ordinary
course of business; (B) no litigation is pending or, to such officer’s best knowledge,
threatened (i) to restrain or enjoin the collection of Gross Revenues pledged or to be
pledged under the Indenture, (ii) in any way contesting or affecting any authority for the

-10-



issuance of the Bonds, the validity of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Disclosure
Certificate, the Escrow Agreement or this Bond Purchase Agreement or the exemption
from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds or (iii) in any way contesting the
powers or operations of the District; (C) to the best of such officer’s knowledge, the
descriptions and information contained in the Official Statement relating to the District,
the Hospital Facilities, the District’s other property, the District’s operations and
financial and other affairs, and the application of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds are
correct in all material respects, as of the date of the Official Statement and as of the
Closing Date; (D) such descriptions and information, as of the date of the Official
Statement did not, and as of the Closing Date do not, contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; (E) there has been no change or threatened change in the
governmental status of the District; (F) at the time of Closing, no default or event of
default has occurred and is continuing, and no event has occurred and is continuing
which with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default
or an event of default under the Indenture, this Bond Purchase Agreement, the
Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, or any other material agreement or
material instrument to which the District is a party or by which it is or may be bound or
to which any of the District’s property or other assets is or may be subject; (G) the
resolutions of the Board of Directors of the District authorizing and approving the
execution and delivery of the Original Indenture, the First Supplemental Indenture, the
Second Supplemental Indenture, this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Disclosure
Certificate, the Escrow Agreement and the Official Statement and the form of the Bonds
has been duly adopted by such Board of Directors and has not been modified, amended
or repealed; (H) no event affecting the District has occurred since the date of the Official
Statement that either makes untrue or incorrect, as of the date of Closing, any statement
or information relating to the same and contained in the Official Statement or that
should be disclosed therein in order to make the statements and information therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (I} the
representations of the District herein and in the Indenture are true and correct in all
material respects as of the date of Closing.

(3) A certificate, satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative, of one
or more duly authorized officers of the Trustee, dated the Closing Date, as to the due
acceptance, execution and delivery of the Indenture by the Trustee and the due
authentication and delivery of the Bonds by the Trustee thereunder.

(4) A certificate, satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative, of one
or more duly authorized officers of the Escrow Bank, dated the Closing Date, as to the
due acceptance, execution and delivery of the Escrow Agreement by the Escrow Bank.

(6) The approving opinion, dated the Closing Date, of Bond Counsel, in
substantially the form of Appendix I fo the Official Statement, together with a reliance
letter addressed to the Underwriters.

(6) An opinion, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the District and the
Underwriters, of Douglas Buchanan, Esq., counsel to the District, in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(7} A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, addressed
to the District and the Underwriters to the effect that: (A) this Bond Purchase Agreement
has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District and, assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery by and validity against the Underwriters, is a

-11-



valid and binding agreement of the District, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, arrangement, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other laws
relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles and to
the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases in the State of California; (B) the
statements contained in the Official Statement under the captions “INTRODUCTORY
STATEMENT,” “THE 2013 BONDS,” “SECURITY FOR THE 2013 BONDS,” “TAX
MATTERS,” APPENDIX C—"SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE” and APPENDIX D—
“FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL,” insofar as such statements purport to
summarize certain provisions of the Bonds, the Indenture and their opinion concerning
certain federal tax matters relating to the Bonds are accurate in all material respects; and
(C) the Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act and
the Indenture is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act.

(8) An opinion of Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, PLC, as disclosure counsel to the
District, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Underwriters, to the effect that
based upon information made available to such counsel in the course of such counsel’s
participation in the transaction and without having undertaken to determine
independently or assuming any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness
of the statements contained in the Official Statement, nothing has come to such counsel’s
attention which would lead them to believe that the Official Statement (excluding
therefrom the financial, statistical or economic data or forecasts, numbers, charts, tables,
graphs, estimates, projections, assumptions or expressions of opinion and information
about The Depository Trust Company and the book-entry system included in the
Official Statement, as to which no opinion need be expressed), as of the date thereof or
the Closing Date, contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact or
omitted or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

(9) A tax certificate and agreement by the District in form and substance
satisfactory to Bond Counsel.

(10) A copy of the executed Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental
Bond Issues, Form 8038-G (current revision), and evidence of the filing thereof with the
Internal Revenue Service regarding the Bonds.

(11) A certified copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors of the District
approving and authorizing the execution and delivery of the Official Statement, the
Indenture, the Second Supplemental Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow
Agreement and this Bond Purchase Agreement.

(12) An opinion of counsel to the Trustee in form and substance acceptable to
Bond Counsel and the Representative.

{13) An opinion of counsel to the Escrow Bank in form and substance acceptable
to Bond Counsel and the Representative.

(14) Evidence that the Bonds have received a rating of at least “BBB-” by
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services.

(15) The Certificate of the District required by Section 3.06(b) of the Indenture.

(16) Original or certified copies of the documents required pursuant to Section
3.06(c) of the Indenture.

12-



(17) The opinion of Bond counsel required by Section 3.06(d) of the Indenture.

(18) Such additional certificates, proceedings, opinions, instruments and other
documents as the Representative may reasonably request in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, including, but not limited
to, such additional certificates, proceedings, instruments and opinions as the
Representative may reasonably request to evidence the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement and all matters relating to
this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Bonds and the sale thereof, and the Indenture.

If the District shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligation of the
Underwriters contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement, or if the obligation of the
Underwriters shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement,
this Bond Purchase Agreement may be canceled by the Underwriters, and, upon such
cancellation, neither the Underwriters nor the District shall be under any further obligation
hereunder except as provided in Section 4 hereof.

Section 4. Expenses. All reasonable expenses and costs of the District incident to the
performance of its obligations in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale of the
Bonds to the Underwriters, including printing costs, fees and expenses of the Trustee, fees and
expenses of the Escrow Bank, fees and expenses of consultants and reasonable fees and
expenses of Bond Counsel, counsel to the District and disclosure counsel, shall be paid by the
District. All fees and expenses to be paid by the District pursuant to this Bond Purchase
Agreement may be paid from Bond proceeds to the extent permitted by the Indenture. All out-
of-pocket expenses of the Underwriters, including travel and other expenses, CUSIP Service
Bureau charges and California Debt Advisory Commission fees, shall be paid by the
Underwriters.

Section 5. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the District under
this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing at the District’s
address set forth above; any notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriters
under this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to Piper
Jaffray & Co., 8235 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 600, 5t. Louis, MO 63105, Attention: Mr. Stephen
W. Woodard, Managing Director. The approval of the Underwriters when required hereunder
or the determination of its satisfaction as to any document referred to herein shall be in writing
signed by the Representative and delivered to the District.

Section 6. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations and Warranties. This Bond
Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the District and the Underwriters
(including the successors or assigns of the Underwriters), and no other person shall acquire or
have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All the representations, warranties and
agreements made by the District in this Bond Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and
in full force and effect, regardless of (i) any investigations made by or on behalf of the
Underwriters, (ii) delivery of and payment for the Bonds hereunder, and (iii) any termination of
this Bond Purchase Agreement.

Section 7. Governing Law. This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws
of the State of California.

Section 8. Miscellaneous. The headings of the sections of this Bond Purchase Agreement
are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to be part hereof.

13-



Section 9. Counterparts. This Bond Purchase Agreement may be signed in two or more
counterparts (including counterparts represented by facsimile copies and/or containing
facsimile signatures); all of such counterparts, when signed by the parties, shall constitute but

one single agreement.

The foregoing is hereby accepted as of the
date first written above.

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL

HQOSPITAL DISTRICT
By
John Halfen
Chief Executive Officer

-14-

Very truly yours,

PIPER JAFFRAY & CO. and
SOUTHWEST SECURITIES INC., as
Underwriters

By PIPER JAFFRAY & CO., as
Representative

By

Stephen W. Woodard
Managing Director



SCHEDULE A

$
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Inyo County, California)
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013

Maturity Date Principal Interest
{December 1) Amount Rate Price Yield

Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on or before December 1, , shall not be subject to
optional redemption prior to maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after December 1, , shall be subject
to redemption prior to their respective maturity dates, at the option of the District, as a whole or in part,
in such order of maturity as shall be selected by the District (or in inverse order of maturity if the District
shall fail to select a particular order) and by lot within a maturity, on any date on or after December 1,
____, from any source of available funds, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the
Bonds to be redeemed, without premium, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Account Redemption. The Bonds maturing on December 1, , are also
subject to mandatory redemption, on December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, , at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest
thereon to the redemption date, without premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments
made by the District under the Indenture in the years and amounts as follows:

Sinking Fund Account
Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
(December 1) Redeemed or Purchased

tMaturity

The Bonds maturing on December 1, , are also subject to mandatory redemption, on
December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, ___, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, without
premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments made by the District under the Indenture in
the years and amounts as follows:

Schedule A
Pagel



Sinking Fund Account

Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
(December 1) Redeemed or Purchased

tMaturity

The Bonds maturing on December 1, are also subject to mandatory redemption, on
December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, ____, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, without
premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments made by the District under the Indenture in
the years and amounts as follows:

Sinking Fund Account
Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
{December 1) Redeemed or Purchased

tMaturity

Extraordinary Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated
maturities at the option of the District as a whole on any date or in part by such maturities as are selected
by the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of maturity) and by lot
within a maturity on any Interest Payment Date, from hazard insurance or condemnation proceeds
received with respect to the Hospital Facilities of the District, in each case under the circumstances
described and as provided in the Indenture, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount
thereof together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

Schedule A
Page 2



EXHIBIT A

OPINION OF DISTRICT COUNSEL

[Closing Date]

Piper Jaffray & Co.
8235 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 600
St. Louis, MO 63105

Southwest Securities, Inc
2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 210
Cardiff, CA 92007

Re: % Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District {Inyo County, California)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have served as special counsel for Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (the
“District”) in connection with the issuance of Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District
(Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”), by the District in the
aggregate principal amount of § . The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of
The Local Health Care District Law and are issued under and secured by an Indenture, dated as
of December 1, 1998, by and between the District and U.S. Trust Company, National
Association, since succeeded by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee
(the "Trustee”), as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of April 1, 2010 (the “First Supplemental Indenture”), as further amended and supplemented by
the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (the “Second Supplemental
Indenture” and, together with the Original Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture, the
“Indenture”), between the District and the Trustee. The Bonds are being sold pursuant to a
bond purchase agreement, dated January 9, 2013 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), by and
between the District and Piper Jaffray & Co. and Southwest Securities Inc., as underwriters.
Capitalized terms used herein, unless otherwise defined, shall have the meanings set forth in
the Bond Purchase Agreement or the Indenture.

In connection with this opinion, we have assumed the authenticity of all records,
documents, and instruments submitted to us as originals, the genuineness of all signatures, the
legal capacity of natural persons and the conformity to the originals of all records, documents,
and instruments submitted to us as copies. We also have assumed that there are no facts or
circumstances relating to you that might prevent you from enforcing any of the rights to which
our opinion relates. We have based our opinion upon our review of the following records,
documents and instruments:

(a) An executed counterpart of the Indenture;
{b) An executed counterpart of the Bond Purchase Agreement;
(¢) An executed counterpart of the Escrow Agreement;

Exhibit A
Page 1



(d) An executed counterpart of the Disclosure Certificate;

(e) A copy of the Preliminary Official Statement, dated December 31, 2012, and the
Official Statement, dated January 9, 2013 (the “Official Statement”) relating to the Bonds; and

(f) Resolutions adopted by the District authorizing the execution and delivery of the
Bonds.

The documents and instruments listed in items (a) through (f) above are collectively
referred to herein as the “Transaction Documents.”

Where our opinion relates to our “knowledge,” such knowledge is based upon our
examination of the records, documents, instruments, and certificates enumerated or described
above and the actual knowledge of attorneys in this firm who are currently involved in
substantive legal representation of the District. With your consent, we have not examined any
records of any court, administrative tribunal or other similar entity in connection with our
opinion expressed in paragraph 4 below. Except as described herein, we have undertaken no
investigation or verification of such matters and any limited inquiry undertaken by us during
the preparation of this opinion letter should not be regarded as such an investigation.

Based upon the foregoing and our examination of such questions of law as we have
deemed necessary or appropriate for the purpose of this opinion, and subject to the limitations
and qualifications expressed below, it is our opinion that:

(1) The District is a local health care district duly existing under the laws of the State of
California, has full legal right, power and authority to enter into the Indenture, the Bond
Purchase Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Certificate and the Official
Statement and to carry out and consummate all transactions contemplated by the Indenture, the
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Certificate and the Official
Statement.

(2) The Official Statement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
District.

(3) To our knowledge, except for litigation disclosed in the Official Statement, there is no
action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board
or body pending or threatened against or affecting the District to restrain or enjoin the issuance
or delivery of the Bonds or the collection of revenues pledged under the Indenture, in any way
contesting or affecting any authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the validity of the Bonds,
the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Certificate, or the Bond Purchase
Agreement, in any way contesting the existence or powers of the District with respect to the
issuance of the Bonds or the security therefor or affecting the assets, properties or operations of
the District wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely
affect the transactions contemplated by the Official Statement, the Indenture, the Escrow
Agreement, the Disclosure Certificate or the Bond Purchase Agreement, the validity of the
Bonds.

(4) The execution and delivery of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate,
the Escrow Agreement, the Official Statement and the Bond Purchase Agreement, the
consummation of the transactions therein contemplated and the fulfillment of or compliance
with the terms and conditions thereof, do not and will not in any material respect conflict with
or constitute a material violation or breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of time
or both) under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation, or any applicable court
or administrative decree or order known to us, or, to our knowledge, any material contract,

Exhibit A
Page 2



agreement or instrument to which the District is a party or by which it or its properties are
otherwise subject or bound or result in the creation or imposition of any prohibited lien, charge
or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the District,
which conflict, viclation, breach, default, lien, charge or encumbrance might have consequences
that would materially and adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated
by the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Disclosure Certificate or the Official
Statement.

(5) To our knowledge, no consent or approval of any trustee or holder of any
indebtedness of the District, and no consent, permission, authorization, order of, license of, or
filing or registration with, any governmental authority is necessary in connection with the
execution and delivery of the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Escrow Agreement,
the Disclosure Certificate or the Official Statement, or the consummation of any transaction
therein contemplated, except as have been obtained or made and as are in full force and effect.
We express no opinion as to any approvals or consents as may be required under any state or
federal blue sky or securities laws.

(6) The Bonds, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Official Statement, the
Disclosure Certificate and the Bond Purchase Agreement have been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by the District and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the
other parties thereto where applicable, are valid and binding limited obligations of the District,
enforceable in accordance with their terms.

This opinion is limited to the federal laws of the United States of America and the laws
of the State of California. We disclaim any opinion as to the laws of any other jurisdiction and

we further disclaim any opinion as to any statute, rule, regulation, ordinance, order or other

promulgation of any regional or local governmental body. This opinion is based upon the law
in effect on the date hereof, and we assume no obligations to revise or supplement this opinion
should such law be changed by legislative action, judicial decision, or otherwise. In connection
with this opinion letter, we also have assumed the following: (a) consideration has been duly
given under the Transaction Documents, (b) the District is the legal, beneficial and record owner
of the collateral described in any Transaction Documents and the descriptions of collateral in
the Transaction Documents sufficiently describe the collateral intended to be covered by such
documents, (¢) any lien documents are in suitable form, notarized if required, and duly filed or
recorded with the appropriate government offices, (d) the Transaction Documents accurately
describe the mutual understanding of the parties thereto, and that there are no oral or written
statements that modify, amend, or vary, or purport to modify, amend, or vary, any of the terms
of the Transaction Documents, {e) the information, factual matters, representations and
warranties contained in the Transaction Documents, records, certificates and other documents
we have reviewed are true, correct and complete and (f) the other parties to Transaction
Documents have the proper authority to engage in the transactions contemplated thereunder
and at all times have complied and will comply with the Transaction Documents and related
documents and with all applicable requirements governing their actions and will act in a
commercially reasonable manner.

In connection with this opinion, we advise you that:

A. Enforceability is subject (i) to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement,
moratorium, and other laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, (ii)
to general principles of equity, whether such enforcement is considered in a proceeding in
equity or at law, (iii) fo limitations imposed by applicable law or public policy on the
enforceability of the indemnification provisions, and (iv) to the qualification that certain
waivers, procedures, remedies, and other provisions of the Transaction Documents may be
unenforceable under or limited by applicable law.

Exhibit A
Page 3



B. The enforceability of the Transaction Documents is further subject to the effect of
general principles of equity. These principles include, without limitation, concepts of
commercial reasonableness, materiality and good faith and fair dealing. These principles
require the parties to act reasonably, in good faith and in a manner that is not arbitrary or
capricious in the administration and enforcement of the Transaction Documents and will
preclude them from invoking penalties for defaults that bear no reasonable relation to the
damage suffered or that would otherwise work a forfeiture.

C. The enforceability of any Transaction Documents is also subject to the effects of (i)
Section 1102 of the California Uniform Commercial Code (the “Code”), which provides that
obligations of good faith, diligence, reasonableness and care prescribed by the Code may not be
disclaimed by agreement, although the parties may by agreement determine the standards by
which the performance of such obligations is to be measured if those standards are not
manifestly unreasonable, (ii} Section 1203 of the Code, which imposes an obligation of good
faith in the performance or enforcement of a contract and (iii} California Civil Code Section
1670.5, which provides that a court may refuse fo enforce, or may limit the enforcement of, a
contract or any clause of a contract that a court finds as a matter of law to have been
unconscionable at the time it was made.

D. The effectiveness of indemnities, rights of contribution, exculpatory provisions and
waivers of the benefits of statutory provisions may be limited on public policy grounds.

E. Section 1717 of the California Civil Code provides that, in any action on a contract
where the contract specifically provides that attorneys’ fees and costs incurred to enforce that
contract shall be awarded either to one of the parties or to the prevailing party, then the party
who is determined to be the party prevailing in the action, whether that party is the party
specified in the contract or not, shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to other
costs.

F. Any provisions of the Transaction Documents requiring that waivers must be in
writing may not be binding or enforceable if a non-executory oral agreement has been created
modifying any such provision or an implied agreement by trade practice or course of conduct
has given rise to a waiver.

G. Section 9109(d)17 of the Code provides that the secured transactions provisions of the
Code do not apply to transfers by a government or governmental unit, and, therefore, the rights
and remedies of the Trustee under the Transaction Documents which purport to incorporate
rights and remedies under the Code may not be enforceable.

H. Any provisions of the Transaction Documents regarding another party’s right to
apply proceeds of fire or other casualty insurance policies or awards of damages in
condemnation proceedings against the District’s secured obligations will not be enforceable
unless application of such proceeds or damages is reasonably necessary to protect such security
interests.

I. We assume that in the enforcement of any lien documents, all parties will act in
accordance with applicable statutory and other legal requirements, including applicable case
law and that enforcement of rights or remedies thereunder may be limited when imposing fees
and charges in the event of default, upon acceleration of the District’s obligations for transfers
of interests, leases, or grants of junior encumbrances, attempting to secure a deficiency claim
before exhausting the secured property or other remedies, among other things.

Exhibit A
Page 4



J. We have further relied on certain representations, warranties and covenants of the
District in the Transaction Documents. Any variations may affect the opinions we are giving,.

K. In connection with our opinion, we have not reviewed and express no opinion on (i)
financial statements or covenants, financial or audit reports or the consents related thereto or
similar provisions requiring financial calculations or determinations, (ii} provisions relating to
the occurrence of a “material adverse effect” or similar words, or (iii) parol evidence bearing on
interpretation or construction.

We express no opinion as to: (a) the priority of any lien or security interest created, or
purported to be created, by any of the Transaction Documents or the enforceability of any lien
in the real property of the District; (b) any securities, tax, anti-trust, land use, export, safety,
environmental, hazardous materials, choice of law, insurance company or banking laws, rules
or regulations; (c) applicable interest rate limitations of California law for loans or forbearances;
or (d) the effect on the District’s obligations, and any other party’s rights, under the Transaction
Documents of laws relating to fraudulent transfers and fraudulent obligations set forth in
Sections 544 and 548 of the federal Bankruptcy Code and Sections 3439 et seq. of the California
Civil Code.

In rendering our opinion, we are expressing no opinion on the validity of the Bonds.
We furnish this opinion as counsel to the District and only the Underwriters and Quint
& Thimmig LLP may rely upon it. This letter shall not be used, quoted, distributed, circulated

or relied upon by any other person or entity for any purpose, without our prior written consent.

Respectfully submitted,

Exhibit A
Page 5



Quint & Thimmig LLP 10/11/12
10/22/12
10/31/12

ESCROW DEPOSIT AND TRUST AGREEMENT

by and between the

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A,, as Escrow Bank

Dated January 29, 2013

Relating to Refunding of the Outstanding
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District
{Ilnyo County, California)

Revenue Bonds, Series 1998

14003.04



ESCROW DEPOSIT AND TRUST AGREEMENT

This ESCROW DEPOSIT AND TRUST AGREEMENT (this “Escrow Agreement”) is
made and entered into this 29th day of January, 2013, by and between the NORTHERN INYO
COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a public body corporate and politic, organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California (the “District”}, and THE BANK OF NEW
YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., a national banking association organized and
existing under the laws of the United States of America, as escrow bank, with a corporate trust
office in San Francisco, California, and being qualified to accept and administer the trusts
hereby created as escrow bank hereunder (the “Escrow Bank”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its $8,000,000 Northern Inyo County Local
Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, currently outstanding in
the principal amount of $6,025,000 (the “1998 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing and
refinancing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health facilities
owned and operated by the District;

WHEREAS, the 1998 Bonds were issued pursuant to that certain Indenture of Trust,
dated as of December 1, 1998 (the “Original Indenture”), by and between the District and U.S.
Trust Company, National Association (since succeeded by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A.), as trustee (the “Trustee”);

WHEREAS, the District has determined to provide for the refunding of the 1998 Bonds;

WHEREAS, for the purpose of providing funds for the refunding of the 1998 Bonds and
for other purposes, the District has determined to issue its Northern Inyo County Local Hospital
District Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, in the aggregate principal amount of $ (the "2013
Bonds”}, all pursuant to and secured by the Original Indenture, as amended and supplemented
by that cerfain first supplemental indenture, dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “First Supplemental
Indenture”), as further amended and supplemented by that certain second supplemental
indenture, dated as of January 1, 2013 (the “Second Supplemental Indenture” and, with the
Original Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture, the “Indenture”), each by and
between the District and the Trustee;

WHEREAS, the District wishes to make a deposit with the Escrow Bank and to enter
into this Escrow Agreement for the purpose of providing the terms and conditions for the
deposit and application of amounts so deposited for the refunding of the 1998 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Escrow Bank has full powers to act with respect to the irrevocable
escrow and trust created herein and to perform the duties and obligations to be undertaken
pursuant to this Escrow Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and of the mutual promises
and covenants herein contained and for other valuable consideration, the parties hereto do
hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Appointment of Escrow Bank. The District hereby appoints the Escrow Bank
as escrow bank for all purposes of this Escrow Agreement and in accordance with the terms and
provisions of this Escrow Agreement, and the Escrow Bank hereby accepts such appointment.



Section 2. Establishment of Escrow Fund. There is hereby created by the District with,
and to be held by, the Escrow Bank, as security for the payment of the principal of and interest
on the 1998 Bonds as hereinafter set forth, an irrevocable escrow to be maintained in trust by the
Escrow Bank on behalf of the District and for the benefit of the owners of the 1998 Bonds, said
escrow to be designated the “Escrow Fund.” All moneys deposited in the Escrow Fund shall
constitute a special fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 1998 Bonds in
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. If at any time the Escrow Bank shall receive
actual knowledge that the moneys in the Escrow Fund will not be sufficient to make any
payment required by Section 4 hereof, the Escrow Bank shall notify the District of such fact and
the District shall immediately cure such deficiency.

Section 3. Deposit into Escrow Fund; Investment of Amounts.

(a) Concurrently with delivery of the 2013 Bonds, the District shall cause to be
transferred to the Escrow Bank for deposit into the Escrow Fund the amount of § in
immediately available funds, derived as follows:

)% derived from the proceeds of sale of the 2013 Bonds;

(i) % released from the debt service reserve fund held for the 1998 Bonds
(the “1998 Reserve Fund”); and

(iii) $ released from the debt service fund held for the 1998 Bonds (the
1998 Debt Service Fund”).

(b) The moneys deposited in the Escrow Fund shall be held by the Escrow Bank in cash,
uninvested. Such moneys shall be held by the Escrow Bank in the Escrow Fund solely for the
uses and purposes set forth herein.

(c) The Escrow Bank shall not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from its full
compliance with the provisions of this Escrow Agreement.

Section 4. Instructions as to Application of Deposit.

(a) The total amount of moneys deposited in the Escrow Fund pursuant to Section 3
hereof shall be applied by the Escrow Bank for the sole purpose of paying the redemption price
of the 1998 Bonds on the date and in the amount set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and by
this reference incorporated herein.

{b) The District has previously instructed the Escrow Bank, in its capacity as trustee for
the 1998 Bonds, to give notice of conditional redemption of the 1998 Bonds, and the Escrow
Bank, as trustee for the 1998 Bonds, has given notice of conditional redemption of the 1998
Bonds in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Indenture on the redemption date set
forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.

Section 5. Application of 1998 Bond Funds. On the date of original delivery of the 2013
Bonds and the deposit of a portion of the proceeds thereof in the Escrow Fund pursuant to
Section 3, the Escrow Bank, as trustee for the 1998 bonds, is hereby directed to (a) withdraw
$ from the amounts on deposit in the 1998 Reserve Fund and transfer such sum to the
Escrow Fund, and (b) withdraw $ from the amounts on deposit in the 1998 Debt Service
Fund and transfer such sum to the Escrow Fund.

Any amounts remaining on deposit in the Escrow Fund following the redemption of the
1998 Bonds shall be transferred by the Escrow Bank, as trustee for the 1998 Bonds, to the Trustee



for deposit in the Revenue Fund created and maintained by the Trustee pursuant to the
Indenture and applied as a credit against payments of principal of and interest on the 2013
Bonds.

Section 6. Application of Certain Terms of Indenture. All of the terms of the Indenture
relating to the making of payments of principal of and interest on the 1998 Bonds are
incorporated in this Escrow Agreement as if set forth in full herein.

Section 7. Compensation to Escrow Bank. The District shall pay the Escrow Bank full
compensation for its duties under this Escrow Agreement, including out-of-pocket costs such as
publication costs, legal fees and other costs and expenses relating hereto. Under no
circumstances shall amounts deposited in the Escrow Fund be deemed to be available for said
purposes.

Section 8. Liabilities and Obligations of Escrow Bank. The Escrow Bank shall have no
obligation to make any payment or disbursement of any type or incur any financial liability in
the performance of its duties under this Escrow Agreement unless the District shall have
deposited sufficient funds with the Escrow Bank. The Escrow Bank may rely and shall be
protected in acting upon the written or oral instructions of the District or its agents relating to
any matter or action as Escrow Bank under this Escrow Agreement.

The Escrow Bank and its respective successors, assigns, agents and servants shall not be
held to any personal liability whatsoever, in tort, contract, or otherwise, in connection with the
execution and delivery of this Escrow Agreement, the establishment of the Escrow Fund, the
acceptance of the moneys deposited therein, the sufficiency of the uninvested moneys held
hereunder to accomplish the defeasance of the 1998 Bonds, or any payment, transfer or other
application of moneys by the Escrow Bank in accordance with the provisions of this Escrow
Agreement or by reason of any non-negligent act, non-negligent omission or non-negligent
error of the Escrow Bank made in good faith in the conduct of its duties. The recitals of fact
contained in the “whereas” clauses herein shail be taken as the statement of the District, and the
Escrow Bank assumes no responsibility for the correctness thereof (except the final “whereas”
clause). The Escrow Bank makes no representations as to the accuracy of any calculations or to
the sufficiency of any uninvested moneys to accomplish the payment of the 1998 Bonds
pursuant to the Indenture or to the validity of this Escrow Agreement as to the District and,
except as otherwise provided herein, the Escrow Bank shall incur no liability in respect thereof.
The Escrow Bank shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties under this
Escrow Agreement except for its own negligence, willful misconduct or default, and the duties
and obligations of the Escrow Bank shall be determined by the express provisions of this
Escrow Agreement. In no event shall the Escrow Bank be liable for any special indirect or
consequential damages. The Escrow Bank may consult with counsel, who may or may not be
counsel to the District, and in reliance upon the written opinion of such counsel shall have full
and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted
by it in good faith in accordance therewith.

The District hereby assumes liability for, and hereby agrees (whether or not any of the
transactions contemplated hereby are consummated), to the extent permitted by law, to
indemnify, protect, save and hold harmless the Escrow Bank and its respective successors,
assigns, agents and servants from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses,
damages, penalties, claims, actions, suits, costs, expenses and disbursements (including legal
fees and disbursements) of whatsoever kind and nature which may be imposed on, incurred by,
or asserted against, at any time, the Escrow Bank (whether or not also indemnified against by
any other person under any other agreement or instrument) and in any way relating to or
arising out of the execution and delivery of this Escrow Agreement, the establishment of the
Escrow Fund, the retention of the moneys therein and any payment, transfer or other

3-



I
'
i
!
|
i
i

application of moneys by the Escrow Bank in accordance with the provisions of this Escrow
Agreement, or as may arise by reason of any act, omission or error of the Escrow Bank made in
good faith in the conduct of its duties; provided, however, that the District shall not be required to
indemnify the Escrow Bank against the Escrow Bank’s own negligence or willful misconduct.
The indemnities contained in this Section 8 and the compensation and reimbursement of
expenses set forth in Section 7 shall survive the termination of this Escrow Agreement.

Whenever, in the administration of this Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Bank shall deem
it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any
action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically
prescribed) may, in the absence of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Escrow
Bank, be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate of an authorized
representative of the District, and such certificate shall, in the absence of negligence or willful
misconduct on the part of the Escrow Bank, be full warrant to the Escrow Bank for any action
taken or suffered in good faith by it under the provisions of this Escrow Agreement.

The Escrow Bank may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any
duties hereunder either directly or by or through agents, attorneys, custodians or nominees
appointed with due care, and shall not be responsible for any willful misconduct or negligence
on the part of any agent, attorney, custodian or nominee so appointed.

The Escrow Bank agrees to accept and act upon instructions or directions pursuant to
these Instructions sent by unsecured e-mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured
electronic methods, provided, however, that, the Escrow Bank shall have received an
incumbency certificate listing persons designated to give such instructions or directions and
containing specimen signatures of such designated persons, which such incumbency certificate
shall be amended and replaced whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing. If
the District elects to give the Escrow Bank e-mail or facsimile instructions (or instructions by a
similar electronic method) and the Escrow Bank in its discretion elects to act upon such
instructions, the Escrow Bank’s understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling.
The Escrow Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or
indirectly from the Escrow Bank’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions
notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. The District agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic
methods to submit instructions and directions to the Escrow Bank, including without limitation
the risk of the Escrow Bank acting on unauthorized instructions, and the risk of interception
and misuse by third parties.

The Escrow Bank may at any time resign by giving written notice to the District of such
resignation. The District shall promptly appoint a successor Escrow Bank by the resignation
date. Resignation of the Escrow Bank will be effective upon acceptance of appointment by a
successor Escrow Bank. If the District does not appoint a successor, the Escrow Bank may
petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Escrow Bank,
which court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper and prescribe and
as may be required by law, appoint a successor Escrow Bank.

Section 9. Amendment. This Escrow Agreement may be modified or amended at any
time by a supplemental agreement which shall become effective when the written consents of
the owners of one hundred percent (100%) in aggregate principal amount of the 1998 Bonds
then outstanding shail have been filed with the Escrow Bank. This Escrow Agreement may be
modified or amended at any time by a supplemental agreement, without the consent of any
such owners, but only (1) to add to the covenants and agreements of any party, other covenants
to be observed, or to surrender any right or power herein or therein reserved to the District, (2)
to cure, correct or supplement any ambiguous or defective provision contained herein, or (3) in



regard to questions arising hereunder or thereunder, as the parties hereto or thereto may deem
necessary or desirable and which, in the opinion of counsel, shall not materially adversely affect
the interests of the owners of the 1998 Bonds or the 2013 Bonds, and that such amendment will
not cause interest on the 1998 Bonds or the 2013 Bonds to become subject to federal income
taxation.

Section 10. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or provision of this
Escrow Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, sentence, clause or provision shall not affect any of
the remaining provisions of this Escrow Agreement.

Section 11. Notice of Escrow Bank: District. Any notice to or demand upon the Escrow
Bank may be served and presented, and such demand may be made, at the principal corporate
trust office of the Escrow Bank at 100 Pine Street, Suite 3100, San Francisco, CA 94111,
Attention: Corporate Trust Department (or such other address as may have been filed in writing
by the Escrow Bank with the District). Any notice to or demand upon the District shall be
deemed to have been sufficiently given or served for all purposes by being mailed by registered
or certified mail, and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office letter box, addressed to such
party, at 1500 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, CA 93514, Attention: Chief Executive Officer (or such other
address as may have been filed in writing by the District with the Escrow Bank).

Section 12. Merger or Consolidation of Escrow Bank. Any company into which the
Escrow Bank may be merged or converted or with which may it be consolidated or any

company resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or
any company to which the Escrow Bank may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its
corporate trust business, provided such company shall be eligible to act as trustee under the
Indenture, shall be the successor hereunder to the Escrow Bank without the execution or filing
of any paper or any further act.

Section 13. Execution of Counterparts. This Escrow Agreement may be executed in any
number of counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original and all
of which shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 14. Governing Law. This Escrow Agreement shall be construed and governed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.




IN WITNESS WIHEREOF, the NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL
DISTRICT has caused this Escrow Agreement to be signed in its name by its officer identified
below and THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A.,, in token of its
acceptance of the trust created hereunder, has caused this Escrow Agreement to be signed in its
corporate name by its officer identified below, all as of the day and year first above written.

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL

HOSPITAL DISTRICT
By
John Halfen
Chief Executive Officer

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Escrow Bank

By

Gonzalo Urey
Vice President



Redemption
Date

2/11/13

EXHIBIT A

PAYMENT SCHEDULE OF 1998 BONDS

Maturing Called
Principal Principal Interest Premium
— $6,025,000 —

Exhibit A

Total
Pavment



Quint & Thimmig LLP 10/11/12
10/22/12

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST

by and between the

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A,, as Trustee

Dated as of January 1, 2013

Amending and Supplementing that certain
Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 1998,
by and between the
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District
and
U.S. Trust Company, National Association,
as previously amended and supplemented

i Relating to
; $ __
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District

(Inyo County, California)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013

14003.04



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLEI]

DEFINITIONS; AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE OF BONDS: EQUAIL SECURITY

Section LOL. DEFINIHONS. ..ottt b e seeesaees s et s reeses st s s e eeee e e os oo eeeeeee oo seeeee oo 3
Section 1.02. Rules of CONSEIUCLION. 1.vivriiiiriiiiisieeetess e sesceessteseseeeeseesasssesssesssessse st eeeee e s eeeee e eeee e oo 4
Section 1.03. Authorization and Purpose of 2013 BONGS. .c.urieirreeeeeereoeeer e eesee oo oseseessssss s, 4

ARTICLE 1

ISSUANCE OF 2013 BONDS

Section 2.01. Issuance of the 2013 Bonds; Terms of the 2013 BONAS. w.eveveeereveeeeeeeeeeseeooeeeoeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeoeoeeone 5
Section 2.02. Redemption of the 2013 BONAS......covrimumrimssessissmsoesereeoessss s ssossesssesesessseseeeeemssress s sessessesseson 6
Section 2.03. BOOK-ENtry SYStem. ..ottt ettt e st 9

ARTICLE III

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Section 3.01. Application of Proceeds of Sale 0f 2013 BONAS. ......vverurerierisnriioceeee e eeeseseeesssessseeseens 11
Section 3.02. 2013 PrOJEC ACCOUDL. c..vcvorecirrriiesie et iess et beee e e ses et esesesee e eses s seemseeeeesees s e st e ees e 11
Section 3.03. 2013 Costs Of [SSUANCE ACCOUNL. c......viireieseeeeeeteeeeeeeresesssseseseseeeeeeemes s s e e s e e et eseseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeon 11
Section 3.04. Satisfaction of Requirements of AddItional Bonds. ...........coveoorveoivessississsiescsssssseseessseeeseeessesssens 11
Section 3.05. Validity of 2013 BONAS ...u.veeceiieerececcnninneimsisessinsise s e reeess e ssssstss s seseessseesess e eeeseeesesss s 11

ARTICLE IV

REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

Section 4.01. Pledge of Revenues, ReVEIUe FUNG. .........uiivioocccoereeee e eeee et e e ee e seoeen s 13
Section 4.02. Administration of FUNAS A1 ACCOUNES. c1veurroreeree et eeret et e sesseseess et et st e e 13
Section 4.03. Application of Sinking FUNd ACCOURNL. ........ceecueeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeees et eres s e eee e 13
Section 4.04. Fees, Charges and EXPenses Of TIUSIEE ..cvoveviereieiieeeisevsioiiss e resesesssesesesessesesssesssssens 13
SECHON 4,05, INVESEITICIES 11utevieeeiste sttt seecee e et e ereeeeemeeees e te s seeaseeeeeasste s s s e et e oe s e e et oo+t 13
Section 4.06. Acquisition; Valuation and Disposition of InVestMents.......co.cviiveiiiec e eeeeeeeereesree s eseseseessons 14

ARTICLEV

COVENANTS

Section 5.07T. Tax COVEIMANES ...uiiiviie it esestest ettt 1eeeeeeee e st e st eresesea s et esees e s et s et et s e ee e eeeee et e eeees e 15
Section 5.02. Confirmation Of TAENIUTE. ...ttt et es e e e s et ee et e esssssrsses s s s ot st st st et et oo es e e 16
Section 5.03. ContinUINgG DISCIOSUIE .v..em ettt sttt ee e ees s s eeeeeaeeeeseeseses e s snsren 16

ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.01. Amendments to Original INAENIUTE ....c.ccciirieee sttt een e en e 17
SECHION B.02. INOBICES wocveree ittt e e et eeee e et e satsas et s seeemeaseaenneas s e st astesaseemseees e e sesesessesentseetssereseeseeesseeseees 17
Section 6.03. Execution in Several COUNETPATES .......cocovrureeeeererereieseteresets e secassssseaststo et meees s sessesesens 18
Section 6.04. FOTCE MAJEUTE. ..o eerercrercrcratreressassseseeess e ssnsssststassesssasesesenssassssasasssnssssomonsestsesesneseessnsnsesensesesanens 18
Section 6.05. Electronic COmIMUNICATIONS v ieerrirerereesrersesreesssseseeseesseseeessssssesaseasaeeesresssssessssesssssessssssssssssssoseesss 18

EXHIBIT A—FORM OF 2013 BOND



SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST

THIS SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST, is dated as of January 1,
2013 (the “Second Supplemental Indenture”), by and between the NORTHERN INYO
COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a local health care district organized and existing
under the constitution and laws of the State of California (the “District”), and THE BANK OF
NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., a national banking association organized and
existing under the laws of the United States of America, with a corporate trust office in San
Francisco, California, as successor to U.S. Trust Company, National Association, and being
qualified to accept and administer the trusts hereby created, as trustee (the “Trustee”),
amending and supplementing that certain Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 1998, by
and between the District and the Trustee (the “Original Indenture”), as amended and
supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated a of April 1, 2010 (the “First
Supplemental Indenture”), by and between the District and the Trustee and, with the Second
Supplemental Indenture, the “Indenture”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its $8,000,000 Northern Inyo County Local
Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, currently outstanding in
the principal amount of $6,025,000 (the “1998 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing and
refinancing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health facilities
owned and operated by the District;

WHEREAS, the 1998 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture;

WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $11,600,000 Northern Inyo County
Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, currently
outstanding in the principal amount of $11,090,000 (the “2010 Bonds”), for the purpose of
financing and refinancing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health
facilities owned and operated by the District;

WHEREAS, the 2010 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended
and supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture;

WHEREAS, the District desires to (a) finance the remodeling, expansion, improvement
and equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District and reimburse the
District for costs thereof previously made, including but not limited to any or all expenses
incidental thereto or connected therewith (the “2013 Project”) and (b) refund the 1998 Bonds;

WHEREAS, to finance the 2013 Project and refund the 1998 Bonds, the District has
determined to issue its Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 (the “2013 Bonds”), on a parity as to payment and security with the
2010 Bonds;

WHEREAS, the District has determined that certain provisions of the Original Indenture
are inconsistent and defective relating to the ability of the District to secure a borrowing with its
accounts receivable; and _

WHEREAS, Section 12.01(b) of the Original Indenture provides that the Indenture and
the rights and obligations of the District, of the Trustee and of the Owners of the Bonds (as



defined in the Original Indenture) may be modified or amended from time to time and at any
time by a supplemental indenture, which the District and the Trustee may enter into without
the consent of any Bondowners but only to the extent permitted by law and only for certain
purposes including to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity,
inconsistency or omission, or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained in the
Indenture, or in regard to matters or questions arising under the Indenture, as the District may
deem necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with the Indenture, and which shall not
materially adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds;

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the authentication and delivery of the 2013 Bonds, to
establish and declare the terms and conditions upon which the 2013 Bonds are to be issued and
secured and to secure the payment of the principal thereof and of the interest and premium, if
any, thereon, the Board of Directors of the District has authorized the execution and delivery of
this Second Supplemental Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that all acts and proceedings required by law
necessary to make the 2013 Bonds, when executed by the District, authenticated and delivered
by the Trustee and duly issued, the valid, binding and legal special obligations of the District,
and to constitute the Second Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding agreement for the
uses and purposes herein set forth, in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken; and
the execution and delivery of the Second Supplemental Indenture have been in all respects duly
authorized;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH,
that in order to secure the payment of the principal of and the interest and premium (if any) on
all 2013 Bonds at any time issued and Qutstanding under the Indenture, according to their
tenor, and to secure the performance and observance of all the covenants and conditions therein
and herein set forth, and to declare the terms and conditions upon and subject to which the 2013
Bonds are to be issued and received, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual
covenants herein contained and of the purchase and acceptance of the 2013 Bonds by the
Bondowners thereof, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, the District does hereby covenant and agree with the Trustee, for the benefit of
the respective Bondowners from time to time of the 2013 Bonds, as follows:



ARTICLEI

DEFINITIONS; AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE OF BONDS;
EQUAL SECURITY

Section 1.01. Definitions. All terms which are defined in Section 1.01 of the Original
Indenture, as amended by the First Supplemental Indenture, shall have the same meanings in
this Second Supplemental Indenture as such terms are given in said Section 1.01. Unless the
context otherwise requires, the additional terms defined in this Section 1.01 or in the preambles
hereof shall for all purposes of this Second Supplemental Indenture and of the 2013 Bonds and
of any certificate, opinion, request or other documents herein mentioned have the meanings
specified in the recitals and in this Section 1.01.

“Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Business Day” means (a) any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday on
which banking institutions in the State or in any state in which the principal corporate trust
office of the Trustee is located, or (b) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

“Closing Date” means, January 29, 2013, the date upon which there is a physical delivery
of the 2013 Bonds in exchange for the amount representing the purchase price of the 2013 Bonds
by the Original Purchaser.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the Closing Date or
(except as otherwise referenced in the Indenture or this Second Supplemental Indenture) as it
may be amended to apply to obligations issued on the Closing Date, together with applicable
temporary and final regulations promulgated under the Code.

“Escrow Agreement” means that certain Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement, dated the
Closing Date, by and between the District and the Escrow Bank, which agreement provides for
the defeasance of the 1998 Bonds.

“Escrow Bank” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee for
the 1998 Bonds and as escrow bank under and pursuant to the Escrow Agreement.

“Escrow Fund” means the fund by that name created pursuant to the Escrow Agreement
and maintained by the Escrow Bank thereunder.

“Fair Market Value” means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the
investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the
date the coniract to purchase or sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is traded
on an established securities market (within the meaning of section 1273 of the Code) and,
otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s length
transaction {(as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is acquired
in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii) the investment is an agreement
with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a specifically
negotiated interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward supply
contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable
regulations under the Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security--State and
Local Government Series that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the
United States Bureau of Public Debt, or (iv) the investment is the Local Corporation Investment
Fund of the State but only if at all times during which the investment is held its yield is



reasonably expected to be equal to or greater than the yield on a reasonably comparable direct
obligation of the United States of America.

“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to the 2013 Bonds, June 1 and December 1in
each year, beginning June 1, 2013, and continuing so long as any 2013 Bonds remain
Outstanding.

“Local Health Care District Law” means Division 23 of the California Health and Safety
Code.

“Orniginal Purchaser” means the first purchaser of the 2013 Bonds upon their
authentication and delivery by the Trustee on the Closing Date.

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., or another
trustee, which must be a banking association, banking corporation or trust company acting in
the capacity of trustee under this Second Supplemental Indenture.

“2013 Bonds” means the Bonds authorized by Article 1l hereof.

2013 Costs of Issuance Account” means the account by that name established and held by
the Trustee pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof.

“2013 Project Account” means the account by that name established and held by the
Trustee pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof.

Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. All references in this Second Supplemental
Indenture to “Articles,” “Sections,” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding Articles,
Sections or subdivisions of this Second Supplemental Indenture; and the words “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereunder,” and other words of similar import refer to this Second Supplemental
Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or subdivision hereof.

Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative
words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words
importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and words
importing persons shall include corporations and associations, including public bodies, as well
as natural persons.

Section 1.03. Authorization and Purpose of 2013 Bonds. The District has reviewed all
proceedings heretofore taken relative to the authorization of the 2013 Bonds and has found, as a
result of such review, and hereby finds and determines that all things, conditions, and acts
required by law to exist, happen and/or be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the
2013 Bonds do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as
required by law, and the District is now authorized, as an exercise of the municipal affairs
power of the District under the constitution and laws of the State and pursuant to the Local
Health Care District Law and each and every requirement of law, to issue the 2013 Bonds in the
manner and form provided in this Second Supplemental Indenture. Accordingly, the District
hereby authorizes the issuance of the 2013 Bonds pursuant to the Local Health Care District
Law, the Indenture and this Second Supplemental Indenture.




ARTICLEII

ISSUANCE OF 2013 BONDS

Section 2.01. Issuance of the 2013 Bonds; Terms of the 2013 Bonds.

(a) Issuance of the 2013 Bonds. The 2013 Bonds authorized to be issued by the District
under and subject to the Local Health Care District Law, the Original Indenture, the First
Supplemental Indenture and this Second Supplemental Indenture shall be designated the
“Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series
2013” and shall be issued in the original aggregate principal amount of dollars
$ ). A portion of the 2013 Bonds, in the principal amount of $ , are being
issued pursuant to the provisions of section 32315 ef seq. of the California Health and Safety
Code and the remaining portion of the 2013 Bonds, in the principal amount of § .
constitute “promissory notes” and are being issued pursuant to the provisions of section
32130.2 of the California Health and Safety Code.

(b) Terms of the Bonds. The 2013 Bonds shall be registered initially in the name of “Cede
& Co.,” as nominee of The Depository Trust Company as the initial Securities Depository, and
shall be evidenced by one Bond for each maturity of the 2013 Bonds in the principal amount of
the respective maturities of the 2013 Bonds. Registered ownership of the 2013 Bonds, or any
portion thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except as set forth herein.

The 2013 Bonds shall be issued as fully registered Bonds in denominations of $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof. The 2013 Bonds shall be dated as of the Closing Date and interest
thereon shall be payable semiannually on each Interest Payment Date. The 2013 Bonds shall
mature on December 1 in the following years in the following amounts and shall bear interest at
the following rates per annum:

Maturity Date Principal Interest
{December 1) Amount Rate

The principal or sinking fund installments of, and redemption premium, if any, of the
Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the Principal
Corporate Trust Office or such other place as designated by the Trustee. Payment of the interest
on any Bond shall be made to the person whose name appears on the bond registration books of
the Trustee as the Owner thereof as of the Record Date for each Interest Payment Date, such
interest to be paid by check or draft mailed on each Interest Payment Date to the Owner at his
or her address as it appears on such registration books; provided that such interest shall be paid
by wire transfer to any Owner of at least $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds if



the Owner makes a written request of the Trustee prior to the Record Date for an Interest
Payment Date specifying the account address in the United States.

The 2013 Bonds shall be numbered consecutively, beginning with number R-1, and shall
bear interest from the Closing Date. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a three hundred
sixty (360) day year of twelve thirty (30) day months.

Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forthwith cease to be
payable to the Owners on such Record Date and shall be paid to the person in whose name the
2013 Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of
such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to the Owners
by first class mail not less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date.

Section 2.02. Redemption of the 2013 Bonds.

(a) Optional Redemption of 2013 Bonds. The 2013 Bonds maturing on or before December 1,
___, are not subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities. The 2013 Bonds
maturing on or after December 1, ____, are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated
maturities, at the option of the District, in whole or in part on any date by such maturities as are
selected by the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of
maturity) and by lot within a maturity, on or after December 1, , at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount of 2013 Bonds called for redemption, together with interest
accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

(b} Extraordinary Redemption. The 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their
respective stated maturities at the option of the District as a whole on any date or in part by
such maturities as are selected by the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities,
in inverse order of maturity) and by lot within a maturity on any Interest Payment Date, from
hazard insurance or condemnation proceeds received with respect to the Facilities of the
District, in each case under the circumstances described and as provided in the Indenture, at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof together with interest accrued
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

(c) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of 2013 Bonds.

(i) The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, ___ (the “____ Term Bonds”), are

subject to mandatory redemption on December 1 in each year on and after December 1,

, from mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid by the District with respect

to each such redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount

thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, without premium, as follows:

Sinking Fund Account

Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
(December 1) Redeemed or Purchased
tMaturity
In the event that the Trustee shall redeem Term Bonds in part but not in
whole pursuant to subsections (a) or (b) of this Section 2.02, the amount of the Term

-6-



Bonds to be redeemed in each subsequent year pursuant to this subsection (c)(i) shall be
reduced pro rata.

{ii) The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, (the “ Term Bonds”), are

subject to mandatory redemption on December 1 in each year on and after December 1,

, from mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid by the District with respect

to each such redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount

thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, without premium, as follows:

Sinking Fund Account
Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
{December 1) Redeemed or Purchased
tMaturity
In the event that the Trustee shall redeem Term Bonds in part but not in
whole pursuant to subsections (a) or (b) of this Section 2.02, the amount of the Term

Bonds to be redeemed in each subsequent year pursuant to this subsection (c)(ii) shall be
reduced pro rata.

(iii) The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, (the “ Term Bonds”), are
subject to mandatory redemption on December 1 in each year on and after December 1,
, from mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid by the District with respect
to each such redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, without premium, as follows:

Sinking Fund Account
Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
(December 1) Redeemed or Purchased
tMaturity
In the event that the Trustee shall redeem Term Bonds in part but not in
whole pursuant to subsections (a) or (b) of this Section 2.02, the amount of the Term

Bonds to be redeemed in each subsequent year pursuant to this subsection (c)(iii) shall
be reduced pro rata.

(d) Partial Redemption; Selection. All or a portion of any 2013 Bond may be redeemed, by
lot but only in a principal amount equal to an Authorized Denomination. In the event that less
than all of the 2013 Bonds outstanding are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall select the 2013
Bonds to be redeemed in such order of redemption as shall be selected by the District. Upon
surrender of any 2013 Bond for redemption in part, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to
the Owner thereof, at the expense of the District, a new 2013 Bond or 2013 Bonds of Authorized



Denominations of the same type and maturity and in an aggregate principal amount equal to
the unredeemed portion of the 2013 Bond so surrendered.

(e) Notice of Redemption. The District shall provide the Trustee of notice of redemption 45
days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Notice of any such redemption shall be given by the
Trustee on behalf and at the expense of the District by mailing a copy of a redemption notice by
first class mail at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed
for redemption to each Owner of the 2013 Bond or 2013 Bonds to be redeemed at the address
shown on the Registration Books; provided, however, that neither the failure to receive such notice
nor any defect in any notice shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of
the 2013 Bonds.

All notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state: (i} the redemption date, (ii) the
redemption price, (iii) if less than all Outstanding 2013 Bonds are to be redeemed, the
identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts) of the
2013 Bonds to be redeemed, (iv) that on the redemption date the redemption price will become
due and payable with respect to each such 2013 Bond or portion thereof called for redemption,
and that interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue from and after said date, (v) the place
where such 2013 Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, and (vi) in
the case of a redemption pursuant to Section 2.02(b), that such notice of redemption is
revocable, no later than five days prior to the date set for redemption, notification of such
revocation to be provided in the same manner as notice of redemption had been provided.

Notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the 2013 Bonds or portions of 2013
Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the
redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the District shall
default in the payment of the redemption price) interest with respect to such 2013 Bonds or
portions of 2013 Bonds shall cease to accrue and be payable. Upon surrender of such 2013 Bonds
for redemption in accordance with said notice, such 2013 Bonds shall be paid by the Trustee at
the redemption price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date shall be
payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption
of any 2013 Bond, there shall be prepared for the Owner a new 2013 Bond or 2013 Bonds of the
same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal. All 2013 Bonds which have been
redeemed shall be canceled by the Trustee, shall not be reissued and shall be destroyed
pursuant to Section 12.04 of the Indenture.

In addition to the foregoing notice to the Owners, notice shall also be given by the
Trustee at least thirty (30) days before the redemption date, by telecopy, registered, certified or
overnight mail or by such other acceptable means, to all Securities Depositories and to an
Information Service which shall state the information set forth above, but no defect in said
notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat
the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof is given the Owners as described
above.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility for a defect in the CUSIP number that appears
on any 2013 Bond or in the redemption notice. The redemption notice may provide that the
CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent service and are included in the notice
solely for the convenience of 2013 Bondowners and that the Trustee and the District shall not be
liable in any way for inaccuracies in said numbers.



Section 2.03. Book-Entry System. Notwithstanding any provision of this Second
Supplemental Indenture to the contrary:

(a) The 2013 Bonds shall be initially issued registered in the name of “Cede & Co.,” as
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, the depository designated by the Original
Purchaser, and shall be evidenced by one certificate in a denomination corresponding to the
total principal of the 2013 Bonds. Registered ownership of such 2013 Bonds, or any portions
thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except:

(i) to any successor of The Depository Trust Company or its nominee, or of any
substitute depository designated pursuant to paragraph (ii) of this subsection (a)
(“substitute depository”); provided that any successor of The Depository Trust
Company or substitute depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to
provide the service proposed to be provided by it;

(ii) to any substitute depository designated in a written request of the District,
upon (A) the resignation of The Depository Trust Company or ifs successor {or any
substitute depository or its successor) from its functions as depository or (B) a
determination by the District that The Depository Trust Company or its successor is no
longer able to carry out its functions as depository; provided that any such substitute
depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the services proposed
to be provided by it; or

{iii) to any person as provided below, upon (A) the resignation of The Depository
Trust Company or its successor (or any substitute depository or its successor) from its
functions as depository or (B) a determination by the District that The Depository Trust
Company or its successor is no longer able to carry out its functions as depository;
provided that no substitute depository which is not objected to by the District and the
Trustee can be obtained.

(b) In the case of any transfer pursuant to paragraph (i} or paragraph (ii) of subsection
(a) of this Section 2.03, upon receipt of all Outstanding 2013 Bonds by the Trustee, together with
a written request of an Authorized Representative of the District to the Trustee, a single new
2013 Bond shall be issued, authenticated and delivered for each maturity of such 2013 Bond
then outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or such substitute depository or their
nominees, as the case may be, all as specified in such written request of an Authorized
Representative of the District. In the case of any transfer pursuant to paragraph (iii) of
subsection (a) of this Section 2.03, upon receipt of all Outstanding 2013 Bonds by the Trustee
together with a written request of an Authorized Representative of the District, new 2013 Bonds
shall be issued, authenticated and delivered in such denominations and registered in the names
of such persons as are requested in a written request of the District provided the Trustee shall
not be required to deliver such new 2013 Bonds within a period less than sixty (60) days from
the date of receipt of such a written request of an Authorized Representative of the District.

(¢} In the case of partial redemption or an advance refunding of any 2013 Bonds
evidencing all of the principal maturing in a particular year, The Depository Trust Company
shall, at the District’s expense, deliver the 2013 Bonds to the Trustee for cancellation and re-
registration to reflect the amounts of such reduction in principal.

(d) The District and the Trustee shall be entitled to treat the person in whose name any
2013 Bond is registered as the absolute Owner thereof for all purposes of this Indenture and any
applicable laws, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by the Trustee or the
District; and the District and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for transmitting payments
to, communication with, notifying or otherwise dealing with any beneficial owners of the 2013



Bonds. Neither the District nor the Trustee will have any responsibility or obligations, legal or
otherwise, to the beneficial owners or to any other party including The Depository Trust
Company or its successor (or substitute depository or its successor), except for the registered
owner of any 2013 Bond.

(e) So long as all outstanding 2013 Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. or its
registered assign, the District and the Trustee shall reasonably cooperate with Cede & Co., as
sole registered Owner, or its registered assign in effecting payment of the principal and
redemption premium, if any, and interest due with respect to the 2013 Bonds by arranging for
payment in such manner that funds for such payments are properly identified and are made
immediately available on the date they are due.

(f} So long as all Outstanding 2013 Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. or its
registered assigns (hereinafter, for purposes of this paragraph (f), the “Owner”):

(i) All notices and payments addressed to the Owners shall contain the 2013
Bonds” CUSIP number.

(ii) Notices to the Owner shall be forwarded in the manner set forth in the form

of blanket issuer letter of representations (prepared by The Depository Trust Company)
executed by the District and received and accepted by The Depository Trust Company.

-10 -



ARTICLEIII
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS
Section 3.01. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2013 Bonds. Upon the receipt of payment

for the 2013 Bonds on the Closing Date, the Trustee shall apply the proceeds of sale thereof
(being $ ) as follows:

{a) The Trustee shall deposit in the 2013 Project Account the amount of % .
which represents the amount necessary for the payment of the costs of the 2013 Project;

(b} The Trustee shall deposit in the 2013 Costs of Issuance Account the amount of
$ , which represents the amount necessary for the payment of the Costs of Issuance of
the 2013 Bonds;

(c) The Trustee shall deposit in the Bond Reserve Account the amount of $ ,
being the amount required to increase the amount therein to the Bond Reserve Account
Requirement; and

(d) The Trustee shall transfer to the Escrow Bank for deposit in the Escrow Fund the
amount of $ being the amount required, together with other available moneys, to
defease the 1998 Bonds.

The Trustee may, in its discretion, establish a temporary fund or account to facilitate the
foregoing transfers.

Section 3.02. 2013 Project Account. There is hereby created a separate account within the
Project Fund to be known as the “2013 Project Account,” to be held in trust by the Trustee. The
Trustee shall disburse moneys in the 2013 Project Account for the purpose of paying or
reimbursing the payment of the costs of the 2013 Project, in accordance with the provisions of
the Indenture.

Section 3.03. 2013 _Costs of Issuance Account. There is hereby created a separate account
within the Costs of Issuance Fund to be known as the “2013 Costs of Issuance Account,” to be
held in trust by the Trustee. The Trustee shall disburse moneys in the 2013 Costs of Issuance
Account for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the payment of the Costs of Issuance of the
2013 Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The moneys in the 2013 Costs
of Issuance Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay the Costs of Issuance of
the 2013 Bonds, first from amounts deposited therein derived from the District’s contribution
and second from 2013 Bond proceeds.

Any amounts remaining in the 2013 Costs of Issuance Account after the date six months
after the Closing Date, shall be transferred by the Trustee to the 2013 Project Account and
applied to the purposes thereof.

Section 3.04. Satisfaction of Requirements of Additional Bonds. The District hereby
certifies that all provisions of Sections 3.05 and 3.06 of the Indenture relating to the issuance of
Additional Bonds have been satisfied and that the 2013 Bonds are payable from Revenues and
secured by the pledge made under the Indenture equally and ratably with the 1998 Bonds.

Section 3.05. Validity of 2013 Bonds. The validity of the authorization and issuance of the
2013 Bonds shall not be affected in any way by any proceedings taken by the District and the

-11 -



recifal contained in the 2013 Bonds that the same are issued pursuant to the Law shall be
conclusive evidence of their validity and of the regularity of their issuance.

-12 -



ARTICLE IV
REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

Section 4.01. Pledge of Revenues, Revenue Fund. The District has heretofore transferred,
placed a charge upon, assigned and set over to the Trustee, for the benefit of the Bondowners,
that portion of the Revenues which is necessary to pay the principal or Redemption Price of and
interest on the Bonds (including the 2013 Bonds) in any year, together with all moneys on
deposit in the Revenue Fund, to the punctual payment of the principal or Redemption Price of
and interest on the Bonds (including the 2013 Bonds).

Section 4.02. Administration of Funds and Accounts. All funds and accounts created
pursuant to the Indenture shall continue to be administered by the Trustee in the manner
provided by the Indenture and this Second Supplemental Indenture as if there were a single
issue of Bonds concurrently sold and delivered.

Section 4.03. Application of Sinking Fund Account.

{a) The Trustee shall establish and maintain a separate account within the Principal
Account, such account to be designated “Series 2013 Sinking Fund Account.”

(b) All amounts in the Series 2013 Sinking Fund Account shall be used and withdrawn
by the Trustee solely to purchase or redeem or pay at maturity the Series 2013 Term Bonds as
provided herein and in the Indenture.

(c} Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture and in this Section 4.03,
the 2013 Bonds shall be redeemed (or paid at maturity, as the case may be) by application of
sinking fund installments in the amounts and upon the dates set forth in Section 2.02(c) hereof.

Section 4.04. Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. Notwithstanding the provisions of
Sections 8.04 and 9.06 of the Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled to payment and
reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered hereunder and all advances, if any,
including interest on all such advances at its prime rate then in effect, reasonable external
counsel fees (including expenses), the reasonable allocated cost of internal legal services (to the
extent such services are not redundant of services performed by external counsel) and all
reasonable disbursements of internal counsel, and other expenses reasonably and necessarily
made or incurred by the Trustee in connection with such services and, in the Event of Default,
the Trustee shall have a first and prior lien on the funds held hereunder to secure the same;
provided, however, that in no event shall the Trustee have a lien on premiums paid in connection
with an optional redemption of 2013 Bonds or of any moneys held for the benefit of
Bondowners of the 2013 Bonds. The Trustee’s compensation shall not be limited by any
provision of law in regard to the compensation of a trustee of an express trust. The Trustee’s
rights hereunder shall survive its resignation or removal and final payment of the 2013 Bonds.

Section 4.05. Investments.

(a) All moneys in any of the funds or accounts established with the Trustee pursuant to
this Second Supplemental Indenture shall be invested by the Trustee solely in Permitted
Investments, as directed pursuant to the Request of the District filed with the Trustee at least
two (2) Business Days in advance of the making of such investments. In the absence of any such
directions from the District, the Trustee shall invest any such moneys in Permitted Investments
described in clause (g) of the definition thereof; provided that as long as the Trustee is The Bank
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., the Trustee shall invest such money in the money

-13 -



market fund set forth in the letter of authorization and direction executed by the District and
delivered to the Trustee. If no specific money market fund has been specified by the District, the
Trustee shall make a request to the District for investment directions. Such moneys shall be held
in cash, uninvested, until specific investment directions are provided by the District to the
Trustee. Obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in any fund shall be deemed to be
part of such fund or account. All interest or gain derived from the investment of amounts in any
of the funds or accounts established hereunder shall be deposited in the fund or account from
which such investment was made. The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the acquisition
of any investment. The Trustee shall incur no liability for losses arising from any investments
made pursuant to this Section 4.08. The District acknowledges that to the extent regulations of
the Comptroiler of the Cuzrency or other applicable regulatory entity grant the District the right
to receive brokerage confirmations of security transactions as they occur, the District specifically
waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish
the District with monthly account statements as provided herein which include detail for all
investment transactions made by the Trustee hereunder.

(b) For investment purposes, the Trustee may commingle the funds and accounts
established hereunder, but shall account for each separately.

Section 4.06. Acquisition; Valuation and Disposition of Investments. Except as otherwise

provided in the next sentence, all investments of amounts deposited in any fund or account
created by or pursuant to this Indenture, or otherwise containing gross proceeds of the 2013
Bonds (within the meaning of section 148 of the Code) shall be acquired, disposed of, and
valued (as of the date that valuation is required by this Indenture of the Code) by the District at
Fair Market Value. Investments in funds or accounts (or portions thereof) that are subject to a
yield restriction under applicable provisions of the Code shall be valued at their present value
{(within the meaning of section 148 of the Code).

-14 -



ARTICLEV
COVENANTS

Section 5.01. Tax Covenants.

(a) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or suffer
any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of the 2013 Bonds to be
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b} of the Code.

(b) Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and all actions necessary to assure
compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment earnings,
if any, to the federal government, to the extent that such section is applicable to the 2013 Bonds.

(c) No Arbitrage. The District shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken by the Trustee
or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of the 2013 Bonds which, if such action
had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and intentionally
taken, on the date of issuance of the 2013 Bonds would have caused the 2013 Bonds to be
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code.

(d) Prohibited Facilities. No portion of the proceeds of the 2013 Bonds shall be used to
provide any airplane, skybox or other private luxury box, health club facility, facility primarily
used for gambling, or store the principal business of which is the sale of alcoholic beverages for
consumption off premises. No portion of the proceeds of the 2013 Bonds shall be used for an
office unless the office is located on the premises of the facilities constituting the 2013 Project
and unless not more than a de minimis amount of the functions to be performed at such office is
not related to the day-to-day operations of the 2013 Project.

(e} Use Covenant. The District shall not use or knowingly permit the use of any proceeds
of 2013 Bonds or any other funds of the District, directly or indirectly, in any manner, and shall
not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, which would result in any of the 2013
Bonds being treated as an obligation not described in section 145 of the Code by reason of such
2013 Bond not meeting the requirements of section 145 of the Code.

(f) Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The District shall take all actions necessary to assure the
exclusion of interest on the 2013 Bonds from the gross income of the Owners of the 2013 Bonds
to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross income under the
Code as in effect on the date of issuance of the 2013 Bonds.

(8) Rebate of Excess Investment Earnings to United States. The District hereby covenants to
calculate or cause to be calculated excess investment earnings to the extent required by section
148(f) of the Code and shall cause payment of an amount equal to excess investment earnings to
the United States in accordance with the Regulations, in each case at the sole expense of the
District.

In order to provide for the administration of this Section 5.01(g), the District may
provide for the employment of independent attorneys (including Bond Counsel), accountants
and consultants compensated on such reasonable basis as the District or the Trustee may deem
appropriate, and in addition to and without limitation of the provisions hereof, the Trustee may
rely conclusively upon and shall be fully protected from all liability in relying upon the
opinions, calculations, determinations, directions and advice of such attorneys, accountants and
consultants employed by the District or the Trustee hereunder. The Trustee may rely
conclusively upon the District’s determinations, calculations and certifications required by this

-15-



Section 5.01. The Trustee shall have no responsibility to independently make any calculation or
determination or to review the District’s calculations hereunder.

Section 5.02. Confirmation of Indenture. Except as otherwise provided herein, all
covenants made in Article VII of the Indenture are hereby confirmed as applicable to the 2013
Bonds under this Second Supplemental Indenture.

Section 5.03. Continuing Disclosure. The District shall undertake the continuing
disclosure requirements promulgated under S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12, as it may from time to time
hereafter be amended or supplemented. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Second
Supplemental Indenture, failure of the District to comply with the requirements of S.E.C. Rule
15¢2-12, as it may from time to time hereafter be amended or supplemented, shall not be
considered an Event of Default hereunder.

- 16 -



ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.0]1. Amendments to Original Indenture.

(a) Paragraph (o) of the definition of “Permitted Encumbrances” set forth in Section 1.01
of the Original Indenture is hereby amended in full as follows:

(0) liens on the District’s accounts receivable securing Short-Term Indebtedness,
subject to the requirements of Section 6.05(d) of this Indenture, and provided that upon
the date of creation of any such lien on accounts receivable the Short-Term Indebtedness
secured thereby shall be no more than 35% of the value of the District’s accounts
receivable.

(b) Effective only when the 2010 Bonds are no longer outstanding, the definition of
“annual Debt Service” shall be amended as follows:

“Annual Debt Service” means, for each Fiscal Year, the aggregate amount (without
duplication) of principal and interest scheduled to become due (either by maturity or by
mandatory redemption) and sinking fund payments required to be paid in that Fiscal
Year on all Long Term Indebtedness, but excluding debt service on voter-approved
general obligation bonds secured by ad valorem tax revenues.

(¢} Effective only when the 2010 Bonds are no longer outstanding, the definition of
“Income Available for Debt Service” shall be amended as follows:

“Income Available for Debt Service” means, with respect to the District, as to any
period of time, the excess of revenues over expenses of the District for such period, to
which shall be added depreciation, amortization and interest, all as determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided that no such
determination shall include any gain or loss resulting from either the extinguishment of
Indebtedness, any disposition of capital assets not made in the ordinary course of
business, or ad valorem tax revenues received for the payment of voter-approved general
obligation bonds included in excess of revenues over expenses of the District.

Section 6.02. Notices. All written notices to be given under this Second Supplemental
Indenture shall be given by mail or personal delivery to the party entitled thereto at its address
set forth below, or at such address as the party may provide to the other party in writing from
time to time. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently
given and shall be deemed to have been received upon actual receipt.

If to the District: Northern Inye County Local Hospital District
1500 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, CA 93514
Attenttion: Chief Financial Officer
Phone: (559) 788-6102
Fax: (559) 788-6135

If to the Trustee: The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
400 South Hope Street, Suite 400
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attentior: Corporate Trust Department
Phone: (213) 630-6247
Fax: (213) 630-6215

- 17 -



Section 6.03. Execution in Several Counterparts. This Second Supplemental Indenture
may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all
purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the
District and the Trustee shall preserve undestroyed, shall together constitute but one and the
same instrument.

Section 6.04. Force Majeure. From the effective date of this Second Supplemental
Indenture, the Trustee, or any successor in interest, shall not be considered in breach of or in
default in its obligations with respect to any obligations created hereunder or progress in
respect thereto, in the event of enforced delay "unavoidable delay") in the performance of such
obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence,
including, but not limited to, acts of God, or of the public enemy or terrorists, acts of a
government, acts of the other party, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes,
freight embargoes, earthquakes, explosion, mob violence, riot, inability to procure or general
sabotage or rationing of labor, equipment, facilities, sources of energy, material or supplies in
the open market, litigation or arbitration involving a party or others relating to zoning or other
governmental action or inaction perfaining to the project, malicious mischief, condemnation,
and unusually severe weather or delays of suppliers or subcontractors due to such causes or
any similar event and /or occurrences beyond the control of the Trustee.

Section 6.05. Electronic Communications. The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon
instructions or directions pursuant to this Second Supplemental Indenture sent by unsecured e-
mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic methods; provided, however,
that, the Trustee shall have received an incumbency certificate listing persons designated to give
such instructions or directions and containing specimen signatures of such designated persons,
which such incumbency certificate shall be amended and replaced whenever a person is to be
added or deleted from the listing. If the District elects to give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile
instructions (or instructions by a similar electronic method) and the Trustee in its discretion
elects to act upon such instructions, the Trustee’s understanding of such instructions shall be
deemed controlling. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising
directly or indirectly from the Trustee’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions
notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. The District agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic
methods to submit instructions and directions to the Trustee, including without limitation the
risk of interception and misuse by third parties.

-18 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the NORTHERN INYQ COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL
DISTRICT has caused this Second Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its name by its Chief
Executive Officer, and THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as
Trustee, in token of its acceptance of the trusts created hereunder, has caused this Second
Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by its authorized officers, all as of
the day and year first above written.

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL
HOSPITAL DISTRICT

By

John Halfen
Chief Executive Officer

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee

By

Gonzalo Urey
Vice President

-19-



Cuint & Thimmig LLP 10/11/12

10/22/12
10/31/12
EXHIBIT A
FORM OF SERIES 2013 BOND
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
INYO COUNTY

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Revenue Bond, Series 2013

INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE DATED DATE CUSIP

% December 1, January 29, 2013 665297

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

The NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a local health care
district, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (herein called the
“District”), for value received, hereby promises to pay (but only out of the Revenues and other
moneys and securities hereinafter referred to) to the Registered Owner identified above or
registered assigns (the “Registered Owner”), on the Maturity Date stated above (subject to any
right of prior redemption hereinafter mentioned), the Principal Amount stated above, in lawful
money of the United States of America; and to pay interest thereon in like lawful money from
the Interest Payment Date (as herein defined) next preceding the date of authentication of this
Bond (unless this Bond is authenticated on or before May 15, 2013, in which event it shall bear
interest from the Dated Date stated above) until payment of such principal sum shall be
discharged as provided in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned, at the Interest Rate per annum
stated above, payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2013
(each, an “Interest Payment Date”). The principal (or redemption price) hereof is payable at the
Principal Corporate Trust Office (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Indenture)
of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (fogether with any successor trustee
under the indenture, the “Trustee”). Interest hereon is payable by check of the Trustee mailed
by first class mail on each Interest Payment Date to the Registered Owner as of the fifteenth
(15th) day of the month preceding each Interest Payment Date (except as otherwise provided in
the Indenture with respect to defaulted interest) at the address shown on the registration books
maintained by the Trustee; provided however, that payment of interest will be made by wire
transfer in immediately available funds to an account in the United States of America to any
Registered Owner of Bonds (hereinafter defined) in the aggregate principal amount of
$1,000,000 or more who shall furnish written wire instructions to the Trustee before the fifteenth
day of the month preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date. Interest on the Bonds shall be
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the District designated as
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds”
(herein called the “Bonds”), unlimited in aggregate principal amount, except as otherwise
provided in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned, which issue consists or may consist of one or
more series of varying dates, maturities, interest rates, redemption and other provisions, all
issued pursuant to the provisions of the Local Health Care District Law, constituting Division

Exhibit A 14003.04
Page 1



23 of the California Health and Safety Code (herein called the “Law”), and pursuant to an
indenture, dated as of December 1, 1998, between the District and the Trustee (the “Original
Indenture”), as amended and supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
April 1, 2010, by and between the District and the Trustee (the “First Supplemental Indenture”),
as further amended and supplemented by a Second Supplemental indenture, dated as of
January 1, 2013, by and between the District and the Trustee (the “Second Supplemental
Indenture” and, with the Original Indenture and the Fist Supplemental Indenture, the
“Indenture™).

This Bond is also one of a duly authorized series of Bonds designated “Northern Inyo
County Local Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 20137 (herein
called the “2013 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of dollars
% ), issued to finance and refinance the remodeling, expansion, improvement and
equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District in Bishop, California. The
2013 Bonds are secured on a parity with the District’s outstanding Northern Inyo County Local
Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2010.

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture (a copy of which is on file at the Principal
Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee) and all indentures supplemental thereto and to the Law
for a description of the rights thereunder of the registered owners of the Bonds, of the nature
and extent of the security, of the rights, duties and immunities of the Trustee and of the rights
and obligations of the District thereunder, to all the provisions of which Indenture the
registered owner of this Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees.

The 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities at
the option of the District as a whole on any date, or in part by such maturities as are selected by
the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of maturity and
by lot within a maturity) on any Interest Payment Date, from moneys deposited in the Special
Redemption Account derived from the proceeds of insurance or condemnation awards with
respect to the Facilities, at the principal amount thereof and interest accrued thereon to the date
fixed for redemption, without premium.

The 2013 Bonds maturing on or before December 1, , shall not be subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity. The 2013 Bonds maturing on or after December 1, , shall be
subject to redemption prior to their respective maturity dates, at the option of the District, as a
whole or in part, in such order of maturity as shall be selected by the District (or in inverse
order of maturity if the District shall fail to select a particular order) and by lot within a
maturity, on any date on or after December 1, , from any source of available funds, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the 2013 Bonds to be redeemed, without
premium, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.

The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, , are also subject to mandatory
redemption, on December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, , at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest thereon to
the redemption date, without premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments made
by the District under the Indenture in the years and amounts as follows:

Exhibit A
Page 2



Sinking Fund Account

Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
(December 1) Redeemed or Purchased

tMaturity

The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, , are also subject to mandatory
redemption, on December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, , at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest thereon to
the redemption date, without premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments made
by the District under the Indenture in the years and amounts as follows:

Sinking Fund Account

Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
{December 1) Redeemed or Purchased
tMaturity
The 2013 Bonds maturing on December 1, , are also subject to mandatory

redemption, on December 1 in each year, commencing December 1, , at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest thereon to
the redemption date, without premium, from mandatory sinking fund account payments made
by the District under the Indenture in the years and amounts as follows:

Sinking Fund Account
Redemption Date Sinking Fund Installments
{December 1) Redeemed or Purchased

tMaturity

Extraordinary Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective
stated maturities at the option of the District as a whole on any date or in part by such
maturities as are selected by the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities, in
inverse order of maturity) and by lot within a maturity on any Interest Payment Date, from
hazard insurance or condemnation proceeds received with respect to the Facilities of the
District, in each case under the circumstances described and as provided in the Indenture, at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof together with interest accrued
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Indenture) shall occur, the principal
of all Bonds may be declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the
effect provided in the Indenture. The Indenture provides that in certain events such declaration

Exhibit A
Page 3



and its consequences may be rescinded by the registered owners of not less than a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, or by the Trustee.

The Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof, in person or by his attorney
duly authorized in writing, at the office of the Trustee but only in the manner, subject to the
limitations and upon payment of the charges, if any, provided in the Indenture, and upon
surrender and cancellation of this Bond. Upon such transfer a new Bond or Bonds, of
authorized denomination or denominations, of the same series and maturity for the same
aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee in exchange herefor.

The District and the Trustee may treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute owner
hereof for all purposes, and the District and the Trustee shall not be affected by any notice to the
contrary.

The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in “Authorized Denominations.” The
term Authorized Denominations means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Subject to the
limitations provided in the Indenture, Bonds may be exchanged, at said corporate trust office of
the Trustee, for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations
of the same maturity.

The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the District and of the registered owners
of the Bonds and of the Trustee may be modified or amended from time to time and at any time
in the manner, to the extent, and upon the terms provided in the Indenture; provided that no
such modification or amendment shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of this Bond, or reduce the
amount of principal hereof, or extend the time of payment or reduce the amount of any
Mandatory Sinking Account Payment provided for in the Indenture for the payment of this
maturity of Bonds, or reduce the rate of interest thereon, or extend the time of payment of
interest hereon, or reduce any premium payable upon the redemption hereof, without the
consent of the registered owner hereof, or (ii) reduce the percentage of Bonds the consent of the
registered owners of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment, or permit
the creation of any lien on the Revenues and other assets pledged as security for the Bonds prior
to or on a parity with the lien created by the Indenture, or deprive the registered owners of the
Bonds of the lien created by the Indenture on such Revenues and other assets (except as
expressly provided in the Indenture), without the consent of the registered owners of all Bonds
then outstanding, all as more fully set forth in the Indenture.

The Bonds and the interest thereon are payable from Revenues (as that term is defined
in the Indenture} and are secured by a pledge and assignment of said Revenues and of amounts
held in the funds and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture {except any amounts held
in the Rebate Fund, as such term is defined in the Indenture), subject only to the provisions of
the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and
conditions set forth in the Indenture.

The Bonds are limited obligations of the District and are not a lien or charge upon the
funds or property of the District, except to the extent of the aforementioned pledge and
assighment. NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE
DISTRICT IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR
INTEREST ON THE BONDS.

Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust
Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the District or its agent for registration of
transfer, exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or
in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is
made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of

Exhibit A
Page 4



DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE
BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the Registered Owner hereof, Cede &
Co., has an interest herein.

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required to
exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this
Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as
required by the Law and by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and that the
amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the District, does not exceed any
limit prescribed by the Law, or by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and is not
in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture, or become valid or
obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon
endorsed shall have been signed by the Trustee.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District has caused
this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the facsimile signature of its President
and attested by the facsimile signature of its Secretary, all as of the dated date identified above.

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY L.OCAL
HOSPITAL DISTRICT

By

President
Attest:

Secretary
FORM OF TRUSTEE’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the 2013 Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture and
registered on the registration books of the Trustee.

Dated:

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee

By

Authorized Signatory

Exhibit A
Page 5



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

For value received the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(Name, Address and Tax Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee)

the within-registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute(s) and appoints(s)

attorney, to transfer the same on the Bond register of the Trustee with full power of substitution in the

premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Note: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a financial
institution that is a member of the Securities Transfer
Agents Medallion Program (“STAMP”), the Stock
Exchanges Medallion Program (“SEMP”) or the New
York Stock Exchange, Inc. Medallions Securities
Program (“MSP”) or an “eligible guarantor.”

Signature:

Note: The signature(s) on this Assignment must
correspond with the name(s) as written on the face of
the within Bond in every particular without alteration
or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

Exhibit A

Page 6



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



Cust Account #:

PURCHASE ORDER

Corporation:  NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL CORPORATION

PO Number: 81034

Tax Exempt ID:

Vnd Nd: 601

Vendor: CARL ZEISS MEDITEC

Phone: 800-442-4020

Ship To: 150 PIONEER LN
BISHOP, CA 93514

Phone: 780-873-5811 3264

Bill Toe: 150 PIONEER LN
BISHOP, CA 93514

Phone: 760-873-5811 3264

Created On: 07/19/2012

Printed On:

07/19/2012 15:03:34

Special Instructions:

Fax No: Fax: -- Fax: - emailed 7/19/12
Address: ONE ZEISS DR Contact: RYAN MCVEITTY Contact:
THORNWOOD, NY 10594 E-mail: E-mail:
Est Arr Date: Ship Via: Terms: No Discount/Net30
Line | Gty /UOM ltem 1D / Description GL Acct / Corporation Crder Price Line Total -Receiving--
Pck Ref Vender Catalog # Notes Deliver to Location 1st  2nd  3rd 4th
1 1 EA 6415600 ZEISS OPMI LUMERA | 1241-1201 NIH2 $74,499.46000 $74,499.46000
KMAT OFMI LUMERA 7420C - SURGERY AND RECOVERY SERVICES CONSUMABLE
Page 1 of 1

Authorized Signature

PO Total:

$74,499.46




Cust Account #:

PURCHASE ORDER

Oo_.uo.,ﬂm:o:” NORTHERN INYOC HOSPITAL CORPORATION

PO Number: 81034

Tax Exempt ID:

Vendor: CARL ZEISS MEDITEC
Vnd No: 601
Phone: 800-442-4020

Fax No:

Ship To: 150 PIONEER LN
BISHOP, CA 93514

Phone: 760-873-5811 3264

Bill To: 150 PIOCNEER LN
BISHOP, CA 93514 .,

Phone: 760-873-5811 3264

Created On;

07/19/2012

Printed On:

07/19/2012 10:26:41

Special Instructions:

Fax: - Fax: -
Address: ONE ZEISS DR Contact: RYAN MCVEITTY Contact:
THORNWOOQD, NY 10594 E-mail: E-mail:
Est Arr Date: Ship Via: Terms: No Discount/Net30
Line | Qty/UOM ltem I/ Description GL Acct / Corporation Order Price Line Total -Receiving--
Pck Ref Vendor Catalog # Notes Deliver to Location st 2nd  3rd  4th
1 1- EA 6415600 ZEISS OPMI LUMERA | 1241-1201 NIH2 $74,499.46000 $74,499.46000
KMAT OPMI LUMERA 7420C - SURGERY AND RECOVERY SERVICES CONSUMABLE

Page 1 of 1 Authorized Signature PO Total: $74,499.46




Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.
5160 Haclenda Drive
Dublin, CA 94568 U.S.A

Biliing site: 641560
Northern Inyo Hospital
Phyllis Meneses

150 Pioneer Ln
Bishop CA 93514-2556

Instrument site: 641560
Northern Inyo Hospital
Phyllis Meneses

150 Pioneer Ln
Bishop CA 93514-2556

Price quotation / purchase agreement
Prepared by:

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.
Carl Zeiss Meditec Group
Tax ID # 94-3374401
DUNS: 362747011

Toll Free:  (877) 486-7473
Telephone: (925) 5567-4100
Fax: (925) 557-4393
On the web:

www.meditec.zeiss.com

For assistance contact:
Nancy Jones
714-972-9499

Quotation No.: 7740041849)
"Quotation date: 29.06.2012
Page: 1/3

US:USA-Preisliste

Pos  Description Qty List Price: ($)7 Ext. Price ($}
10 Kmat OPMI Lumera | 1.00 105,071.54 105,071.54
20 GPMI Lumera | With Floor Stand 1.00
30 Dust Cover For OPMI&@ Blue _1.00
40 22 mm asepsis caps, pack of 6 200
50 6-pack reéteritizable handgrips VISU 1.00

150/160/200/210
60 Foot Controf Panel Wireless Fep Wi 1.00
70 Tiltable Bingcular Tube F=170Mm, 180 Degrees 1.00
80 2 grips for 180° tiltablé tube and 6-pack of 1.00
22mm asepsis caps
90 6 pack asespsis caps, for PD adjustment, 1.00
180" tiltable tube
100 Widefield, Push-In Eyeplece 10X 2.00
110 Objective lens =175 mm, apochromatic, outer 1.00
diameter 65 mm
120 Beamsplitter 20 1.00




Quotation No.: 7740041849

Quootation date: 29.06.2012
Page: 213
Pos  Description Qty List Price ($) Ext. Price {$)
130 6-pack resterifizable handgrips VISU 1.00
150/160/200/210
140 Halogen Lamp 12V 100W 2,00
150 Integrated Medllive Trio Eye 3 Ccd C-Mount Nisc 1.00
160 Video objective lens, =60 mm, C-mount 1.00
for 1/2" 1 CCD,1/3" 1 CCD, 13" 3 CCD
170 Cable 10M S-Vhs Connecting 2X4 1.00
180 Pack. F. Syst. Lumera-| Solid Wood-Free 1.00
Add. Trade In Dis. $ 2,500.00-
Order Discount $ 30,572.08
Sub Total $74,499.46
Freight $ 700.00
Tax $5,827.94
Grand Total $ 81,027.40

Thank you for considering our LOW rates on Financing Options

{Car!- Zeiss Meditec, Inc is licensed and required to collect applicable sales taxes in all states.
Actual taxes may differ from quoted amounts.
if Sales Tax has been added to your Quote and you are tax exempt, please submit a current Tax

Exempt Certificate with your order.
Actual taxes will be calculated at the time of invoice in accordance with the current tax

ratesfregulations.
Prices are valid for 30 days from Quotation Date.

One year warranly unless otherwise specified.
This quotation is valid only in the USA and will be null and void if intended for Resale or Export.

Prices shown in connection with a Trade-in shall be nulf and void in the event Buyer elects to retain, or for
any reason not provide, the specified Trade-In.

Any equipment accepted as a Trade-In may be immediately disposed of by Carl Zeiss Meditec.

Payment Terms are Deposit with Balance due on receipt.

Software ONLY sales require payment in fult with order.

www. zeiss . com/meditectandc




Quotation No.: 77400418489
Quotation date: 29.06.2012
Page: 313

In signing this agreement, buyer agrees to ali Carl Zelss Meditec Inc Sales Terms and Conditions, as attached.

Authorized Customer Signature Date
Selact Payment Method
P.O. No. Deposit with Balance due on invoice Lease
Deposlt 7
Amount to be charged to Credit Card: § i Total Deposit: $
Credit Card Expiration Date

Credit Card No./P.O. No./Check No,

Printed Name on Credit Card and Credit Card Billing Address including Zip Code if different from abaove

Ship To Contact:

If the Billing Site (BIll-To) or the Instrument Site (Ship-To) information is different from the information iisted above, please
specify comrect Information below. )



Terms and Conditions of Sale
These Terms, combined with the information en the front or attached pages (“Front”) constitute an agreement with Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. (“Zeiss™) in which the purchaser named on the:Front
{“Buyer", “You', *Your") will purchase the product{s) described on the Front {"Produci(s)’). Terms on the Front will supersede these terms' below.
1. PRICES AND TAXES - All prices in this Agreement (“Price(s)") are in U.S. dollars. Quotatlons are only valid for thirly (30) days from the date of quofe. The Price does not inlude applicable
sales, excise, use, or ofher taxes in effect or later levied. Zeiss is licensed and required by law to collect sales tax in all states, Except for those taxes aftaching fo Zeiss {e.g. income taxes), Buyer
is responsible for payment of all taxes assoclated with its purchase of the Product(s), including {but not imited to} sales or excise taxes, duties, or property faxes. .
2. TRADE-IN POLICY - #f Buyer's "trade-in” equipment {“Trade-In(s)") is part of the Price, Buyer wamants that Buyer owns the Trade-In{s) free of any liens, security interests or other
encumbrances. Buyer must complete the de-instaltation of the Trade-In(s). Trade-In(s) must be in the condition as noted on the Quotation, and must include all hardware, software, components,
and applicable ficense(s), and are the model and serial number listed on the Quotation {*Cemplete’). Trade-In(s) are subject fo Zeiss’ inspection and acceptance. If Trade-ln(s) are not delivered fo
Zeiss within 60 days of delivery of the Product(s), are not Complete or otherwise unacceplable to Zelss, Zeiss may recalculate the Price and Buyer agrees to pay Zelss the adjusted Price. Buyer
wilt bear the risk of loss for Trads-In{s) until they are delivered to Zeiss or ils carrier. If accepted, Zeiss may immediately dispose of the Trade-In and Buyer will have no right fo a retun of the
Trade-n. If this Agreement is terminatad, or the Produci(s) are returned, then Buyer agrees that Buyer will only recaive a credit for the Trade-In(s) value foward Buyer's next purchase of Zeiss
produc(s).
3. TERMS AND METHOD OF PAYMENT - Unless stated othenwise on the Front, payment in fult will be due thirty (30) days from the date of invoice. Zeiss may require a deposit upen placement of
the arder, and may further require the balance to be Due On Delivery (including applicable sales fax, freight, insurance, etc.). Zeiss reserves the right to require payment in fufl, in advance or
C.0.D., or atherwise modify credit ferms efther before or after acceptance of any order if for any reason Buyer's credit is o becomes objectionable to Zeiss. Pending comection of any objectionable
credit situation, Zeiss may withhold shipmenis without incurring any liability fo Buyer, A¥ balances not paid when due shall be subject to a service charge equal to one-and-one-half percent {1 %%)
per manth, or the highest rate parmitted by faw, whichever is less. For Zeiss to extend tax exempt status 1o Buyer, Buyer must provide a tax-exemption certificate based upon the jurisdiction of the
instaliation location priar to acceptance of the order. In the event of a transaction in which the Buyer delays installation of Product(s) for more than sixty (60} days, Buyer will accept Zelss's invoice
for the Product{s} and tander payment fimely regardless of installation.
4. CREDIT STATEMENT - Buyer cerifies that the information submitted pertaining fo its credit worthiness is accurate, Buyer, its owners and/or principals, and all individuals whose names appear
on the Agreement expressly authorize consumer reporfing agercies and other persons to fumish eredit Information to Zeiss, separately or jointly with other creditors, for use in connection with this
Agreement. Zeiss and joint users of stch Information are authorized to receive and exchange credit information and to update such information as appropriate for the express purpose of assessing
Buyer's credif worthiness.
5, SHIPMENT, RISK OF LOSS, SHIPPING DATE - Al shipments will be made FCA. Zeiss's shipping points, Absent specific agreement, Zeiss wilt select the carrler. Title and Risk of Loss to the
Product(s) passes fo the Buyer upon Zeiss' delivery to the designated carier or delivery service. Buyer shall reimburse Zeiss for any insurance proceeds obtained covering lasses assoclated with
delivering the Product(s) fo the camier. If a shipment date Is indicated on this Agreement, such date Is only an estimated delivery date, and not a materdal term of this Agreement Zeiss will make
all reasonable efforls fo meet the delivery date. If (i) Zeiss does not deliver the Produci(s) within sixty (60} days of the delivery date, then Buyer may terminate this Agrement or (i) If Buyer does
not take delivery from Zelss within ninety (30) days of the delivery date, then Zeiss may terminate this Agreement; and in neither circurnstance will Buyer or Zeiss have any furiher obligations fo the
other.
6. ACCEPTANCE - Buyer will be deemed fo have accepted the Produci(s) on the sarlier of {i) delivery of the Product(s} to the Buyer {if installafion is not priced separately on the Front) or (i)
confirmation by Zeiss that the Produci(s) have been Installed and conform to Zelss' specifications and requirements for operation or (iil) Buyer's use of the Product(s).
7. SECURITY INTEREST - Until the Product{s) are paid for in full, Buyer gives Zeiss a sacurlly interest in the Product(s), all monies received for the Product(s), or in any

chattel paper regarding the Product(s) {e.g.: lease agreements).
8. LIMITED WARRANTY - This is a limited wamanty that gives Buyer specific legal dghts. Non-institutional Buyers may have other rights, which vary from state fo state. Warranty is void

outside the U.S A,

Duration of Warranty: This Limitad Warranty witl last, unless otherwise stated on the Front, for one (1) year from shipment date (“Warranty Period”). What is Covered: All paris defective in
material and workmanship. What Zeiss Will Do: Zeiss will, at its sole option, repair or replace any parts if reasenably determines to have failed due to defects in material or workmanship during the
Warranty Period, free of any charge for either parts or fabor. What is Not Covered: Consumable items nor the serviting/replacement of other manufacturer's equipment or accessories. These
items, as well as any third-parly supplied items (software or hardware) will be covered by thelr manufacturer’s warranty and any arrangements for service or replacement of such [tems must be
made through that manufacturer. This Limitad Warranty does not cover faflure that has resuited from improper or unreasonable use or maintenance, accident, unauthorized transportation from the
initial instaffation locafion or environmental conditions cutside of those prescribed in the Product specifications, improper packaging or shipment, electrical failure, or unauthorized tampering,
alteration or modification. Consumables and items with a limited expected usefui life are not subject to this Limited Warranty. On-site planned or preventive mainfesiance activities are not included
as a part of this Limited Waranty, Exelusive Warranty: The provisions of this Limited Warranty are in lieu of any other warranty, whether expressed or implied, written or oral, including
any warranty of fitness for a particular purpose. Exclusive Remedy: Zelss' obligation to repalr, replace, or at ifs sole option refund the value of such defeciive paris, are the only remedies
avaftable under this Limited Wamanty. Some jurisdictions do not allow limitations on exclusion of or limitation of remedies so the foregoing limitations and exclusions may not apply.

9, SERVICE AGREEMENT - If this Agreement includes the purchase of a Service Agreement, then fhe Zelss Service Agreement Terms and Conditions will apply to those services.

10. TRAINING ~ Zeiss may provide training refated to certaln Product(s), the form, duration and content of which will be at Zeiss' discrefion. Training commitments expire 6 months after the
Product(s) are shipped.

11. LICENSE FOR USE OF SOFTWARE - Zelss grants Buyer a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the software incorporated in the Product(s) (*Software”), solely for Buyer's infemal
practice uses. This license does not include the right to make coples of Software, exiract, modify or incorporate any part of the Software, nor reverse engineer, decompile, or disassembie the
Software, Zeiss doas not claim that the Software is free from defects and shall have no obligation fo supply software upgrades (i.e., new versions, or new, or in-ling relaases). This fimitation will not
apply to required corrective actlons.

12. RETURN POLICY - Unless it has given its writlen consent, Zeiss will not accept any Proguct refums. If Zeiss consents to the retum, Buyer may be charged a twenty percent (20%) restocking
‘fee for all Zelss authorized Product(s) retums. Risk of Loss, and Shipping and Handling fees for retumed Product{s} are the Buyer's rasponsibility, Unless Zeiss agrees otherwise, retumed
Product(s) must be in new condifion and packaged in the original packaging. Consumable Product(s), such as bulbs, lamps, fuses, fiber optic cables, efc., are not etumable.

13. CANCELLATION POLICY - This Agreement can only be cancelled prior to skipment by written agreement of Buyer and Zefss. If Buyer cancels this Agreement, Buyer may be charged a 20%
cancellation fee. If Buyer only cancels part of Buyer's order under this Agreement, Zelss may adjust the Price of the remaining Product(s) being purchased, which may mean discounis offered on
the original order will nof be available. .

14. FORCE MAJEURE ~ Zelss will make every reasonable effort to complete shipment, but shall not be liable for any loss or damage for delay in delivery, or any other failure to perform due to
causes beyond its reasonable control including but not limited fo, fire, storm, flood, earthquake, explosion, accident, acts of a public enemy, war, rebeflion, insurrection, sabotage, epidemic,
-quarantine restrictions, labor disputes, labor or matesial shortages, embargo, failure or delays in fransporiation, unavaitability of components or parts for machinery used for manufacture of its
Praduct(s), acts of God, acts of the Federal Govemment or any agency thereof, acts of any state or focal government or any agency thereof, and judicial action. Should such a delay occur, Zeiss
‘may reasonably extend defivary or production schedules or, at its option, cancel the order in whole or part without any liability other than to refum any unearned deposit or prepayment,

15. ASSIGNMENT - Buyer shall not assign or transfer any rights, duties or obfigations under this Agreement without Zeiss' prior written consent.

jG. GOVERNING LAW; DISPUTE RESCLUTION - The substantive laws of the State of New York will govem the construction of this Agreement. Both parlies agree to waive any right to a trial by

Juy.

] O 3 ________—._____—_—_..__._..._‘,_._._,_,_,__k,“; iSi i i i

in Proguct(s) liability of from Zeiss’ gross nealigence. Some sfates do nof allow the exclusfon or limitation of consequential or incidental damages, so the above fimitation or exclusion may not apply.
8. PATENT INDEMNITY - Zeiss will defend or seffle any claim, sult or proceeding brought zgainst Buyer based on allegations that the Product(s) infringe on a third party patent, provided that:
Zeiss s notified timely of such claim, suit or proceeding; Buyer renders all reasonable coaperation to Zeiss; Buyer gives Zeiss the sole authority to defend or-setlle the same. If the Praduci(s) are
held to infringe on any patent and the use of the Product(s) is enjoined, Zeiss will have the option, at its discretion {i) to procure Buyer the right to use the Product(s} or (i) to modify the Product(s)
so that they no longer infringe or (ll} upon the refum of the Product(s), refund Buyer the depreciated value of the Product(s) and accept the retum thereof. This indemnification will not apply to
changes made by Zeiss at Buyer's instruction or by Buyer, or by the use of third party ftems in conjunction with the Product(s) (unless sold or directed by Zeiss). in no event will Zeiss' totaf fiability
to Buyer with respect to any infringement or misappropriation exceed the depreciated value of the Product(s).

Rev 110301



R T Btk

i ma wrae FHM Y MW I AR S M S A et aetns amragraet 6 [ S — )
derstandings, whether wrilten or oral,

20, ENTIRE AGREEMENT - This Agreement consfitutes the final and complete agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior agremenis and un
relating to the purchase or sale of the Product(s). The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevall over any variance with the terms and conditions of any order submitted by the Buyer for
the Produci(s), regardless of any provisions to the contrary. No claimed additions to or modifications or amendments of this Agreement, nor any claimed waive; of any of its terms or canditions,

shall be effective unless in wriling and signed by the parfy against whom the same may be asserted.

Rev 110301



Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
Dr. Michael Kaschke

Division

Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc.
Atin. Accounts Payable
5160 Hacienda Drive
DUBLIN CA 94568
USA

. Consignee_ ... ..
Northern Inyo Hospital

PO# 81034

Att: Ryan McVeitty

Phn: 760-873-5811 X-3264
150 Pioheer Ln

BISHOP CA 93514-2556
USA ‘

Your order 81634 from 07/25/2012

bk b dd kR kR bk ddhk ek k bk k ki ko ke ded

CARL ZEISS MEDITEC

Original

Please always indicate:
Division/Number/Date
30/2050996518/08/13/2012

Contact

Nathan Gonzalez

Phone/Fax

925-657-4674 | 925-557-4183
e-mail
n.gonzalez@meditec.zeiss.com

Order confirmation 30/ 1024001582 of 07/26/2012
Delivery note

30/ 1033754031 of 08/09/2012

Unless it has given its written consent, Zeiss will not accept any Product returns, If Zeiss consents to the return, -
Buyer may be charged a twenty percent (20%) restocking fee for all Zeiss authorized Product(s) returns. Risk of
Loss, and Shipping and Handling fees for returned Product(s) are the Buyer’s responsibility. Unless Zeiss agrees
otherwise, returned Product(s) must be in new condition and packaged in the original packaging. Consumable
Product(s), such as bulbs, lamps, fuses, fiber optic cables, etc., are not returnable.

dhkdk bk bk ddk bk kkdhhok kb kbR kR Rk Rk kR kEkk

CZ 10234001582
PO/81034

No. 1 (CZ-Code 6547881)

_ cardboard on a palett
gross 253 KG, net 168 KG
size 120 x 80 x 195 CM

COMPLETE
' sep 07 2012

RAY THOMAS

item. PH Article-No.
Quantity

Description

-2.

Address of Record:
Goeschwitze:_-_ Str.51-52

packed in

Commercial Register:
Local Court Jena HRB 205623



THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK —~ PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS
(23-02)

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources -
Employee Handbook

Source: Human Resources Effective Date:

PURPOSE:

s policy and\procedure to
el ion,

e interpretation
1 was not for

To outline the Employee Complaints and the Grievance
provide methods: 1) for employees to register compl
harassment, or problems concerning wages, hours,

or application of policies and procedures, disciplina
just cause, or any other matters related to their emp
the opportunity to explain, respond, and take correctiy

POLICY:

Accordingly, we believe that th
full consi i

Should
she bringit'to
person is the ¢
complaint (e.g.,
employee wh

; edure (preferably the immediate supervisor). Matters
the first step are not to be deferred to succeeding steps of

discrimination or unfair treatment relating to or caused by gender, race, religious beliefs,
age, or other legally protected status; ii) harassment; iii) problems concerning wages or
hours; iv) working conditions; v) interpretation or application of policies and procedures;
vi) disciplinary action employee(s) feel was not for just cause; or vii) any other matters
related to employment.

Nothing in this policy alters or should be interpreted as altering the at-will employment
relationship between Northern Inyo Hospital and its employees.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS

(23-02)

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources —
Employee Handbook

Source: Human Resources Effective Date:

PROCEDURE:

1. Employees are encouraged, but not required to discus

11.

Resources Manager and/or the Employee Advo
If not resolved in step 1, a written formal compl 1

(Reference note a.) Employee Written Formal Com(
Within five (5) Workmg days of receipt (Reference 1

complaint as: i) discrimination or unfair treatment }e atin
race, religious beliefs, age, or other legally protected status;
problems concerning wages or hours; iv) w g conditions;

item as a filed grievance on the next available Board of
Director’s meel he grievance item will be assessed and placed on the
agenda for open or closed session accordingly. (Reference note a.)

All decisions of the Board of Directors shall be final and not subject to further appeal.

. Throughout the complaint and grievance process stated in the policy, if still scheduled

to work, the employee is required to continue to perform his/her duties in a
satisfactory manner or be subject to disciplinary action.

Employees terminated or suspended, as the result of disciplinary action will remain
terminated or suspended during the grievance process stated in this policy.




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS
(23-02)

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources —
Employee Handbook
Source. Human Resources Effective Date:

12. At each stage of the grievance process, if the employee prevails, he/she shall be
reinstated. Back pay, in whole or in part, may or may not be granted at the discretion
of the Administrator. ;

13. Human Resources will receive a copy of all com

fhe grievance

Vance process
nation.

Notes:
a. There may be occasions when, because of the time ot
involved, either the employee or management of the ho;
time requirements in this procedure be waived or extended,
dior.disengaged at at

the grievance process.
¢. In order to most appropriately or
complaint/grievance, manageme
process, e.g. use of a Task

Committee Approval Date

Human Resources

Administration

Board of Directors




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Wages - PUNCH DETAIL REPORT (06-01)

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources —
Employee Handbook

Source: Human Resources Effective Date:

POLICY:

Your punch detail report from the timekeeping system is an accurate record of your
working time and is the basis for computing your paych is Sour responsibility to
insure that your punch detail report is accurate. Empl ‘ wingly swipe or time
stamp in or out for another employee, or manually sig
are subject to discharge.

You must swipe or time stamp in closest to your actual:
timekeeping terminal or a computer using time stamp.

may only work from home with Administrator approv and
manually on an edit sheet.

You must not swipe or time stamp in more]

711 edit sheet.

Approval Date
‘| Human Resources
Administration

Board of Directors




Whenever possible, department heads, supervisors and head nurses should schedule
designated non-exempt employees who must regularly receive pay for their meal
periods to come to work a half an hour "late" or leave work a half an hour "early” in
order to minimize overtime expenses. Employees in these positions should enter into
an "Agreement For On-Duty Meal Period" with the hospital. (See form titled
AGREEMENT FOR ON-DUTY MEAL PERIOD.} Effective January 1, 2013, all
AGREEMENTS FOR ON-DUTY MEAL PERIOD's will expire annually and must be
resigned to remain in effective.

EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

Employees whose positions are mainly executive, administrative or professional may
be classified as exempt employees by administration.
A. Exempt employees do not receive extra pay for overtime hours, hours worked
on holidays, or on-call time.
B. Exempt employees are not entitled to "compensatory time off."
C. In order to be classified as exempt, employees must meet certain conditions
set by the federal government.




THIS SHEET
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
CEO SUCCESSION PLAN

12-12-12

1/2013 thru 4/31/2013. Create and post position of Assistant Administrator.

AA position will be structured as training and preparation to take over as CEQ.
Qualifications, experience, requirements to be the same as CEO.

Job responsibilities would increase over a year or so until takeover event as would reporting
relationships.

Compensation negotiable.

Conduct interviews.

. 5/1/2013 thru 7/15/2013. Start date of AA (probably negotiable with candidate).

Backfill vacant positions as determined necessary. Possibilities include Chief Nursing
Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Job descriptions and responsibilities to be updated as needed.

Conduct interviews.

Interim CNO remains in place until CNO hired if applicable.

Contracts for all Officers executed.

7/16/2013 thru 7/15/2014. CEQ submits resignation effective 7/15/2014.

Training of AA continues.
Continuing relationship with CEO explored, executed.

. 7/16/20614. CEO resignation becomes effective.

Continuing relationship with CEQ begins as appropriate.



END



	2116_001.pdf
	2117_001

